PREFXREBERIR A
China Pipe Group Limited

(RBEFETMR L BERAF)
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
B&DR5% © 00380  Stock code: 00380

S 2022

ANNUAL REPORT
F R

=

l ~m \TH.L




Contents

H &%

2 Corporate Information
NEIEH
5 Chairman’s Statement
TREWmE
8 Mission and Strategy
e ap K SR g
9 Management Discussion and Analysis
EIRE R AT

13 Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEABZERE

19  Corporate Governance Report
PEERHRE

38  Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IR - g RERWME

90  Report of the Directors
ExgWmE

109 Independent Auditor’s Report
B AZ BN R

118 Consolidated Income Statement ’o
EITESES AY)

119 Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

freEmPaER

120 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR a MBIRILR

122 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
e EREHR

124 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
,Zv:\f\ Eﬁi/ﬂbiﬁ

125 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e BTSRRI 5T
216  Five-Year Financial Summary
HEMBHE
T




Corporate Information

KRB R

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Lai Fulin (Chairman)
Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson

Mr. Chen Wei Wen

Mr. Guan Zhigiang

Mr. Wang Chaolong (Appointed on 3 January 2023)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Wei Wen

Mr. Guan Zhigiang

Mr. Wang Chaolong (Appointed on 3 January 2023)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Guan Zhigiang (Chairman)

Mr. Lai Fulin

Mr. Chen Wei Wen

Mr. Wang Chaolong (Appointed on 3 January 2023)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Lai Fulin (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Wei Wen

Mr. Guan Zhigiang

Mr. Wang Chaolong (Appointed on 3 January 2023)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Cheng Siu Kwan

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants and
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
22/F, Prince’s Building

Central, Hong Kong

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED #EIE XK@ ER 2 A

Exg

BITES
rEfRE A (EF)
MRERE(BRITE)

BAFIITES

wAERE

BRIEX KL

BEEMELE
TEHEEER S =_=F—A=A%T)

EREES

BHUAMERE (EE)

PRIE ST

EREE
FHEEAERZE_=F—A=AZF)

FHEES

BB A (EFE)

FRfE T

PRE S
FaEXE(RZE-=FE—HA=HZF)

REZEE

BRBSEE ()

FRIESCSE

BRI E
THELER-_B-=F—B=AZM)

DNAME

BRIRL

B A% BED

EERUOKEG TR EIEET
MESERI R
A R T 5 B B AL ERAD
EEHIR
AFRE=+1%



PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Ocorian Management (Bermuda) Limited
Victoria Place, 5th Floor

31 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM 10

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank SinoPac, Hong Kong Branch

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Chong Hing Bank Limited

Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Victoria Place, 5th Floor
31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 10
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

Unit 1010-1016, Level 10
Tower I, Grand Century Place
193 Prince Edward Road West
Mongkok, Kowloon

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2728 7237

Fax: (852) 2387 2999

Corporate Information

K EIE R

FERODBFETE

Ocorian Management (Bermuda) Limited
Victoria Place, 5th Floor

31 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM 10

Bermuda

BEEROBFETIE

BAPREBELEELAR AT
BBET
SRKNER183%

AR LNTE
1712-17165% 44

FEAERBRIT

RERTT (BR) BRAA

B TR IRTT (E2M) AR AR
PEmERITERLA]
ERRIT(EB)BRAA
BFELBESRITARAR
KEBMERTRNDBRAR (FENTT)
RERITARRAA
RIFRITARAA
BIEIRTTER AR
SRIBITERAT]
BEERITARAT

EEREE

Victoria Place, 5th Floor
31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 10
Bermuda

BMEERTEEEME

B

BERE A
KNFBF19398

R 4D 52 B
10#£1010£ 1016 =
&% ¢ (852) 2728 7237
B85 : (852) 2387 2999

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 # #f



4

Corporate Information

KRB R

OTHER PLACES OF BUSINESS
HONG KONG AND MACAU
Retail shops

G/F, 716 Shanghai Street
Mongkok, Kowloon
Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2395 0181
Fax: (852) 2787 3421

G/F, 102 Thomson Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2866 6001
Fax: (852) 2866 6339

Rua Da Ribeira Do Patane No. 13, Macau
Tel: (853) 2855 3693
Fax: (853) 2895 1020

Warehouse

Sections M and N of Lot 3719 in DD104
Yuen Long, New Territories

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2471 9048

Fax: (852) 2482 1298

WEBSITE

http://www.chinapipegroup.com

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED # EIE X &£ B ER 2 7

Hih & £ 2
BB REM
P
Fs
BERE A
EEE7165E T
T ¢ (852) 2395 0181
f8E : (852) 2787 3421

ERET
BERIE1025 T

BE:E ¢ (852) 2866 6001
{5E : (852) 2866 6339

SRPD RUSE R 135 R M T
B EE ¢ (853) 2855 3693
{EE : (853) 2895 1020

=9

BB

AT ITERE SR
FREREHER 104 Lot 3719 MENER
BEEE ¢ (852) 2471 9048

fBE : (852) 2482 1298

483k

http://www.chinapipegroup.com



Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present to our shareholders the annual report of
China Pipe Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group’s revenue of about HK$636.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: HK$682.2 million), representing
a decrease of 6.7% as compared to last year. The gross profit
margin was approximately 27.5% for the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: restated 28.7%). The profit attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company was HK$49.2 million for the
year under review (2021: restated HK$56.4 million), representing
a decrease of approximately 12.8% over last year. Basic earnings
per share was HK3.69 cents (2021: restated HK4.23 cents).

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of the Company does not recommend a
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

We encountered the last three years of COVID-19 pandemic
challenges and operated in an unprecedented business
environment. Despite the challenges and uncertainties brought
by COVID-19, we were fortunate that the impact of COVID-19
on our business was relatively lower. We could maintain a healthy
financial position. With our solid track record, we continued to
develop our core business of trading of pipe and fitting.

In the first half of 2022, the Hong Kong Government had to build
more community isolation facilities such as Penny’s Bay and Kai
Tak Community Isolation Facilities in a very short time in response
to the most severe COVID-19 fifth wave in the first quarter of
2022. We benefited from the ad hoc strong demand for pipes and
fittings for building such isolation facilities. We did well in the first
half of the year.
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Chairman’s Statement
EN T80

In the second half of 2022, the demand for pipes and fittings
returned to a normal level, with the slowing of the pandemic and
the completion of the isolation facilities. During the year under
review, the Group recorded revenue amounted to approximately
HK$636.5 million (2021: HK$682.2 million), representing a
decrease of 6.7% over last year. The profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company was HK$49.2 million, as compared to
a net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of
approximately HK$56.4 million (restated) for the same period in
2021, representing a decrease of 12.8%. As mentioned in the
annual report last year, the significant increase in revenue for
2021 was because we expedited the clearance of backlogs caused
by the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic in 2020. For the year
under review, the decrease in revenue was mainly attributable to
the retail shop in Tsuen Wan ceasing operation in November 2021
as the lease expired and the reduction in contribution from a large
project of the third runway of Hong Kong International Airport
which we completed the delivery in 2021.

The growing wider use of Modular Integrated Construction
("MiC") and Multi-trade Integrated MEP (“MiMEP") is the new
trend of technology adopted in building construction. During
the year, we enhanced our role in sourcing and supplying our
products to meet our customers’ needs in adopting of MiC and
MIMEP.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, we believe that the COVID-19 measures will be
phased out. Hong Kong is moving forward to normalcy. Since
the start of 2023, Hong Kong has eased most of its COVID-19
restrictions and re-opened its border with mainland China. The
relaxation of border restrictions with China helped us to increase
the business activities with our suppliers in China. The economy of
Hong Kong will gradually regain its vitality in future. In addition,
we can resume our visits to suppliers, product inspections and
work closely with them to promote value-added services to meet
our customers’ needs.
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In the coming years, the Hong Kong Government will continue
to address the shortage of public housing issues. The Hong
Kong Government is committed to building 30,000 “Light Public
Housing” in the next five years. This will stimulate the growth
of the construction industry and in turn, drive up the demand
for construction materials as well as our products. In addition,
the Hong Kong Government is keen on developing the Northern
Metropolis with a view to increasing the land supply as well as
innovation and technology development. We expect that there
will be a large number of infrastructure projects to be built in the
northern part of the new territories. We will benefit from such
initiatives and the rising demand for public housing development.
Against this backdrop, the Group remains cautiously optimistic
about the outlook of the construction industry in Hong Kong.

APPRECIATION

In closing, we thank our shareholders, customers, suppliers
and banks for their continuous support and confidence in the
Group. | would also like to thank our directors, management
team and employees for their commendable efforts and valuable
contribution to the Group over the years.

Lai Fulin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2023
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Mission and Strategy
55 i % SR

The business of the Group was commenced in 1949 as a pipe’s
retail shop. Now the Group has developed into a sizeable
company and become a listed company in the main board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 21 December 2000. We
root in Hong Kong 73 years and are the mainstay of the industry.

The principal business of the Group is the importing and selling
of a comprehensive range of pipes, fittings and other related
accessories of different materials, applications and brand names in
Hong Kong by Bun Kee (International) Limited (“Bun Kee"). Sales
of the Group’s products are conducted either by wholesale or
retail sale. We offered quality goods storage and logistic services
for local main contractors and landlords. Throughout the years,
the Group has supplied quality piping materials to many landmark
projects in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China.

The mission of the Group is to provide high quality products to
the customers and serve with value-added and excellent customer
services.

In attaining the above, we provide “one-stop-shop” platform that
provides high quality and a variety of pipes and fittings that readily
available to our customers in ways that meet their needs and

exceed their expectations.

Whenever you think pipes and fittings, think Bun Kee.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE

Our Business

The Group is a leading provider to the construction sector offering
a wide range of pipe (including copper tube, ductile iron and
steel pipes) related products, fittings, comprehensive services
and solutions to the contractors, designers, consultants and
government agencies in Hong Kong and Macau.

The Group's core business lies with our flagship subsidiary, Bun
Kee (International) Limited, a well-established company with a
long history. Starting from a small retail shop, we grew up to a
company listed in Hong Kong. We have become one-stop supplier
of a comprehensive range of pipes and fittings. The Group has
built a good reputation for the pipes and fittings business in Hong
Kong and Macau. We have established stable major customer and
supplier bases over the years.

Business Review

Despite the volatility of the COVID-19 pandemic continued in
2022, we still focus on the supplying of pipes and fittings. We
managed to procure some large projects’ orders to supply pipes
and fittings during the year under review including the new
acute hospital at Kai Tak Development area and Hong Kong
International Airport third runway concourse and apron works.

As building costs rise, by using the new technologies that
enhance design capabilities and productivity, Modular Integrated
Construction (“MiC") and Multi-trade Integrated MEP (“MiMEP")
are attractive to the developers. The Group is also actively
exploring the opportunities in capturing more orders from MiC
and MIMEP. We will work close with our suppliers in order to
achieve a win-win situation.

The Group’s revenue decreased by 6.7% to HK$636.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: HK$682.2 million). The
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was
HK$49.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
restated HK$56.4 million), representing a decrease of 12.8%. The
decrease in revenue was due to the reduction of one retail shop
and the completion of delivery for a large project last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

A T e 2 g M

For the year under review, other gains, net were about HK$4.1
million (2021: HK$2.1 million), representing an increase of
HK$2.0 million over last year. The increase was mainly attributable
to the receiving of the subsidies granted from the Hong Kong
Government under the Anti-epidemic Fund during the year under
review.

The Group’s selling and distribution costs decreased by 8.8%
year-on-year from HK$21.6 million in 2021 to HK$19.7 million
in 2022. The decrease was primarily attributable to the decrease
in consultancy fees, direct logistic staff costs and goods handling
charges which were partly offset by the increase in transportation
costs, overseas travelling expenses and motor vehicles running
expenses. The Group’s general and administrative expenses
amounted to approximately HK$101.4 million in 2022 (2021:
HK$108.6 million), representing a decrease of about 6.6%
year-on-year. The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in
staff costs, depreciation, testing fees and short-term and low-
value lease expenses which were partly offset by the increase in
professional fees, rates and building management fees, insurance
and consumable expenses.

Finance costs mainly consisted of the interest expenses on bank
borrowings and lease liabilities. During the year, the finance costs
were HK$5.9 million (2021: HK$5.8 million), representing an
increase by about 1.7% over last year. Such increase was mainly
attributable to the increase in interest rates on bank borrowings.
Finance income which was mainly from a loan to a related
party and bank deposits’ interest income, increased by 39.1%
from HK$4.6 million in 2021 to HK$6.4 million in 2022 due to
the increase in bank deposits interest rates. As finance income
outpaced costs, we recorded net finance income of HK$0.5
million (2021: a net finance costs of HK$1.2 million).

OUTLOOK

In the beginning of 2023, the COVID-19 restrictions in Hong Kong
were gradually lifted. We expect the economy in Hong Kong will
be revived gradually. We will remain vigilant in closely monitoring
the ever-changing market conditions and implement appropriate
strategies. As always, we will continue to exercise prudent
financial management and deploy cost-effective strategies. In
view of the development of Northern Metropolis in Hong Kong
and the Hong Kong Government’s commitment to accelerate the
housing supply, the Group remains cautiously optimistic about the
construction industry in Hong Kong.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2022, the cash and bank balances of the
Group were approximately HK$252.5 million (2021: HK$208.1
million) including pledged bank deposits of approximately
HK$46.0 million (2021: HK$36.0 million). Basically the Group’s
working capital requirement has been financed by its internal
resources. The funds generated from operations and the available
banking facilities will enable the Group to meet its future working
capital requirements.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had aggregate banking
facilities for trade finance of approximately HK$262.3 million
(2021: HK$262.3 million), approximately HK$54.5 million (2021:
HK$61.8 million) was utilised. The Group's total borrowings stood
at approximately HK$53.4 million (2021: HK$56.0 million), the
entire amount of borrowings for both years end will mature within
one year. 46% (2021: 18%) and 54% (2021: 82%) of borrowings
were subject to floating and fixed rates respectively.

The gearing ratio as measured by total bank borrowings to total
equity was approximately 7.9% as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
restated 9.0%).

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the entire amount of the
Group'’s borrowings was denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The Group conducts its business transactions mainly in Hong Kong
dollar, Macau Pataca, Renminbi and United States dollar. In order
to manage foreign exchange risk, the Group has been closely
monitoring its foreign currency exposure and will arrange for any
hedging facilities if necessary.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, certain bank deposits held by
subsidiaries of the Group with aggregate carrying amounts of
approximately HK$46.0 million (2021: bank deposits of HK$36.0
million and certificate of deposit of HK$10.0 million) were pledged
to banks for banking facilities.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at
31 December 2022 and 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

A T e 2 g M

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had capital commitments of
HK$0.53 million (2021: HK$0.56 million) in respect of Enterprise
Resources Planning system contracted for but not provided for in
consolidated financial statements.

STAFF AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed a total of 155
employees (2021: 148). Total employee benefit expenses for
the year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately HK$65.7
million (2021: HK$73.1 million).

Remuneration policy is reviewed annually and certain staff
members are entitled to sales commission. In addition to the basic
salaries and contributions to the mandatory provident fund, the
Group also pays discretionary bonus and provides staff with other
benefits including medical scheme to the employees in Hong
Kong. The Group contributes to an employee pension scheme
established by the PRC Government which undertakes to assume
the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of the Group in Mainland China. The Group adopted a
share option scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to motivate the eligible directors and employees of the
Group in recognition of their contributions to the Group.

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED # EIE X &£ B ER 2 7
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lai Fulin, aged 57, acted as an Executive Director of the
Company from October 2009 to May 2017 and continued to sit
on the senior management team of the Group thereafter. Mr.
Lai rejoined the Board as an Executive Director of the Company
on 27 November 2017 and was appointed as the Chairman of
the Board with effect from 30 March 2018. He is also a member
of the Chairman of Nomination Committee and a member of
Remuneration Committee of the Company. In addition, Mr. Lai
is the Head of Production & Purchasing of the Group and holds
directorships in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lai has
over 20 years of experience in the banking sector, investment
management and general management of companies in China.
Mr. Lai worked in the Bank of China in Shenzhen from 1986 to
2001. From 1995 to 2001, he was the deputy general manager
of a subsidiary of Bank of China dealing with businesses in the
securities industry. During the period from 2002 to 2008, Mr. Lai
was the general manager of Shenzhen Huaao Guanli Technologies
Company Limited* (RIITMERTE HEHBEEBRAF]). Mr.
Lai holds a certificate of graduation in Chinese Language from
Shenzhen Institute of Education* (&3I4 & £65%).

Mr. Lai is the younger brother of Mr. Lai Guanglin, the controlling
shareholder of the Company.

*  For identification purpose only

Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng, aged 58, was appointed as Executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company in May 2009.
Mr. Yu is responsible for managing overall daily operations of
the Group and the implementation of the Group’s development
strategies.

Mr. Yu has over 20 years of experience in investment
management, investment banking and general management of
listed companies. Mr. Yu began his career at Mackenzie Financial
Corporation in Toronto, Canada as an investment analyst in 1989
and since then, he has served several major financial corporations
including J.P. Morgan, Deutsche Bank and CITIC Capital. In
addition to his vast investment banking and management
experience, Mr. Yu has also managed listed companies such
as New World Cyberbase Limited and Asia Logistics Holdings
Limited in Hong Kong. During his past career, Mr. Yu has focused
on direct investment and mergers and acquisitions activities in
sectors including construction materials, infrastructure, energy,
technologies, media and financial services.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

HELARBEA B B

Mr. Yu holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in English Literature from
the Beijing Foreign Studies University, a Master of arts degree in
Education from the University of Toronto and a master’s degree
in business administration from the University of Western Ontario,
Canada.

Mr. Yu is a director of King Jade Holdings Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company which has an interest in the shares of
the Company that is required to be disclosed under Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson, aged 55, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in February
2009. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the
Company. Mr. Wong is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and member of Australia
CPA. He holds a master of commerce degree, specializing in
banking and finance from the University of New South Wales.
With more than 20 years of experience in PricewaterhouseCoopers
and Ernst and Young, Mr. Wong specializes in the area of auditing
banks and listed companies. He is now an independent non-
executive director of Ping An Securities Group (Holdings) Limited
(Stock code: 231, a company listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“HKSE"”), currently in liquidation) and PT
International Development Corporation Limited (Stock code: 372,
a company listed on HKSE).

Mr. Chen Wei Wen, aged 54, was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in April 2010. He is also
a member of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Chen holds
a Bachelor of Business (Accounting) from Monash University,
Australia. Mr. Chen worked as a general manager of Guangzhou
Futian Trading Company Ltd (EM T ERE S ERAF]) from
1997 to 2005. Since November 2004, Mr. Chen was appointed as
chief operating officer of Guangzhou Kanxin Polymer Technology
Co., Ltd (EMWELED FEHEER AR which is an affiliated
company of Guangzhou Futian Trading Company Ltd (E/NH=E
WNE S HBRRZAF]). Mr. Chen was also appointed as director and
general manager of Fuda Enterprises Limited (& MZEMEAR D
7]) since February 1998.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Guan Zhigiang, aged 60, was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in September 2016.
He is also the Chairman of Remuneration Committee, a
member of Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. Mr. Guan holds a bachelor of Agronomy from
Huazhong Agricultural University and a master degree in business
administration from Southwestern University of Finance. During
the period from 1984 to 1996, Mr. Guan had successively worked
in the Ministry of Agriculture of the People’s Republic of China
and the State Planning Commission. He subsequently joined
the Agricultural Development Bank of China and held various
senior management positions and was granted a qualification of
senior economist from the bank. From February 2002 to March
2003, Mr. Guan served as the general manager in New China
Life Insurance Company Ltd, Jinan branch. From March 2003
to November 2005, he worked in Yeland Group Co. Ltd. (now
known as HNA Investment Group Co., Ltd), a company listed on
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and was appointed as the chairman
of its group’s real estate company. Since 2005, Mr. Guan has
established an investment advisory firm and invested in a number
of enterprises which engaged in various fields including mining,
energy and biotechnology, etc., and acted as a director in those
enterprises. Mr. Guan is currently the vice chairman of Zhejiang
Ecopro Biotech Company, Ltd.* (J/ T EEEMEHLHRAF]) and
a director of Huoerguosi Poly Entertainment Culture Industry Co.,
Ltd* (ERRIABREIRLEZEBR A R]). He has extensive
experience in finance, investment and corporate management.

*  For identification purpose only
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

HELARBEA B B

Mr. Wang Chaolong, aged 63, was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in January 2023. He
is @ member of Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Wang holds
a Bachelor of Science in Physics from Peking University First
Campus*(It RKEE —54). Mr. Wang holds a certificate
of Certified Assets Manager issued by China Enterprise
Confederation in 2010 and qualified as a senior economist in
China Xinxing (Group) Corporation*(F BI#TE (5£[F) 22 7)) in
2000. He has extensive experience in corporate management.

Mr. Wang served as an assistant/lecturer of Beijing Machinery
Bureau Staff University*(Jb R4 B8k T K Z) from March
1983 to April 1991. He served as an engineer at the Science and
Technology Bureau of China State Shipbuilding Corporation*(#
B AH T2 4 A FRHE) from May 1991 to February 1994.
He served as a manager of the Operation Department of Beijing
Zhongchuan Gas Engineering Development Company* (1t &/ fit
R T2 A A48 2 36) from March 1994 to December 1994,

From December 1994 to May 1999, he served as division chief
and deputy division chief in investment department of China
Xinxing Industrial Development Company™*(F [ #7 & & % 2%
A 7"]) and served as vice general manager in China Xinxing
Industrial Development Company*(H Bl & % 25 & 2 &) from
June 1996 to October 1999. Mr. Wang served as a vice general
manager of China Xinxing Construction Real Estate Development
Corporation*(FE M TIREZEFWEMZEBL A E]) from
November 1999 to December 2001. From December 2001 to
June 2013, he served in China Xinxing Industrial Development
Company* (R Bl ¥ EL T 2 E A 7)), currently known as China
Xinxing Asset Management Company Limited* (5 B #7#& &
EEAMREMLAR), including general manager and executive
deputy general manager. Mr. Wang has been the chairman of
Shanghai Xinxing Medicine Co. Ltd.*(_t- /&7 B8 BEpg (3 A R A 7)
from July 2013 to September 2021.

*  For identification purpose only
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chow Wai Koon, Timothy, aged 53, was appointed as
Chief Operating Officer of the Company in January 2015. Mr.
Chow is responsible for directing, administering and co-ordinating
the operational activities of the Group. He is also responsible for
recommending and developing strategies, goals and policies of
the Group.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Chow devoted almost 20 years
to Hewlett-Packard group (“HP"”), a leading global IT provider of
products, technologies, software, solutions and services. While at
HP, Mr. Chow held several senior positions in sales, marketing,
business planning and finance in the Asia Pacific region including
China, Australia and Singapore.

Mr. Chow has extensive experience in sales and marketing in
the Asia Pacific region, particularly China, across consumer,
commercial and enterprise customers. In addition, Mr. Chow
has robust knowledge of end-to-end systems from research
and development, manufacturing and distribution to channel,
communication and customer support.

Mr. Chow holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
from the Macquarie Graduate School of Management, Australia,
and a Bachelor’s Degree of Accountancy from the Nanyang
Technological University, Singapore.

Mr. Cheng Siu Kwan, aged 53, joined the Company as the
Financial Controller in December 2012 and has been appointed
as the Company Secretary of the Company in February 2013.
Mr. Cheng is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Prior to joining the Company, Mr.
Cheng held various finance positions at a number of companies
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and has over
28 years of experience in auditing, finance and accounting.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

HELARBEA B B

Mr. Ku Chun Ming, aged 57, joined the Group in 1993
and currently is the Deputy Managing Director of Bun Kee
(International) Limited, the pipe trading subsidiary of the Group.
Mr. Ku is mainly responsible for the leadership, supervision and
long-term business development of pipes and fittings of the
Company. He has over 36 years of extensive experience in sales
and marketing activities.

Mr. Lai Kui Chung, aged 65, joined the Group in 1979 and is
the Warehouse Director of the pipe trading subsidiary, Bun Kee
(International) Limited. Mr. Lai is responsible for the warehouse
and transportation activities of the Group. He has over 43 years
of experience in supervising warehouse and transportation
operations. Mr. Lai holds a Certificate in Store Supervision from a
technical institute.

Mr. Tang Chik Loi, aged 49, joined the Group in 2001 and
currently is the Sales Director of the pipe trading subsidiary,
Bun Kee (International) Limited. Mr. Tang has over 20 years of
experience in piping business. He is responsible for the Group’s
business development and marketing, sourcing new customers,
maintaining and strengthening relationship with customers.

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED # EIE X &£ B ER 2 7
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China Pipe Group Limited (the “Company”) is committed to
maintain a high standard of corporate governance. The board
of directors of the Company (the “Board”) and management
maintain and enhance the policies and practices of the Company
on a timely, transparent, effective and reasonable manner, so as
to maintain good, solid and reasonable corporate governance. The
Company believes that good corporate governance is not only in
the interest of shareholders and investors but also in the interest
of the Company. The Company will continue to raise the standard
to formalize the best practice of corporate governance as far as
we could.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code") as stated in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout
the year ended 31 December 2022.

CORPORATE CULTURE

The Group recognises that a healthy corporate culture is vital for
the Group to achieve its vision and mission towards sustainable
growth. Throughout the years, the Group is committed to
developing a prudent corporate culture in managing financial
resources. This is reflected in our healthy financial position and
long history of operation. The Group believes that the culture
of treating our employees and customers well and with respect
and assuming our responsibilities is a triple-win situation for the
employees, customers and the Group in the long term. To achieve
this, the Group attaches great importance to conducting its
business honestly and with integrity at all times. The Group has
put in place a whistle-blowing policy and anti-corruption policy
in order to develop a culture of openness, accountability and
integrity. The Group will continue to foster its culture that is built
on its vision, mission and values.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rule (the “Model Code”). Having made specific
enquiry with the directors of the Company (“Directors”), all
Directors confirmed that they have fully complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Corporate Governance Report
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Corporate Governance Report
BB

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises six Directors,
including two executive Directors, Mr. Lai Fulin (the Chairman of
the Board) and Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng (the Chief Executive Officer);
and four independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Wong Yee
Shuen, Wilson, Mr. Chen Wei Wen, Mr. Guan Zhigiang and Mr.
Wang Chaolong (appointed on 3 January 2023), one of whom
namely, Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson has appropriate professional
accounting experience and expertise. Biographical details of the
Directors are set out in the section headed “BIOGRAPHICAL
DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT" of this
Annual Report.

Throughout the year, the Board has at least one-third in number
of its members comprising independent non-executive Directors
under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

Each of the non-executive Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) has entered into a service contract with
the Company and appointed for a term of one year. All Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the bye-laws
of the Company.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all the independent
non-executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that they are
independent.

To the best knowledge of the Company, except that Mr. Lai Fulin is
the younger brother of Mr. Lai Guanglin, a substantial shareholder
of the Company, there is no relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship) among
members of the Board.

The principal functions of the Board are to supervise the
management of the business and affairs; to approve the strategic
plans, investment and funding decision; to review the Group’s
financial performance and operating initiatives. The Board, led by
the Chairman, is responsible for formulating overall strategy and
polices, monitoring and controlling the performance of the Group.
In addition to its overall supervisory role, the Board also retains
specific responsibilities such as approving financial accounts,
approving annual budget, recommending dividend payments,
approving policies relating to the Board’s compliance, etc. whilst
managing the Group’s day- to-day operations is the responsibility
of the management of the Group (the “Management”) such as
implementing internal control, business strategies and plans set by
the Board, etc.. When the Board delegates certain aspects of its
management and administration functions to the Management, it
has given clear directions as to the powers of the Management.
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Independence

The Company has put in place mechanism to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board and such mechanism
will be reviewed annually by the Board. The Board has balance of
skills, knowledge and experience appropriate for the requirements
of the business and to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy. The Board membership is covered by professionally
qualified and widely experienced personnel to bring in valuable
contributions and different professional advices and consultancy
for development of the Company. All Directors have separate
and independent access to the advice and services of the senior
management and the company secretary with a view to ensuring
the board procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations
are followed. All Directors have independent access to external
independent professional advice from legal advisers and auditor
at the Company’s expense. All Directors are encouraged to speak
their views in an open and candid manner during the Board or
Board committees’ meetings. Any director (including independent
non-executive director) who has material interest in any contract,
transaction or arrangement shall abstain from voting on any Board
resolution approving the same. No equity-based remuneration
with performance-related elements will be granted to independent
non-executive directors.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director has received comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on appointment so as to ensure
that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and that he/she is fully aware of his/her
responsibilities under the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory
requirements.

The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or
updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations.

In addition, all Directors are provided with monthly updates on
the Company’s performance, position and prospects to enable the
Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.
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The Directors confirmed that they have complied with the code
provision C.1.4 of the Code on Directors’ training. During the
year, all Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars and/or reading materials on
the following topics to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills and provided a record of training to the Company.

Name of Directors EENE
Mr. Lai Fulin FERREE ST
Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng BRESRE
Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson BUEEE
Mr. Chen Wei Wen BRIZ e 4
Mr. Guan Zhigiang BEETE
Mr. Wang Chaolong* FRAgRAE
Notes: Hfat -

: Corporate Governance C: hEER

: Finance and Accounting F: BB RS

: Listing Rules Updates L: EmRAIMER

: Other Relevant Regulatory Updates R HAubiEREEIR A E 3T

o~ TN

*

ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The position of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company are held by separate individuals. The role
of the Chairman is separated from that of the Chief Executive
Officer. Such division of responsibilities helps to reinforce their
independence and accountability.

Mr. Lai Fulin takes up the role of providing leadership for the
Board and ensures that the Board works effectively and discharges
its responsibility properly. With the support of executive Directors
and the Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all
Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at board meetings
and receive adequate and reliable information in a timely manner.
The Chairman also ensures that good corporate governance
practice is in force from time to time, and all key issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner.

Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
is responsible for managing overall daily operations of the Group,
the implementation of the Group’s development strategies and
plans and to perform other responsibilities as assigned by the
Board.
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect
of potential legal actions against its Directors and officers.

BOARD MEETING

The Board meets regularly, and at least four times a year,
additional meetings are convened when deemed necessary by
the Board. Board members are provided with complete, adequate
and timely information to allow the Directors to fulfill their duties
properly. In addition, Directors have full access to information
on the Group and independent professional advice whenever
deemed necessary by the Directors. In addition, the Chairman and
non-executive Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) meet at least once every year without the presence of
executive Directors.

During the year, the Board met regularly and held nine meetings.
Notices and board papers were given to all Directors prior to the
board meetings in accordance with the Code. The Chairman and
non-executive Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) met once without the presence of executive Directors.
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EE R
Meetings held in 2022 REBZZFEITNGE
Details of the Directors’ attendance at Board meetings, Board BNEBEER_ZE__FoHRREELEE
committee meetings and general meetings (including an annual EEER TR MRRAG(BE KX
general meeting and two special general meetings) respectively BREBEFAE R ZARRFRAS) MLFEL
held in 2022 are set out as below: BEEEIBEAT
Attended/Eligible to attend
HERY/ RERERRE
Audit Nomination Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
ERZEE RE¥ZEE FMzEe
Ezgex 23 = =f BRAE
Number of Meetings Held SRETRY 9 3 2 2 3
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lai Fulin RREEEE 99 - 22 22 33
Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng MRERAE 99 - - - 33
Independent Non-executive ~ BIFHTESE
Directors
Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson ~ ELAE%AE 8/9 3/3 - - 213
Mr. Chen Wei Wen REXEE 99 33 22 22 33
Mr. Guan Zhigiang BEREE 99 33 212 22 33
Mr. Wang Chaolong FHERAE N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
(Appointed on 3 January 2023) (R=—ZF-=% NEMA N ek ek N

—A=REZ{)
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BOARD COMMITTEES

A number of Board committee, including audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee, have
been established by the Board to strengthen its functions and
to enhance its expertise. All committees have been formed with
specific written terms of reference which deals clearly with the
respective committees’ authorities and duties.

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee
comprises four members including one executive Director, namely
Mr. Lai Fulin and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chen Wei Wen, Mr. Guan Zhigiang and Mr. Wang
Chaolong (appointed on 3 January 2023). It is chaired by Mr.
Guan Zhigiang.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee
are as follows:

(@) To make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b) To review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

(0 To make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive directors
and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments (including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office
or appointment); and

(d) To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive directors.

The remuneration package of executive Directors is determined
by reference to their duties and responsibilities, experience and
the prevailing market conditions. The remuneration package of
individual executive Directors includes salary, discretionary bonus
and share-based payment. Details of the Directors’ fee and other
emoluments of the Directors of the Company are set out in Note
32 to the financial statements.
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The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model that it
will review the proposals made by the management on the
remuneration of executive Directors and senior management,
and make recommendations to the Board. The Board will have
final authority to approve the recommendations made by the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during 2022,
the following major matters were reviewed and discussed in the
meetings and recommended to the Board for approval:

e To review the remuneration policy and remuneration
packages of Directors and senior management of the
Company;

e To consider the bonus arrangement of the Directors and
senior management of the Company; and

e To review the new service contracts entered into between
the Company and non-executive Directors.

Pursuant to the code provision E.1.5 of the Code, the details
remuneration of the senior management of the Company by band
for the year ended 31 December 2022 was set out in Note 8 to
the consolidated financial statements of this Annual Report.

Nomination Committee

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
comprises four members including an executive Director, Mr. Lai
Fulin, and three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Chen
Wei Wen, Mr. Guan Zhigiang and Mr. Wang Chaolong (appointed
on 3 January 2023). It is chaired by Mr. Lai Fulin, the Chairman of
the Board.
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Board Diversity Policy

In August 2013, the Company adopted the Board Diversity Policy.
Such policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity on Board.
With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board. The Nomination Committee
reviewed the Board's composition under diversified perspectives,
and monitored the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy
annually.

Having reviewed the Board composition, the Board recognises the
importance and benefits of gender diversity at the Board level and
shall continue to take initiatives to identify female candidate(s) to
enhance the gender diversity among the Board members. We will
appoint at least one female representation in our Board before 31
December 2024. As of the date of this report, 100% of Directors
and 66% of our total workforce were male. We will continue with
our endeavor to increase female representation in our Board.

Nomination Policy

In December 2018, the Company adopted the Nomination Policy.
According to the policy, the Nomination Committee (“NC")
will consider candidates recommended by shareholders in the
same manner as candidates recommended to the NC from other
sources. In its evaluation of director candidates, including the
members of the Board eligible for re-election, the NC will consider
(1) The current size and composition of the Board and the needs
of the Board and the respective committees of the Board; (2)
Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service; and (3) Other factors that
the NC may consider appropriate.
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The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are as
follows:

(a

To review the structure, size and composition (board diversity
has been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

To identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships.
All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board;

To review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, and
disclose the Board Diversity Policy or its summary in the
corporate governance report of the Company including
the measurable objectives set for implementing the Board
Diversity Policy and progress made towards achieving these
measurable objectives;

To review the policy for the nomination of Directors
(“Nomination Policy”) as appropriate. The Nomination Policy
shall set out, inter alia, the nomination procedures and
process and criteria to select and recommend candidates for
directorship;

To assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and

To make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors in particular the chairman and the chief executive.
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The Nomination Committee held two meetings during 2022,
the following major issues were reviewed and discussed in the
meeting:

To review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

To review the Board Diversity Policy;

To make recommendation to the Board for approval the
revised terms of reference of the Nomination Committee;

To make recommendation to the Board on the appointment
of director; and

To evaluate and make recommendation as to the
qualification and experience of the directors who were
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the 2022
annual general meeting.

Audit Committee

As at the date of this report, Audit Committee consists of four
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Yee
Shuen, Wilson, Mr. Chen Wei Wen, Mr. Guan Zhigiang and Mr.
Wang Chaolong (appointed on 3 January 2023). It is chaired
by Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson who has the appropriate
professional qualifications, accounting and financial management
expertise.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are as
follows:

(a

To make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and
to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor, and any questions of its resignation or
dismissal;

To monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and to review significant financial reporting judgements
contained in them;

To review the Company’s financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems; and

To discuss the risk management and internal control
Systems with management to ensure that management has
performed its duty to have effective systems.
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The Audit Committee held three meetings during 2022 and the
following major matters were reviewed and discussed in the
meetings:

To review the annual results of 2021 and the interim results
of 2022 and making recommendation to the Board for
approval;

To make recommendation on the reappointment of the
auditor;

To review the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting function and their training programme and related
budget;

To review the risk management, internal control systems and
annual internal audit plans;

To review connected transactions entered into by the Group
or subsisting during the year;

To approve the auditor’'s remuneration for audit of 2022
financial statements; and

To discuss the audit service plan of 2022.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board adopted the written terms of reference on corporate
governance functions in March 2012 so as to assist the Board
performing corporate governance functions. The terms of
reference of the Board in respect of corporate governance
functions are summarized as follows:

(a)

(b)

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED

To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior

management;

To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
to ensure compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
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(d) To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(e) To review the Company’s compliance with the code
provisions set out in the Code contained in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules and its disclosure requirements in Corporate
Governance Report.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the Company'’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuing
professional development of Directors and senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code,
and the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report.

This corporate governance report has been reviewed by the Board
in discharge of its corporate governance functions.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees charged by the auditor generally depends on the
scope and volume of the auditor’s work. For the year ended 31
December 2022, the remuneration to the auditor of the Company
in respect of audit services was HK$1,310,000 and fees related
to taxation services and other non-audit services amount to
HK$102,000 and HK$90,000 respectively.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. The senior
management provides such explanation and information to the
Board so as to enable the Board to make an informed assessment
of the financial information and position of the Company.

The Directors acknowledge the responsibilities for preparing the
accounts of the Company. The responsibilities of the auditor
of the Company with respect to the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages
109 to 117.
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GOING CONCERN

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that
the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it
is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate system of
risk management and internal controls within the Group and for
reviewing their effectiveness. The systems of risk management
and internal control are designed to facilitate effective and
efficient operations, to safeguard assets and to ensure the quality
of internal and external reporting and compliance control and risk
management functions. It is also designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance that material misstatement or loss
can be avoided, and to manage and minimize risks of failure in
operation systems.

The Group has set up a risk management system to provide
directions in identifying, evaluating and managing significant
risks and is reviewed at least on an annual basis. The senior
management of the Group identifies risks that would adversely
affect the achievement of the Group’s objectives, and assesses
and prioritizes the identified risks according to a set of standard
criteria.

The Board has engaged an independent professional advisor
to perform ongoing monitoring of the risk management and
internal control review to assess the effectiveness of the financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions of the Company and the Group’s major subsidiaries on
a rotation basis.

Risk management report and internal control report are submitted
to the Audit Committee at least once a year. The Board, through
the Audit Committee, had performed annual review on the
effectiveness of the Group's risk management system and internal
control system, including the scope on risk management and
internal control systems, result of internal audit work and status of
compliance control.

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED # EIE X &£ B ER 2 7

HERE

EXHEFHEETHE  RA/ARREER
DERNERRRGREBLE - SRR
BHRRSRAKELEIEERDEE -

R\ i e PR R B4

ExgRERAKBER—EARHARZE
RERRANMEIERS - UARBEHYEK -
RRERERAREREERTIRESEE N
RENE REEE - BERABRINERS
ZEER  AREEERMEAREEDE
R NREEASRE EAIE (MIEBE) RE
BESE R L IRBERBHBRNEN - A E
B LR EEER G LR -

AREBECHIERRER RS - IRHEER - 5T
[BMNEEEARBRMNES  YELTFR
AR AEENSREEESHRIEAE
BiERk B RER TN BN R - WRE—
EREAERITEE R RS A s Bl B O B SR IR
B o

EFREERBUIRBNUARARAL
B2 EEHBEANRRERETHEEER
BRI BRI A B A
ARERE RSN E 2 ABERE R
e

RREREREMARERREHELEF—
RREXTEZEZER - EFRCLBEBERZE
SERAEENRARERERGRAIMEIER
FREHVETFERY - BREARERER
MEBEEIE T RIS - BT TIEER - A
RERIBR -



At the meeting of the Audit Committee held on 23 March 2023,
the independent professional advisor reported their review work
for the year ended 31 December 2022 performed in accordance
with the detailed risk-based internal control review plan which
was approved by the Audit Committee and the risk management
report was also circulated to the Audit Committee for review. The
Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management system
and internal control system for the year ended 31 December
2022. The Audit Committee members, together with the senior
management, have also reviewed, considered and discussed
the risk management system, all findings relating to the internal
control system and recommendations for improvement. The Board
considers the risk management system and internal control system
of the Group were effective and adequate during the year.

The Audit Committee also reviewed and was satisfied with the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting function.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is Mr. Cheng Siu Kwan,
who is also the Financial Controller of the Company. Mr. Cheng
is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He fulfills the requirement under
Rules 3.28 and 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

The Company Secretary is responsible for providing secretarial
services to the Board and ensuring the operation of the Company
is properly complied with Hong Kong listed companies’ regulatory
requirements as well as enhancing its corporate governance
standards. All Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary with a view to ensuring that board
procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.
Company Secretary is also the secretary of each of Board
committees. Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of all Board
committees are kept by the Company Secretary and are available
for inspection by the Directors at all times.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Right to convene special general meeting

Pursuant to Section 74(1) of the Bermuda Companies Act and the
bye-law 62 of the Bye-laws of the Company, the shareholder(s) of
the Company holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
as at the date of the deposit carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company may request the Board to convene a
special general meeting. The requisition must state the purposes
of the meeting, and must be signed by the requisitionists and
deposited at the registered office of the Company and its head
office and principal place of business in Hong Kong for the
attention of Company Secretary and may consist of several
documents in like form each signed by one or more requisitionists.
If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of
the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting,
the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a
meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the said date.

Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s share registrar. Other
shareholders’ enquiries can be directed to the head office and
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong as set
out in the “Corporate Information” section of this Annual Report
for the attention of Company Secretary.

Right to put forward proposals at general meetings

Pursuant to Sections 79(1) and 79(2) of the Bermuda Companies
Act, on the requisition in writing of either (i) any number of
members of the Company representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of all the members having at
the date of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which
the requisition relates; or (i) not less than one hundred members,
the Company shall, at the expense of the requisitionists unless the
Company otherwise resolves:

(@) to give to members of the Company entitled to receive notice
of the next annual general meeting notice of any resolution
which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved
at that meeting;
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(b) to circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any
general meeting sent to them any statement of not more
than one thousand words with respect to the matter referred
to in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with
at that meeting.

A copy or copies of requisition signed by all requisitionists shall
be deposited, with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in giving notice of the proposed resolution
or circulating any necessary statement, at the registered office of
the Company and its head office and principal place of business in
Hong Kong in the case of:

(i)  arequisition requiring notice of a resolution, not less than six
weeks before the meeting; and

(i) any other requisition, not less than one week before the
meeting.

The Company will verify the requisition and upon confirming that
the requisition is proper and in order, the Board will proceed with
the necessary procedures.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board is obliged to provide regular, effective and fair
communication with the shareholders and the investors of the
Company. Latest information is conveyed to the Shareholders and
the investors of the Company on a timely basis. A Shareholder
Communication Policy (the “Policy”) was adopted by the
Company in March 2012. The Policy aims to set out the provisions
with the objective of ensuring that the latest information of
the Company is conveyed to the Shareholders and investors on
a timely basis. The Company uses a range of communication
tools to ensure the Shareholders and the investors are kept well
informed of key business imperatives.

Disclosure of Information

Information shall be communicated to Shareholders and the
investors mainly through the Company’s financial reports (interim
report and annual report), annual general meetings and other
general meetings that may be convened, as well as by making
available all the disclosures submitted to The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) and its
corporate communications and other corporate publications on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website.
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General Meeting

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or
to appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on their
behalf if they are unable to attend the meetings. Shareholders’
views on matters that affect the Company are welcome by the
Board at shareholders’ meetings. Shareholders of the Company
are notified of shareholders” meetings through notices and reports
or circulars sent to them. Each item of special business in the
notice of the meeting is accompanied, where appropriate, by an
explanation for the proposed resolution. A separate resolution
is proposed by the chairman of the meetings in respect of each
separate issue, including the re-election of Directors.

The Chairman of the Board and Chairmen of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee or failing him/her, his/her duly appointed delegate, are
available at the annual general meeting to answer questions with
regard to the work of these committees.

Voting by Poll

Save as provided under the Listing Rules, resolutions put to vote
at the general meetings of the Company (other than procedural
matters) are taken by poll. Procedures regarding the conduct of
the poll are explained to the shareholders at the commencement
of each general meeting, and questions from shareholders
regarding the voting procedures are answered. The poll results are
posted on the respective websites of the Company and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange on the same day of the poll.

WHISTLE BLOWING POLICY

The Group is committed to achieving and maintaining the highest
standards of openness, probity and accountability. The Board of
the Company adopted the Whistle Blowing Policy in accordance
with the requirements of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 26
May 2022. It provides formal channels and guidance to facilitate
the raising matters of concern by employees of the Group and
those deal with the Group, in confidence, without fear of reprisals.
Details of the Whistle Blowing Policy of the Company are disclosed
on the Company'’s corporate website (Www.chinapipegroup.com).
The policy is subject to review by the Audit Committee periodically
to improve its effectiveness and employee confidence in the
process and to encourage a “speak up” culture.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

The Group is committed to upholding integrity, honesty,
fairness, impartiality and ethical business practices as our Group's
core values and has zero tolerance for corruption and related
malpractice. The Board adopted the Anti-Corruption Policy in
accordance with the requirements of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange on 26 May 2022. It provides a reporting mechanism
of suspected corruption practices. Details of the Anti-Corruption
Policy of the Company are disclosed on the Company’s corporate
website (www.chinapipegroup.com). The policy is subject to
review by the Board of the Company periodically to ensure that it
is operating effectively and whether any changes to the policy are
required.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company maintains a website (www.chinapipegroup.com)
where information and updates on the list of directors and
their roles and functions, constitutional documents, terms of
reference of the Board committees, procedures for shareholders
to propose a person for election as a director, announcements,
circulars and reports, etc. released to the HKExnews' website
(www.hkexnews.hk) and other information are posted.
Information on the Company’s website will be updated from
time to time. A dedicated email address (ir@chinapipegroup.com)
for investor enquiry is set out in the “IR Contact” section on the
Company'’s website.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

On 14 November 2022 Special General Meeting, a special
resolution was passed to adopt the new memorandum of
association and bye-laws of the Company. The consolidated
version of new memorandum of association and bye-laws is
available on the websites of the Company and the HKExnews'
website.
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BRYE - g BB R,
About China Pipe
R o 4 2

China Pipe Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred as “China Pipe” or “Group” or “we"” or
"us") commenced its business in 1949 as a retail shop of pipes.
The Group has now developed into a large-scale enterprise. On
21 December 2000, the Group became a listed company on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
With a deeply rooted foundation in Hong Kong for 73 years, we
have been the mainstay of the industry. The main business of
the Group is import and sale of various pipes, fittings and other
related accessories products covering various kinds of material,
uses and brands, by Bun Kee (International) Limited (“Bun Kee")
in Hong Kong (“HKSAR”) and Macau. The Group’s products are
sold via wholesale or retail, and provides high-quality storage and
transportation services to major local contractors and owners.

Over the years, the Group has supplied high-quality pipes to
various landmark projects in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland
China. In addition to continuously improving the comprehensive
strength of the Group, we also maintain the original stable
development in the pipe industry, and are committed to
introducing high-quality products, technologies and resources
from all over the world into the China, Hong Kong and Macau
markets to support business development and promote regional
economic growth.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

This is an environmental, social and governance report (referred
to as the “Report”) issued by China Pipe. This Report outlines
our environmental, social and governance (referred to as "ESG")
strategies, work and performance, allowing stakeholders to
have a better understanding of the progress and development
of sustainable development issues of the Group. This Report is
prepared in both Chinese and English. You may access the Report
by clicking Financial Reports under Investors Relations section on
the Company’s website (www.chinapipegroup.com) or relevant
documents by browsing through the HKEXnews' website of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Reporting Period and Scope

The board of directors is responsible for determining the scope of
the Report. The Report covers the period from 1 January 2022 to
31 December 2022 (the “Year” or “Reporting Period” or “2022")
regarding the ESG performance of the core business of the Group,
namely the trading of construction materials, mainly pipes and
fittings, based on the principle of materiality. The scope of this
Report, which is different from the 2021’s, includes:

—  One office, one warehouse and two retail shops in Hong
Kong;

—  One retail shop in Macau; and
—  One office in Shenzhen.

In the Reporting Scope of the 2021 report included one office,
one warehouse and three retail shops in Hong Kong, which one
of the retail shops in Tsuen Wan ceased operations in November
2021. The office in Tsim Sha Tsui was also relocated to Mong
Kok in June 2022, while the retail shop in Mong Kok was also
relocated from No. 687 Shanghai Street to No. 716 Shanghai
Street, Hong Kong in April 2022.

Reporting Standards

This Report is prepared based on the ESG Reporting Guide (the
“Guide") under Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("HKEX"), with all the covered contents having been complied
with the mandatory disclosure requirements and the comply or
explain provisions in the Guide and adhered to the four reporting
principles of materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency.
Readers could refer to the last section of the Report: Appendix II:
ESG Reporting Guide Content Index of HKEX for quick reference.
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Reporting Principles

bE SRR Al

Materiality
B2t

Interpretation

B

The materiality of ESG issues of the Group
is determined by the Board of Directors.
The process and criteria of stakeholder
communication and material issue
identification are disclosed in this Report.
REBESGEENEEZEUHESEET -
FHEBAREZMZ BN A BIZFAE
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China Pipe’s Response

PEIEREE

The Group understands the expectations of
stakeholders through questionnaires, so as
to identify and report on the Group’s major
sustainable development issues, and make
relevant disclosure.
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Quantitative

g1t

Key performance indicators must be
measurable and comparable where
appropriate.
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The data of the Group's key performance
indicators are from the statistics of the
relevant departments. In this Report, we
disclose the statistical standards, methods,
sources of conversion factors, etc., for the
guantitative key performance indicators.
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Balance

¥

This Report presents the Group's performance
during the Reporting Period in an impartial
manner, and avoid choices, omissions or
presentation formats that may inappropriately
influence the decisions or judgments of readers
of the Report.

KR EMe MEH 2 RA S BN R E BRI
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The Group adopts the principles of objectivity
and fairness to detail its achievements in
sustainable development, challenges it faces
and its ESG performance.
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Consistency

—EH

The statistical methods used for data
disclosure in this Report, unless otherwise
specified, are consistent with those of
previous years.

R ERBEIEMERANSE A - &
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The Group adopts a consistent approach
in reporting and compiling ESG data for
easy comparison. Any changes will be
clearly stated in the Report.
AEERB BT ERBERERERE
ESGEUE - ABIELLE - BEE - HR
WEPBLEHRA °
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Report Approval

All information cited in this Report comes from the official
documents, statistical data of China Pipe and its management
and operation information collected according to the Group’s
system. The Group has established internal controls and formal
review procedures to ensure that all information presented in this
Report is accurate and reliable. Members of the Environmental,
Social and Governance Working Team (“ESG Working Team”)
are responsible for formulating and disclosing relevant measures
and key performance indicators. This Report was approved by the
Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) on 28 March
2023.

Report Feedback

The Group is committed to establishing a more detailed and sound
sustainable development strategy. We attach great importance to
your views on this Report. If you have any inquiries or comments
on this Report or the Group’s sustainable development policies,
feel free to contact us via email (ir@chinapipegroup.com).
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Even after three years of COVID-19 pandemic, China Pipe still
maintains all businesses in full operation, thanks to the strong
efforts and support from the employees and shareholders of the
Group. While meeting our business objectives, we also advocate
the principles of sustainable development. We pay attention to
and support the green concept of sustainable development, and
continuously introduce advanced technologies in the world to
both enhance economic development and protect environment.
Meanwhile, China Pipe has also begun to incorporate
environmental protection and management into the company’s
business decision-making as part of its development strategy
to achieve the consistency of its own development and social
sustainable development goals.

The market has been more concerned about the short-term,
medium-term and long-term impact of corporate values on ESG
and other sustainability factors. There is also increasing emphasis
on the regulation of ESG areas around the globe. Our established
ESG Working Team, as always, actively integrates sustainable
development work into daily operations, and continuously
monitors the Group’s ESG policies, initiatives and performance,
which effectively improve the Group’s performance. We continue
to contribute to the environment and society and create values for
stakeholders.

Besides, to meet the growing expectations and demands of
our stakeholders and society for sustainable development as
much as possible, we are determined to enhance the Group’s
environmental and social performance. Through the ESG report,
we continue to enhance our stakeholders’ awareness of ESG issues
and the Group’s governance capabilities to maintain the overall
performance of the company.

We promise to incorporate green operations into corporate
development while developing our business. In the future, China
Pipe will strive to improve energy efficiency, reduce waste and
carbon emissions, and strengthen the management and disclosure
of environmental and climate information, so as to be in line with
the trend of global environmental protection policies.
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As a company that cares about the society, we advocate the
belief of contributing to the society, seeking innovative ways to
give back to society, and continuing to undertake our corporate
social responsibility. We encourage employees to organize and
participate in voluntary activities and support them to do so
continually. We also provide monetary or material donations to
charities or designated organizations. The Company was awarded
the Caring Company logo by the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service for five consecutive years, which is a recognition for the
Group and its employees.

Adhering to the vision of Global Assets, International Platform,
Serving China, we continue to explore new areas of business
development and gradually move towards internationalization and
specialization. The Group continues to adhere to its mission of
providing customers with quality products, providing value-added
services and maintaining product quality and safety. | would like
to extend my utmost sincere thanks and respect on behalf of the
Group to every stakeholder supporting China Pipe.

Chief Operating Officer
Chow Wai Koon Timothy
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BR5E - e LR
Sustainable Development Strategy
] AR S R

Statement of the Board

In order to further promote ESG matters of the Group and
promote sustainable development, we have established an ESG
Working Team directly led by the Board to monitor ESG matters
of the Group more effectively. The Board bears full responsibility
regarding the Group's ESG strategy, approach and reporting.

Under the leadership of the Board, the ESG Working Team
conducted a materiality assessment this Year to understand
the concerns and requirements of various stakeholders so as to
determine the Group’s ESG management approaches, strategies,
priorities and goals. The goals show the effectiveness of China
Pipe’s ESG policy and management system, and the relevant
policies will be improved according to the progress of the goals.
In future, we will review the relevant goals’ progress to improve
sustainability work.

ESG Governance Structure

China Pipe has integrated the concept of sustainable development
into the Group's operations and has formulated several policies to
promote sustainable development. Our ESG governance structure
is as follows:

The Board
BExg

ExgEy

BE—SHBAEESGEE @ RETMFE
BR O BRMEKYI THESTGEEEER
ESGT e/ - MBI EE AERER
ESGEE - EF U AEBERESGRES « H&f
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EESENRET  ESGTIENEARAEE
BBEEMTEUNTRSENENEEINE
o AEEAREBMESGEE AL « R -
BAEZEMEZE - EFHBIZEMBTRTEH
EEMESGHREMEBRAFHNAR  XERA
& B2 E e S ARRAECR o FEARR - HFIB
RBEBEEREER  UNCETEERR
THE-

ESGERZEE
FREEIPAREREESRANEBNL
BIEETR - WHITE T ZEBE LS A
EWRFEMHIIE - RITWESGEAZEEM
T 3

Chairman of the ESG Working Team

ESG TE/E=EfE

Members of the ESG Working Team
ESG T{E/MERKE

We are committed to improving sustainability performance, and
the ESG Working Team is mainly responsible for monitoring the
policy implementation and work of sustainable development. The
ESG Working Team, directly overseen by the Board, is chaired
by the Chief Operating Officer, with various department heads/
managers as the members.
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Sustainable Development Strategy

The main responsibilities of the Board include:

— Resolving, reviewing and approving the Group’s ESG
management approaches, strategies, goals and annual work;

—  Assessing, prioritizing and managing material ESG issues,
risks and opportunities; and

—  Reviewing and approving annual ESG reports.
The main responsibilities of the ESG Working Team include:

— Reviewing and monitoring the Group’s ESG policies,
initiatives and performances, including employment
and labour practices, community engagement, product
responsibility and environmental protection, etc.;

— Communicating with stakeholders through appropriate
channels; and

—  Reporting regularly and make recommendations to the
Board.

Communication with Stakeholders

China Pipe firmly believes that the long-term interests and
sustainable development of the Group are based on the support
and trust of the stakeholders. We will actively maintain close and
harmonious relations with various stakeholders and listen to their
views and expectations and properly respond to their needs to
achieve long-term success.

We contact the following stakeholders through various channels
such as phone, emails, questionnaires, daily meetings, factory
tours, networking events by relevant associations to collect
their views on relevant ESG issues. The followings are our
communication approaches with key stakeholders:
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Sustainable Development Strategy
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Key stakeholders Communication approaches
TEHGE BEAN

Clients e Daily operation/communication
B e Phones/emails

e HEZE /XM

s EFEEH

Shareholders/Investors e Annual general meetings and other shareholders’ meetings
R TEH e Interim report and annual report

e Result announcement

o BRAFAKGHHEMKRRAS

o ERERFR

Employees e Channels for employees to express their opinions (e.g.: form,
8T suggestion box)

e Performance appraisal

e \/olunteer work, recreational activities
e Seminars/Workshops/Intranet

o BIXRFEELRNERBEGKE ERMES)
o ENMGTEEH

e RBRIEH - REED

o HEE IR NEAE

Community/ e Volunteer activities’community activities
Non-Governmental Organization e Seminars/lectures/workshops
M, FEBTE 88 e BILEY HMREH

o HE® R/ I{EH
Associations e Meetings/phones/emails/recreational activities
EESER s BRE/EE/EBB MREDY
Suppliers/Business Partner e Work inspection and supervision
HrER, Rt e Meetings/phones/emails

.« THEREREE
.« B3/EE/EH
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Sustainable Development Strategy

Materiality Assessment

To allocate resources more effectively and promote the
development of ESG work, during the Year, the Group
considered its operating performance and topics of concern of
various stakeholders and the best practice in the industry, with
reference to the disclosure obligations under the Guide and the
Materiality Map issued by the Sustainability Accounting Standards
Board (SASB). In addition, we sorted out the identified material
ESG issues, and invited internal and external stakeholders to
participate in the online questionnaire survey, so that we can
better understand the expectations of various stakeholders. With
all these information, we could identify ESG material issue to the
Group.

The online questionnaire covers a number of key ESG issues.
The Group ranks material ESG issues based on the questionnaire
feedback from various stakeholders to ensure the assessment
results are accurate and objective.

We examine the importance of each issue based on the two
dimensions of Materiality to the Group and Materiality to
Stakeholders and create a materiality assessment matrix to
summarize the materiality assessment results.

After analysis, the Group has prioritized the material ESG issues,
including 5 highly material issues, 3 material issues and 4 ordinary
issues.

The following ESG materiality issues results have been reviewed
and approved by the Board.
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BRBE - R RAEREE
Sustainable Development Strategy
IR A R S

2022 China Pipe’s Materiality Matrix
2022 EHEE XN ERHIER

High

HISHENEENY

Ordinary Issues
—REEZHE

Materiality to Stakeholders

Environment and
natural resources
BRRRRER

Climate change
RIRE L

Emissions
7974 Community investment
HERIRE

Emissions

734

Use of Resources
ARfER

Environment and natural resources
BRRERRARER

Climate change

FIRE(

Employment

=%

Health and safety
femaRe

Development and training
BRAE

Labour standards
TR

Supply chain management
HEBER

Product liability

EREE

Anti-corruption

REB

Community investment
HERE

Low L
Materiality to the Group

HEAKENEES

Highly Material Issues

Material Issues

High

Ordinary Issues

BEEESRE TEEERE —REEZE
Employment Product liability Climate change

1% EmEE RIREL

Health and safety Supply chain management Environment and natural resources
REEZE HregEE RIERRAER
Development and training Use of Resources Community investment
B RAIE BIRER HEKRE
Anti-corruption Emissions

RER B

Labour Standards

& TR

In response to the concerns of stakeholders, this Report elaborates
the Group’s policies, measures and performance related to
important ESG issues during the Reporting Period. In addition,
we will also review relevant ESG policies and make appropriate
adjustments in the future to meet the expectations of our
stakeholders.
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Sustainable Development Strategy

Risk Management

In order to effectively formulate a risk management system
to identify, assess, process, control or reduce various major
operational, governance and ESG risks, the Group has specially
formulated the Risk Management Report. The Board is responsible
for the supervision and management of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems, as well as reviewing
their effectiveness, including establishing a clear enterprise risk
management framework and risk management policies. The Board
needs to fully understand all the material risks that will affect
the Company and how the management manages these risks
to ensure the Company'’s business objectives can be reasonably
achieved. The management also regularly reports the risks
faced by the Group and its changes to the Board and the Audit
Committee, and establishes internal control measures to mitigate
risks.

We have developed a risk management system that provides
guidelines and standards for risk identification, assessment,
treatment and risk reporting. Business unit heads identify and
manage opportunities arising from unavoidable risks in order to
achieve the company’s business objectives. We identified and
assessed adverse risks which affected the Group’s achievement
of its objectives. The assessment and treatment methods are
recorded in the Risk Register for the management to review and
continuously monitor.

The Audit Committee under the Board assists the Board in
continuously monitoring the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems, and reviews the effectiveness of relevant
systems at least once a year. Before conducting the on-site work
of internal audit, the Group will prepare an internal audit plan
based on the results of the risk assessment. The results of the
internal audit will be used for communication among different
business unit heads, who are responsible for following up on
internal control recommendations and improvements. Thereafter,
each business unit head is required to update the risk-responding
plans for various risk levels in the Risk Register for further
assessment and monitoring.

The Group is committed to incorporating sustainability governance
factors into its risk management systems and procedures to
identify the Group'’s related risks and formulate countermeasures.
We will continue to improve our ESG performance to enhance
business sustainability in an ever-changing business environment.
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Compliant Business Environment
HREHBRE

As a leading provider of pipes and fittings, China Pipe has set
high requirements on the supply chain and product quality, and
is committed to providing customers with high-quality products
and services while improving the supply chain. The Group has
formulated internal rules and regulations such as the Supplier
Management System, the Procurement Management System,
the Product Responsibility Policy and the Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy to ensure product quality, reduce supply chain
risks, improve product reliability and satisfy clients’ needs.

Product Quality Control

Product quality assurance is regarded as top priority of China
Pipe. The Group will base on the Product Responsibility Policy
to conduct tests on relevant institutes regarding reliability,
compatibility and safety specification, and obtain product
qualification certification. When we supply products to customers,
it is required to meet the specifications and quality specified by
customers, and comply with the relevant requirements of local
government departments for the products. During the Year, all
products of the Group (specified types of pipes or fittings under
regulation) are granted qualifications of General Acceptance
(commonly known as acceptance letter) by the Hong Kong Water
Supplies Department (“WSD").

Waterworks Regulations-the General Acceptance
qualification of plumbing products

The Water Supplies Department implements the General
Acceptance system for pre-approval of plumbing products
when approving plumbing-related engineering works. Plumbing
products which gained General Acceptance must need to have a
sample test report issued by an organization under the Hong Kong
Laboratory Accreditation Scheme (HOKLAS), or a BSI Kitemark
issued by the British Standards Institution or the certification issued
by the British Water Regulations Advisory Scheme (WRAS), so as
to confirm the products fulfil the statutory standard.

The Water Supplies Department will also select the plumbing
products with the General Acceptance qualification on the market
for testing. The test subjects include chemical composition (metal
elements of metal parts in contact with drinking water) and the
main functions of the plumbing fixtures to check if the products
are still able to meet all required criteria for the accreditation. The
Group provides plumbing products for spot checks by the Water
Supplies Department. During the Reporting Period, all products
subject to spot check passed the General Acceptance plumbing
product monitoring program and met the quality requirements of
their respective standards.
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Compliant Business Environment

The Group strictly complies with laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group, such as the Trade Descriptions
Ordinance (Chapter 362 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the
Waterworks Regulations (Chapter 102 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
We have a Quality Control Department, which inspects suppliers’
factory production equipment and goods, spot checks on
warehouse’s goods and engages third-party assessment according
to the international standards and customer requirements
to ensure product quality meets relevant legal requirements.
Products must pass the established review and inspection
procedures before they can be officially shipped and delivered.
If the Quality Control Department finds substandard products or
receives external complaints during the daily sampling inspection
of goods, we will conduct a meeting according to the Triggering
Mechanism of Recall Procedures to study the quality issues, assess
risks and severity, and to determine if it is needed to do product
recall. Once a recall is decided, we will notify affected customers
of the recall arrangements as soon as possible. Regardless of
product recall is launched or not, the Group requires suppliers to
find out the causes of quality issues, strengthen internal quality
control, and take improvement measures. In addition, we have
internal quality inspection regulations, like Inspection Procedures,
Galvanized Pipe Inspection Procedures, etc., to enhance product
quality.

We attach great importance to the experience of customers about
the products. Therefore, the Group will regularly hold cross-
departmental quality control meetings specifically for reporting
quality problems. The members participating in the meetings
include the Chairman of the Group, the Chief Operating Officer,
and the product managers of the Sales Department, Purchasing
Department and Quality Control Department. During the
Reporting Period, the Group received a total of 11 (2021: 14)
complaints about product quality, and we made corresponding
remedial plans in a timely manner. All cases were properly
handled, and there were no cases in which products had to be
recalled due to safety and health concerns.
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Compliant Business Environment
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Information Security Management

In order to protect the privacy of customers, the Employee
Handbook stated that employees shall not directly or indirectly use
and disclose confidential information to third parties, including
business secrets, transactions and technical information about
customers or suppliers. If any confidential information is found
to be leaked, remedial measures must be taken immediately
and notify the management of the Group for relevant decisions.
The Group ensures that the personal data retained is properly
protected against unauthorised or accidental access, processing,
deletion or use. The Personal Data Privacy Policy is included in
the Employee Handbook as a guideline for all new and current
staff handling personal data. We regularly review the policies
on personal data privacy to ensure the policies comply with
the relevant legal requirements, so as to protect the privacy of
customers and the Group to the greatest extent and to ensure
that the policies comply with the relevant legal requirements.

In addition, we are committed to ensuring the delivery of
complete and accurate information to the public and safeguarding
the intellectual property rights of the Group and business
partners, including patent rights, trademark rights and copyrights.
We strictly abide by relevant laws and regulations, including
but not limited to the Patents Ordinance (Chapter 514 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and the Trade Marks Ordinance (Chapter
559 of the Laws of Hong Kong). We closely monitor intellectual
property trends relevant to the Group. If there is any malicious
infringement after verification, we will require the infringer to
bear compensation and legal responsibility according to the law
in order to prevent others from infringing intellectual property
rights. During the Reporting Period, no violations issues were
found regarding advertising, labelling and privacy-related laws and
regulations.

Building a Culture of Integrity

China Pipe attaches great importance to integrity and pays
attention to business ethic, creating an honest and trustworthy
corporate atmosphere. We strictly abide by the Anti-Money
Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance (Chapter
615 of Laws of Hong Kong), Organized and Serious Crimes
Ordinance (Chapter 455 of Laws of Hong Kong), Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of Laws of Hong Kong) and other
relevant laws and regulations.
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Compliant Business Environment

The Group has formulated the Gift and Entertainment Policy,
which prohibits employees from accepting illegitimate benefits
such as cash or kickback, and should not have an implied intention
to seek or obtain preferential treatment, and ensure that the
entertainment with customers and manufacturers is of reasonable
value and frequency.

The Group has also established the Whistleblowing Policy and
the Anti-corruption Policy to provide a communication channel
for reporting corruption or fraud, and encourages employees and
those who have business with the Group to report any corruption
and fraud within the Group through e-mail and other channels,
creating monitoring effects with personnel and corporate
culture that put integrity first. The above-mentioned policies and
communication channels are publicly available on the Company’s
website for internal and external parties. The Group will also
regularly communicate the above policies and channel to all
employees through different channels, including but not limited to
orientation training and on-the-job training. All reports would be
directly followed up by the Audit Committee. We are committed
to the strict confidentiality of all identities and information and
emphasize a zero-tolerance policy for engaging in any type of
corrupt or bribery activity. During the Reporting Period, we did
not receive any new lawsuits against the Group or our employees,
or uncover any cases of corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.

During the Reporting Period, the Board and employees of different
levels of the Group participated in the integrity education and anti-
corruption training. They have strengthened their anti-corruption
and integrity awareness by attending seminars concerning anti-
corruption, watching the education videos and reading materials
by Independent Commission Against Corruption of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region.

The Group fully promotes a corporate culture of integrity,
sets a good example, avoids conflicts of interest, shoulders
responsibilities, improves the Company’s management system,
conducts effective supervision and improves early warning
efficiency, in order to reduce operating costs and risks of
corruption and bribery, and further establish a good reputation for
the Company.
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Compliant Business Environment
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Supply Chain Management

China Pipe is an enterprise providing high-quality pipes. Material
and service suppliers connect with all aspects of operation
of our business, and it plays an important role in our quality
management. The Group attaches great importance to the
management and sustainability of the supply chain. We have strict
requirements on procurement procedures and supplier selection
and management, and establish a sound supplier management
system. We have formulated a series of relevant system documents
and standard operating procedures, such as the Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy, the Procurement Management System, the
Supplier Management System and other internal regulations, in
order to understand the process capability and quality control
function of suppliers, identify environmental and social risks
along the supply chain and standardize supplier management
and improve operation level. All suppliers must comply with the
internal rules and codes of the Group.

In this Year, the Group had 33 (2021: 33) suppliers in total, and
all suppliers are subject to the following practices regarding
suppliers’ engagement. The suppliers’ numbers and geographical
distributions are as follows:

HEREEE

TREEXFERREREIEVNLE  WER
REHEREFEXREELE NS [ERE
BREMBEMEEENEE IR - XKE
ERHHEENEERAFEN - JAHR
REEFMHERNEEREEERENE
Ko Wy REmEEmEEE o R
E— R A S E XM R ERERRE -
IKEEHERERER) - (RBEEHE)
(HEREESE) SNMRMG - AEBHERE
B2 RIZRE N - mEWRERIEFESE R
RIEMTERk  HEtEREERELRSE
BRIEBIEKE - TBEHERLABEAEH
A BBAR R RSP Al o

AEE » NEEMHEERBEA331E(2021:
33) FTARERSBESTIA T EBEERE
HER UL o HIEREE M@ HmmT ¢

2022 2021
20225 2021 /2
Mainland China A A 13 13
Hong Kong SAR R EAS 8 8
United Kingdom R 4 4
;}?{ﬁ/%egion South Korea rAer] 2 2
Thailand ZRE 2 2
Australia SBM 1 1
Japan =FN 1 1
United States of America %[ 1 1
Vietnam =] 1 1
Total number of suppliers
HERAH 33 33
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Compliant Business Environment

In order to ensure that the supplier complies with environmental
and social requirements and the level of corporate ethics, the
Group commits in the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy to
take environmental and social performance into consideration
in the procurement process, in order to reduce the negative
impact on the environment and society, and promote sustainable
development. In addition, the Group established the Code of
Conduct and Ethics and requires every supplier to sign and confirm
their products and services comply with relevant environmental
laws and regulations and ethical practices, such as emphasizing
environmental protection, prohibiting child labour or forced
labour, fair treatment of labour, and anti-discrimination. Supplier
operations are required to respect and promote international
principles of social, environmental and corporate ethics.

The Group has established a Supplier Basic Information Form.
When considering the adoption of a new supplier, we will record
the relevant information of the supplier for the management'’s
approval before updating the approved supplier list and
cooperating with the supplier to supply.

We assess the performances of suppliers in terms of its quality,
finance, price, environmental protection and labour rights. The
one with the most outstanding performance which also complying
with the relevant regulations will be engaged. According to
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy and Code of Conduct and
Ethics, the Group gives priority to products and services that
obtain the Green Label whenever reasonable and possible. It
is aimed to utilise resources effectively, with the reduction of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste. Our Company will regularly
review the policy to meet the needs of technological development
and incorporate more products that have a positive impact on the
environment into the policy scope.

In addition to this, we have developed a Supplier Rating Scale.
The Procurement Department analyses supplier performance
by different items, including items in terms of quality, delivery,
customer service and environmental issue. Suppliers must
achieve a standard score for a long-term relationship. If suppliers
underperform, we regularly meet with them and monitor and
communicate with them to improve their shortcomings, or even
disqualify them and replace with other alternative sources.
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The quality of procured goods from suppliers directly affects the
quality of the Group’s products. In order to reduce operational
risks arising from product quality and health and safety in the
supply chain, the Group has set up a Quality Control Department
responsible for inspecting suppliers’ plant production equipment
and goods, sampling inspection of warehouses’ goods and
sending sampled products to third parties for testing to ensure
that the products comply with local and international standards.
The department will visit suppliers’ factories for inspections,
evaluate the applicability and effectiveness of their quality control
procedures, and review the quality of products ordered by the
Group. We will also independently engage a reputable third-
party laboratory to conduct quality tests on the sample products
provided by suppliers. Products must pass the established review
and inspection procedures before they can be officially shipped
and delivered.

Customer Service Quality

China Pipe respects the opinions of all customers, which we
regard as an important basis for the improvement of the Group.
The Group established the Customer Complaint Handling
and Response Procedure to provide a clear and standardized
operating guidance for relevant departments. If customers have
any comments or complaints about the products and services of
the Group, they can contact our relevant sales staff. The relevant
personnel will immediately report to the supervisor and make
written records and follow up immediately. Our sales team will
go to the customer company or site to understand the situation,
inspect the product, take photos and take samples back to the
company. In response to product issues, the Group will report and
review the reasons to suppliers. If feasible, we will replace another
batch of products to the customer. If it cannot be replaced and
additional work on the product is required, we will share the
cost with the customer for the defective products. Regarding
any complaints, we will investigate and deal with them timely
according to the internal procedures to ensure the quality of China
Pipe’s products and services, so as to establish a good reputation
for customers.
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China Pipe regards its employees as an important cornerstone to
drive the company’s development and success. We recruit and
hire the best talent to build high-performing teams. We attach
great importance to the development of employees’ professional
talents, provide them with a positive career path according to their
characteristics and their own development situations, and then
become a multi-disciplinary team leading the industry to support
the company’s overall development strategy and business goals.
We also hope to improve the physical and mental well-being of
our employees, and take it as our responsibility to create a safe,
healthy and fair working environment for all our employees to
ensure a positive impact on the society as a whole.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had a total of 155 (2021:
148) employees, of which 93% (2021: 90%) of employees work
in Hong Kong, while the remaining in the operation sites located
in Macau and Shenzhen. Please refer to Appendix I: Environmental
and Social KPIs Summary for detailed distribution.

Employment Structure Management

The Group complies with all the laws and regulations on the
employment under the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57
of Laws of Hong Kong) of the HKSAR and industry codes. We
have compiled the Employee Handbook to actively regulate the
employment and labour system. In this system, we have a clear
management process to help employees understand the areas
of job setting, recruitment, dismissal, remuneration and welfare
distribution, protect the rights and interests of both employers
and employees, and establish equal labour relations.

China Pipe is an employer emphasizing equal opportunity. The
recruitment decisions for all positions are only considered based
on the professional qualifications of individual positions and
the inherent requirements of employment. Candidates must
be selected through interview process, in which any form of
discrimination, including discrimination and unfair treatment based
on age, gender, race, religion, marital status, sexual orientation or
disability, will not be tolerated. In addition, in accordance with our
internal policy Prohibition of Child Labour Policy, we take effective
procedures to verify the age of any candidate prior to hiring,
including but not limited to checking official documents to prevent
child labour. The Group conducts child labour prevention training
for the Human Resources Department to enhance the relevant
personnel’s understanding of the regulations, and enhance their
awareness during the recruitment process.
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The Group is committed to creating and maintaining an
environment free of any form of harassment or discrimination
for its employees. We expressly prohibit cruelty or threats against
any employee (including any form of sexual harassment, corporal
punishment, mental oppression or verbal abuse). The Group has
zero tolerance for sexual harassment and gender discrimination.
To prevent sexual harassment in the workplace, the Group has
established and formulated an employee grievance mechanism.
Employee who has been sexually harassed can file formal
complaints with their department heads, managers, or the Human
Resources Department. All complaints will be treated confidentially
and independently. We are committed to combating harassment
and will discipline harassers when necessary.

To prevent forced labour, we protect the right of our employees
to freely choose employment and ensure that all employment
relationships are voluntary. The Group and its employees may
terminate the employment contract for personal reasons or
other reasons, and need to give an appropriate notice period or
payment in lieu of notice. In addition, the Group also regulates
staff working hours and rest arrangements. If an employee agrees
to work outside office hours due to an emergency, it will be
treated as overtime. Department heads and managers need to
approve overtime work arrangements and provide employees with
compensatory leave. We ensure that internationally recognized
human rights are respected, promoted and enhanced in our
labour practices, including prohibition of any form of forced
labour.

If the Group and its employees found relevant violations such
as identity, age, or forced labour, both parties can immediately
terminate their labour contracts to protect their legitimate labour
rights and interests. During the Reporting Period, the Group did
not violate any relevant laws and regulations on remuneration
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, equal
opportunities, diversity, anti-discrimination, prevention of child
labour or forced labour, nor did any cases of child labour or forced
labour were found.
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Employee Rights and Benefits

The Group is committed to offering competitive remuneration and
welfare to attract and retain talented people. In order to ensure
that the remuneration and welfare policies remain competitive in
the market, we will adjust the annual remuneration of employees
every year. The consideration and range of salary adjustment are
mainly determined based on factors such as company benefits
and employee performance, adjusted ranks, and market salary
trends. We will conduct employee performance appraisal for
employees once a year and establish a performance feedback
channel to strengthen the interaction and communication
between supervisors and employees, so that employees can
understand their work performance and improvement, so as
to assist their personal work and further career development.
Besides, in accordance with the local labor laws and social
security laws and regulations, the Group provides social security
benefits for all employees by contributing to various social security
scheme. These laws and regulations include but not limited to the
Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of Laws of Hong Kong)
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter
485 of Laws of Hong Kong). The Group also has a long-term
service award, which is awarded to employees who have served
continuously for every 10 years in recognition of their long-term
loyal service and contributions.

In addition, the Employee Handbook also details of the benefits
and leave provisions for employees. In addition to statutory
holidays and annual leave, employees are entitled to sick leave,
maternity leave, paternity leave, marriage leave, and bereavement
leave. The Group also allows employees to leave work earlier on
certain holidays according to work arrangements. We care about
the health of our employees and provide full-time employees with
various medical benefits, including outpatient care services, 24-
hour global emergency support services, hospital and surgical
coverage, etc.

Secondly, the Group holds employee gatherings and activities
every year, including annual dinner, Mid-Autumn Festival,
Christmas and occasional luncheons, etc., to shorten the distance
between employees, build team cohesion, and enhance the sense
of belonging to the company.

B~ s REGEE

High-quality Professional Team

RS E MR

ETHEEEAN

AREBHHRFEATISHEF NOHMER
FBUARMRBE AT - KR NEF
BREMGREFZRF N - RAASSFRAEE
THEFHM - FTHREEERRZNFHEEE
EXRBARNAMETTERR - ARRKE
- MEHEBEEEARRETE - ZfIeE
FRETHETREITERRTMGE - B2
BMRERE NIRRT EEHETHRRR
Bl SEITHMETFERESGE R
ABEEATERRFUERER - 15 -
REBEWERGIMESREERER - K
SERBERBHEREABIHET - BRAE
BTRMHMSRERM - BLERERBE
BARRCRETEE) (FEZEHF608
B) MR RTE SRR (FRIEHIH
485%) - AEBERA KRR LE - HhEE
MR &im 1051 B THMER - ARBEER
FRBRGMERS

BRUEIASN - (B TFAM) IRF A58 TRl =
BRMNOABMNERMORE - BFOEERYIM
FRIN BIAZERRKR  ER  FER -
BEREERRE - ARETAFE TEREH
BRI EETEZEHRER T - PRI ET
MRE - SEBETRET ZEBEEM -
BIEFIZRARY - 24/ NFE2IREZIER
% - BRRFMRES -

HR AREeSFRERANETRERE
8 BRBFB®RE  PIKE  BERHRTE
HFEREE  Af 8 T ZMMbEEE - #27
BRR - BBHRRI BB o

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 # #f

55



60

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

REL A KB HG
High-quality Professional T'eam
B S WK

China Pipe believes that effective communication can build
understanding, trust between employees and management and
promote a positive and happy working environment, thereby
enhancing the competitiveness of the Group. We encourage open
and honest two-way communication. Employees can express
their opinions to the department manager or Human Resources
Department at any time via email or in person. Employees can also
learn about the company’s latest announcements and activities on
the notice board.

Occupational Safety and Health

China Pipe attaches great importance to occupational safety and
health and strictly abides by relevant laws and regulations. We
formulated a series of measures and policies to ensure the health
and safety of employees in different roles. As of the end of the
Year, the injured employees have received appropriate treatments
and were granted injury leaves, timely injury leave payment
and compensation according to the Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance (Chapter 282 of Laws of Hong Kong).

In order to enhance the safety awareness of employees, we
provided new employees with a safety guideline, and arrange
warehouse employees to participate in health and safety courses,
including occupational safety and health regulations and
regulations, safety regulations for work under adverse weather,
manual handling operational safety regulations, etc., to enhance
the safety awareness of employees.

To reduce the risk of work-related injuries in warehouses, the
Group formulated the Warehouse Safety Regulations and the
Safety Code for Work-at-height. We provided warehouse staff
with guidelines for mobile machinery operations (lifting machinery,
forklifts), manual handling operations, outdoor working, good
site tidiness, and the guidelines of the proper use of ladders and
workbenches. We have appointed one staff in the capacity of
safety supervisor. The main job duties of the safety supervisor
include: providing safety awareness training, formulating safety
codes, organising safety meetings regularly, arranging employees
to attend occupational health and safety training, reporting on
cases of work-related injuries. During the Reporting Period, we
have organized occupational safety and health training activities,
covering accident review and safety training of the year. We
are committed to improving employees’ environmental safety
awareness and alertness and reducing work-related injury cases.

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED # EIE X &£ B ER 2 7

MEERAEERNERENETETEE
BEZENTR SERMEELRERE L
TR - (MR ARERHFE S » T
BB AR R ERER - B TR AK(E
(AT B B B F B AR S sk 77 AR RRPT AR 2
KANERIPEXMBANTR - BT HAIE
SRR ER/ARRNRAAE RZRED) -

Bz 2hRRE

TREEREIETREMEL S - BISETH
FEVERER - AEBEEHIE — RIiEH
REE - BRAFETFEEUE THRERY
2oBUEAFESR ZBETCHBIEER
HyaE - WIRR (B B AE DD (FBED
F2NB)FHEEENTHHR BETERK
RIZEIN AR TEHHE -

H—e2TR TZHERET2MER
HZ2RE - NABREBELRE MMEEED
ERP  RAERRTILIENLZZHRA - FF
RIBRENZ2ROIZE MEAEINZ S

=z Ay
SN

AREEREIRIXEGNAR  A&HE
ERHE(ERLETAD K(BREIHELE
STRD - ATRTEEZNERS 8 TiRfti
3 MEBEBBEMIRIEEEHM - 5
B) - FHREERE  PINTERREFTHE
B URIEEERBARTHERS - Rl
HPEERRARERELLEES T2
BE/SRHKLZEZEHEEI - flELETA
EMBETR2ER  KHFETHREBREE
FIERIE - |METBEZR - AREZIHITHE
PrtEht - M ER L 2KF - MEHAR - ],
MESRRTRZREIES  AREGELF
EESOENRZE2IR - RABHRESET
REZEBANERL  BIETERNE -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Group engaged a registered safety officer (the “Safety
Officer”), providing health and safety training courses for
warehouse staff annually. The Safety Officer oversees the
inspection of warehouse of the Company, writes safety check
reports, and provides professional advice to the management
regarding working environment safety and equipment. The
management will monitor the warehouse safety, regularly inviting
warehouse supervisors to attend management meetings to report
on the working environment and make appropriate reviews to
continuously improve the working environment and safety related
policies.

Since 2020, the COVID-19 outbreak continued to spread around
the world, and the Group has taken a series of health precautions
to mitigate the potential impact of the COVID-19 outbreak. In
order to ensure the health and safety of employee, especially
during the period of massive COVID-19 infections in early 2022,
the Group strengthened its internal hygiene requirement and
implemented various measures. For example, a hybrid working
mode is implemented to reduce face-to-face communication
among employees and protect their health, including split-teams
arrangement and work-from-home arrangement. Employees
are also required to observe social distancing policies such as
utilizing conference calls or video conference to conduct meetings
whenever possible. The Group also provides rapid antigen testing
(“RAT") kits and encourages our employees to have RAT before
work. We set out a clear home isolation flow for employees who
are tested positive for COVID-19 to prevent the spread of the
disease. In addition, we provide vaccination leave to our office and
frontline employees to encourage our employees to get vaccinated
and ensure they have sufficient rest after vaccination. For
enhancing the sanitary of working environment for all staff, the
following measures are in force. (i) Hand sanitizers are provided
at the office entrances for all staff and we have supplied our staff
with masks; (i) Thorough disinfection and cleaning are given in
offices, retail stores and the warehouse; (iii) More air purifiers are
purchased by the Group and placed in retail stores and warehouse
to keep the workplace clean and hygienic.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group lost 693 (2021: 67)
working days due to work-related injuries, which was caused
by a few minor accidents considered by the Group despite its
significant increment when compared to the corresponding period
in 2021. There were no work-related fatalities in the past three
years. For work-related injury cases, we take various preventive
measures, such as posting notices in the workplace to indicate
the precautions and handling methods for employees, and
department heads will also remind colleagues from time to time
to pay attention at work, etc.

Nurturing Key Talents

China Pipe has always been committed to providing continuous
learning and development opportunities for its employees
to ensure they have the required professional skills and can
maximize their potential at work. The Group has formulated the
Talent Training and Promotion Programme, aiming to sharpen
employees’ communication skills, problem-solving skills and team
spirit, as well as to boost their core competitiveness, supporting
their career and personal development. We believe that nurturing
talents can help the Group remain competitive in the market
and promote long-term business growth. The Group provides
specialized training for outstanding and potential employees,
as well as assessment and promotion opportunities, those who
are qualified in the assessment will be promoted to the Group’s
management or key positions.

The Group analyses the training needs of employees according
to the annual performance evaluation of employees, formulates
the company’s training and development plans and provides
appropriate subsidies. Besides, the Group also arranged
employees to receive training from external institutions, including
Construction Industry Safety Card course and other safety-related
training. The Group also provides employees of the Accounting
Department, Company Secretary Department and Human
Resources and Administration Department with course fees and
professional society membership fees related to their positions,
so as to continuously update the professional knowledge
and compliance rules of employees in various departments.
We conduct annual assessments to monitor and evaluate the
company’s training and development plans. The management will
review departmental training needs with each department head to
ensure the sustainability of talent and business development.
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High-quality Professional Team

RS E MR

The following are the percentages of our trained personnel AR R BT S B3 A K [R] R 1 1) B B AR
by gender and positions during the Reporting Period and the WXNETEDL  UWREEZINETIHF

corresponding period, and the average training hours per B
employees:
Percentage of Average training hours per
employees trained' each employee trained
ZHEIEDLL BEZHE T HFE R
2022 2021 2022 2021
By gender RMERIE 5
Male Bk 69.4% 91.8% 3.3 1.5
Female 7% 30.6% 8.2% 2.6 1.1
By grade RERE D
Management BEEAE 1.9% 6.1% 0.7 12.5
Department head/manager ZfFIEE /418 11.2% 8.2% 6.6 35
General staff —MBETL 86.9% 85.7% 2.4 0.4
I We follow in HKEX's Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance on Social U BMIRBE AR ERE B RE
KPIs in How to prepare an ESG Report to calculate percentage of VRIS ) M8 = (it e R B RBUE R E R e
employees trained. Percentage of employees trained in the relevant SDFAEZIETEHS L - FERNZIE
categories = T(x)/T x 100, T(x) = Number of employees who took part THED = T/ x 100, T(x) =:%BRIETX
in'training in the specified category, T = Number of total employees FIAZ, T=3FI8THBAL -

who took part in training.
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As a socially responsible enterprise, China Pipe attaches great
importance to environmental protection, is committed to reducing
the possible impact of its business on the environment, and
ensures sustainable business operations by integrating economic
development, social progress and environmental protection. The
Group has formulated the Environmental Protection Policy to set
out the strategies and objectives of environmental management.
We integrate environmental stewardship into our corporate
decision-making process, including making better use of natural
resources and energy, reducing and recycling waste, and reducing
pollution to the land and the atmosphere. We actively consider
the introduction of new technologies, taking into account both
economic development and environmental protection. During
the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any violation
of relevant environmental protection laws or major incidents that
affected the environment and natural resources, nor received any
notice of penalties or lawsuits regarding environmental.

The Group believes the support of employees, customers and
suppliers is particularly important for the effectiveness of the
implementation of environmental protection measures. Therefore,
we are committed to two-way communication, including ensuring
employees are clearly informed of such policy and the Group’s
goals for protecting the environment, encouraging suppliers to
operate in a sustainable manner, and providing transparent and
direct environmental performance information to the community,
and actively participation in activities organized by environmental
protection groups to improve environmental performance in an
all-round way.

The Group understands and actively fulfils its corporate social
responsibility of protecting the environment. During the Year, we
have formulated preliminary directional goals in terms of energy
efficiency, water efficiency, waste reduction and greenhouse
gas emissions. We will review and assess various environmental
protection goals, targets and the implementation or achievement
status of the measures, and explore more opportunities for energy
conservation and emission reduction.
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Energy Conservation and Emission Reduction
Management

Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions management

During the Year, we referred to the Greenhouse Gas Protocol
jointly developed by World Resources Institute and World Business
Council for Sustainable Development, 1ISO14064-1 formulated
by the International Standardization Organization, the Guidelines
to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and
Removals for buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional
Purpose) in Hong Kong prepared by Environmental Protection
Department (EPD) and the Electrical and Mechanical Services
Department (EMSD) of Hong Kong, the Guidelines for Accounting
and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions from Industrial
Enterprises in Other Industries (Trial) published by National
Development and Reform Commission of the People’s Republic of
China to quantify greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions from business
operations and further review the effectiveness of measures and
formulate improvement measures. During the Reporting Period
and the corresponding period, our GHG emissions within the
scope of this report are as follows:

GHG emissions

BEREHB

B~ g RBEGEE

Co-Creating Green Operation

el i

EiRER BEE

BERBHENER

REE - ZM2EhHt A ERATATEAT
AABBEERIBESEHENCEAER
RESZTE)  EBEEREELEHZNITH
{1IS014064-1) - BERREMELETIES
FRENC(CEEREY (WX T2 HA
B)HBEE R SRR ZE R EIE
3 FERERERMEZAMACIEEM
TELEBRERBNZE H AEREIER
(A7) EEBEEEENBEREH
W LAEE — iR E AR S BT S
FR - RREHRERAE  BHPIRNHREEHE
LR ZERESBEMAAT

Emissions (tonnes of CO,-e)

g (AE_S{REE)

2022 2021

20226 F 20215 E

Scope 1: Direct GHG emissions? HENEZRERBHMC 389.5 427.0

Scope 2: Indirect GHG emissions? #HE2: AR EREBEENC 117.9 266.0

Scope 3: Other indirect GHG emissions? #[E3: K E R = RS HER 8.7 11.0

GHG emissions in total® BEREHERE S 516.1 704.0
GHG intensity BAERBERE

(in terms of floor area per m2) ABFHARmETE 0.021 0.028
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JBE N
I A 2 £ 25 4
d Scope 1 includes emissions of fossil fuel combustion from

stationary and mobile sources. The Shenzhen’s office does not
involve emissions of fossil fuel combustion from stationary and
mobile sources. Therefore, there is no relevant Scope 1 emissions
from Shenzhen.

g Scope 2 includes emissions caused by purchasing electricity from
power company.

= Scope 3 includes upstream and downstream emissions from waste
paper disposal, water treatment and sewage treatment regarding
the business operation in Hong Kong.

2 During the Year, the Group’s total greenhouse gas emissions
decreased due to the decrease in shipments.

Energy Conservation management

Through measures such as strengthening scientific management
of energy and improving energy efficiency, the Group can save
energy consumption and reduce greenhouse gas emissions. Apart
from reminding employees from time to time to turn off lights, air
conditioners and other unnecessary electronic devices after office
hours or when office spaces (such as meeting rooms) are not in
use. We also choose energy efficient products for replacement
of electronic appliance and devices such as upgrading luminaires
with energy-efficient LED lights so that energy efficiency can be
improved. The Group is also gradually implementing an old vehicle
replacement programme to reduce fuel consumption and related
maintenance costs. In addition, to lower power consumption
among employees, the Group encourages employees to attend
seminars held by environmental protection companies. The Group
also cooperates with its business partners to provide training
to learn from practical experiences and suggestions to raise
the energy saving awareness among employees. In addition,
as the Hong Kong office relocated and has a relatively smaller
office space, the number of office electronic equipment (such as
printers) is reduced during the Reporting Period, so as the energy
consumption. In the coming year, we will continue to monitor
the power consumption of the Group’s business operations and
review power-saving measures, so as to reduce the electricity
consumption intensity more effectively. We set management goals
to maintain or reduce the current level of greenhouse gas intensity
and energy intensity on the basis of 2019, reduce emissions and
energy use and improve energy efficiency in the next few years.
In view of the energy conservation measures implemented, the
Group is on the right track to achieving the goals set.
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Energy use
BERER
Consumption
HE

Category 2022 2021
5l 2022FF 20215

Gasoline 94.3 129.6 MWh

TR JeFLES
Direct energy® Diesel 1,394.8 1,405.9 MWh
HERERC e JKELBF

LPG 79.2 91.1 MWh

RACBMR, JKEBs
Indirect energy Electricity’ 298.2 421.8 MWh
LR B JEEL B
Total energy consumption 1,866.5 2,048.4 MWh
BERMEFER JKEL B
Energy intensity 0.08 0.08 MWh/m?
R E KRR, FHAK

& Shenzhen’s office does not involve the use of direct energy. 6 SEYMASTS R EELRMEA -
7 During the Year, the Group's power consumption decreased due to 7 NEE  BREBRATIRE - WASHEHE
the relocation of Hong Kong office with relatively smaller space and HES/NEREFRERD - WREEESRE
fewer electronic equipment, and also the decrease in the number of W BRI

retail shop.
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Air pollutants emissions management

The Group mainly engages in the import and sale of pipes,
fittings and other related accessories products businesses. These
businesses do not involve any production activities while cutting
and remodeling processes are occasionally requested by the
clients, which are immaterial to the environmental impact. Hence,
no material air pollutants are produced in the ordinary course of
business. The air pollutants of the Group mainly come from its use
of natural resources, including emissions of Liquefied Petroleum
Gas (LPG) combustion from cooking stove, emissions of diesel and
gasoline combustion from mobile sources. Apart from the energy
and resource conservation measures mentioned in paragraph
Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions management and Energy
Conservation management, the Group implemented a number
of conservation measures to reduce air pollutants emissions.
For example, drivers have to plan their routes in advance before
departure, when multiple goods are delivered to the same or
nearby locations, the same vehicle should be used so as to shorten
the driving distance and reduce the consumption of gasoline or
diesel. The drivers are to stop and turn off the engine to reduce
energy consumption and air pollutants. The departments using the
vehicles have to ensure that there is no fuel leakage and conduct
regular repairs and maintenance for better energy use efficiency,
and reduce fuel consumption and air pollutants emission due
to part failure. We encourage our employees to save Liquefied
Petroleum Gas by switching the cooking stove off when not in use.
The Company will strive to set management goals for the coming
year in relation to air pollutants reduction. During the Reporting
Period and the corresponding period, our air pollutants emissions
within the scope of this report are as follows:

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED # EIE X &£ B ER 2 7
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Air pollutants emissions

ERITRMBER

Types of emissions

E295€7)): of Eid)

Nitrogen Oxides (NO,) Ek=tia?)
Sulphur Oxides (SO,) maty
Respirable Suspended Particulates (RSP) Al R A B2 AN )

Water Resource Management

The Group continuously monitors water consumption during
business operations and advocates water resource cherishment.
In terms of water usage, apart from water for domestic use,
numerous products of the Group need to be rinsed before
delivery. All sewage generated by the Group is discharged to
the sewage treatment plant through the local sewage collection
system for treatment. The Group has set up a rainwater collection
system in the warehouse, through which the rainwater collected
will be used for sprinkling and cooling the warehouse. If there
is a water leakage problem in the operation area, qualified
personnel will be arranged to repair it immediately. As water used
by the Group is obtained through municipal water supply, we
have no difficulty in water sourcing. During the Year, our water
consumptions® and water consumption intensity were respectively
1,164 (2021: 3,853.0) cubic metres and 0.05 (2021: 0.16) cubic
metres per square metre. Due to the decrease in shipments and
also the numbers of retail shops in the current Year, the water
consumption for cleaning decreased, and the water consumption
decreased sharply compared with the previous year. We set
management goals to maintain or reduce the current level of
water consumption intensity based on 2019. In view of the water
conservation measures implemented, the Group is on the right
track to achieving the goals set.

@ Currently, water at all sites of operation is obtained through
municipal water supply. As Shenzhen’s office does not install
independent water meter, therefore, water consumption records
cannot be obtained.

Emissions (kg)

BB (2 T)
2022 2021
20226 E 20215 E
1.844.7 2,234.3
12.4 155
177.2 175.3

KEREE
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S FAMEERSKELERZEHE - NE
g BFMFEKESA1,164 (2021: 3,853)3
K mEEKEE R AT HK0.05 (2021:
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Waste Management and Use of Other Resources

The Group advocates responsible use of various materials,
advocates waste reduction at source and properly disposes of
waste or any remaining waste. Employees are expected to reuse
or recycle materials and products as far as reasonably practicable.
Due to its business nature, the Group consumes enormous
product packaging for the sales of retail products, to assure
product quality and intactness throughout the transportation
process and allow customers to get the product without damage.
The product packing materials are usually plastic bags, nylon bags
and cardboard boxes. During the Year, the Group consumed
nearly 14.6 (2021: 17.5) tonnes of packaging materials and the
intensity of packaging materials amounted to 0.023 (2021: 0.026)
tonnes per million HK dollars in terms of sales, down slightly from
last year.

The Group encourages employees to recycle and reuse office
supplies, sort and recycle waste, and reduce the generation
of waste. During the Year, we implemented various resource
optimization measures. In terms of paper, we implement paperless
office, mainly use electronic means for internal and external
communications to lower the copying or printing needs. The
waste paper collected with the Group’s waste paper recycling
box is delivered to waste recyclers for recycling and reuse on a
regular base. During the Reporting Period, 289.1 (2021: 218.2)
tonnes of nonhazardous wastes were generated by the Group,
including office paper and other daily waste, with an intensity
of 0.012 (2021: 0.009) tonne per square metre. The hazardous
wastes generated by the Group include light bulbs and fluorescent
tubes, with the total amount of 0.063 (2021: 0.063) metric tons
and an intensity of 0.003 (2021: 0.003) tonne per thousand
square metres. Compared with previous year, the data on non-
hazardous waste intensity has slightly increased while the data
on hazardous waste intensity has remained about the same. We
set management goals to maintain or reduce the current level of
hazardous waste intensity and non-hazardous waste intensity on
the basis of 2019. In view of the resource optimization measures
implemented, the Group is on the right track to achieving the
goals set.

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED # EIE X &£ B ER 2 7

BRYEEREERER

TEEREEBETHMERASEWE - JRER
BE - WHEFRIBERSEMFIGRED - £
EEERAIITHNBERAT  EIFREEAK
EIE REm - EREBRLE - AEEH
FIMEREEFERAENEREE © LR
BEEHBECENMEANTELHBESER
BEEIEMER - Em—MRUABELE - EF
REBEEIERBEME - XFE - X&HE
SHRET14.6 (2021: 17.5)RAMEBEME » &
HEMEERREARBE BB ILEHET0.023
(2021: 0.026) AW » X EF[EREA T % ©

AEEHBE TRWRERMNBRARS
WIRAFEW - RO BEEYMNEE - AF
E - BMVEETZEEREER - KA
o BPIHTERCRA  REUETE
FRERBINE R EINREE - DR EED
SHNENNFEE - NEBRHNAEINREREEA
EUKAE - P 5 R 4 7E BR X 7 0 3 B Uk 7 R
EMEIRBIE - RIEHAN - AKEFMBEE
HEEEEYBIEEAREMPEAZER B
% EEEEA289.1 (2021: 218.2)A M -
RE AT FHK0.012 (2021: 0.009) A ME
LM EEENEEEEDRSEEBIEMY
& EL#E50.063 (2021: 0.063) M8 -
REAFTFHK0.003 (2021: 0.003)
Wi R FFEARL - EEBREYEE SRR
ELEH  EEEEDEEREIRBMEES -
BB EEEBZE - 20195 AR - - 4
B REEERENEEREEREEY
RERKE - EREENERE(LREE - &
SEFHEMTEEEE -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Tackling Climate Change

In order to cope with the frequent occurrence of extreme weather
caused by climate change, which has a significant impact on
corporate operations, the Group has formulated corresponding
climate change risk response plans. Based on the characteristics
of the industry, combined with the Group’s own situation and
strategic objectives, we have identified and assessed the risk
level of climate change risks. China Pipe did not subject to the
following risks in the current Year.

In the face of acute physical risks such as flooding, super typhoon
or extreme rainfall, etc., the Group likely suffers from supply
chain disruption, demand drop impact, damage to infrastructure
and facilities, and increased operating costs due to maintenance
of damaged facilities. We will establish an emergency response
team and hold emergency preparedness meeting to formulate
and improve the Group's crisis management and transition plans
regarding acute extreme weather events. At the same time,
strengthen emergency plans and emergency drills are in place for
acute extreme weather so as to avoid economic losses and safety
incidents to the greatest extent. Chronic physical risks include
rising temperatures which leads to higher electricity demand and
operating costs, increased risk of work-related injuries, higher
employee turnover and lower productivity. We will formulate
emergency plans for extreme weather and reminders for safe
resumption of work. For example, employees who work outdoors
under continuous high temperature weather are reminded to
find suitable places to rest. At the same time, we would optimize
the use of resources and energy. In response to disasters and
accidents caused by extreme weather, we are keen to improve the
disaster response capabilities and awareness of the company and
employees.
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Social Corporate Responsibility
HERERE

While the Group is actively developing its business, the Group has
also been actively fulfilling its corporate community responsibilities,
and supporting various community engagements, and continuing
to bring positive impacts to the community. We implement the
corporate mission “To take from society, while to give back
to society”. Through the establishment of two policies, the
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy and the Community Policy,
employees are encouraged to contribute to the society through
voluntary activities and donations to the community, and bring a
positive impact to the society. During the Reporting Period, The
Group contributed charitable donations and fundraising activities
of about HK$8,200 (2021: HK$28,000).

Looking forward, the Group will continue to make use of its
own industry characteristics and advantages, actively cooperate
with charitable organizations, participate in different community
investment and public welfare activities, and give back to the
society in various ways and grow together with the society.

2022-Blood Donation Activities by Hong Kong Red Cross
2022 - FRA+FERIVES
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China Pipe takes an active participation in the Blood Donation Activities organized by the Hong Kong Red Cross to
show our support to blood donation. We hope that through our active participation, more people in the society

can participate in the activities of blood donation to save more lives.
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iR CETe FLin

“1+1 Go Along With You” Charity Bazaar and Visiting Activities
MM+ 18 RET I RERIREE

The social enterprise “3H Handicraft” under the Mission to New Arrivals Limited trains grassroots ladies and sells
different handmade products made them, so that they can take care of the family at home while earning income
to help support the family. China Pipe has shown great support by purchasing their hand-made lucky bag including
hand-made Carnation flower, hand-made eco-friendly dish towels, hand-made face masks, surgical mask as well as
rapid antigen testing (“RAT") kits, and also delivering them to grassroots families.
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L& SRR

Caring for the Community Action 2022-Mid-Autumn Festival Volunteer Activities

BB EITE2022— P ME TES

China Pipe Volunteer Team visited the elderlies to celebrate a happy Mid-Autumn Festival, and offered mooncake

gift sets and daily necessities. We hope to express our care and concern for the elderlies and promote the concept
of caring, and serving the community.

FREXRTEGRGRE  HETRES - ARXASFE2NEERR - RAFERERMIEREOBEEME
O EEREMER - RFEERAER -
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Caring for the Community Action 2022-Happy Bags for the Elderly
BEt EITE2022 BUERERE

China Pipe Volunteer Team came visited the elderlies and offered lucky bags including rice and daily necessities.
We hope to express our concern for the elderlies under the pandemic, promote the concept of caring, and serving
the community.
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Appendix I: Environmental and Social KPIs Summary
Bk — = BRXE Bk 6 BH o BUBR B R

Environmental KPI 2022 2021

BREBRERES 2022F 20215FE

Emission®

B

Nitrogen Oxides (NO,) kg 1,844.7 2,2343

REfy T

Sulphur Oxides (SO)) kg 124 15.5

iR T

Respirable Suspended Particulates (RSP) kg 177.2 1753

IR AR T TR

GHG emissions

BERBER

Direct GHG emissions (scope 1) tonnes of CO,-e 389.5 427.0
BHEORE R (EE)" RHE= iwtﬁm

Indirect GHG emissions (scope 2)"! tonnes of CO,-e 117.9 266.0

MR ERBHR(EE2)" Ny tﬁm

Other indirect GHG emissions (scope 3)" tonnes of CO,-e 8.7 11.0

Hith R =R e HEm (85[E3) yN %Mr

GHG emissions in total (scope 1, 2 and 3)" tonnes of CO,-e 516.1 704.0

RERBHREE (HE1, 2k3)" N %Mm

GHG intensity (in terms of floor area per m?) tonnes of CO,-e/square metre 0.021 0.028

RERBHREE CAST I REEAH) yN Uikt |4 ﬁ?ﬁ%/ﬂ??ﬁ%

Energy consumption

BERFERE

Direct energy consumption MWh 1,568.3 1,626.6

BEERRFERE KR

Indirect energy consumption' MWh 298.2 421.8

R RFERE" KL

Total energy consumption MWh 1,866.5 2,048.4

BERFEREE KR

Energy intensity (in terms of floor area per m?) MWh/square metre 0.076 0.083

RFEREE SR RERES KEEFTK

Water consumption

KRFERE"

Total water consumption cubic metre 1,164.0 3,853.0

kg ST

Water consumption intensity (in terms of floor area per m?) cubic metre/square metre 0.05 0.16

FRBE CAGF 7 KEEAS) SR/ FRA
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P BREE R & B AU IR R R

b 8% —

Environmental KPI Unit 2022 2021

REBEENIEE By 2022FF 201EE

Waste Generation

BENEE

Total non-hazardous waste tonnes 289.1 218.2

REEENES N

Non hazardous waste intensity (in terms of floor area per m?) tonnes/square metre 0.012 0.009
ZEENZE AGEREENE) NWE /TR

Total hazardous waste tonnes 0.063 0.063

EERENES N

Hazardous waste intensity (in terms of floor area per 1,000 m?)  tonnes/1,000 square metre 0.003 0.003

BEBRENZE USTEAAERETE) AW/ TFHAK

Packaging material use

BEMBER

Total packaging materials tonnes 14.6 17.5

BEMHES NI

Intensity of packaging materials (in terms of sales) tonnes/million HKD 0.023 0.026

EMRIEE CAEREHE) DU/ EEBTL
° As Shenzhen'’s office does not involve in the emissions of combustion ® FINHREE N EEREZHR AR

of fossil fuel from stationary and mobile source, therefore, there are

no relevant air emissions.

J@‘?Sk%ﬂ'ﬁﬁﬁﬁl BOR BRI EER R

Scope 1 includes emissions of fossil fuel combustion from stationary L0

and mobile sources. The Shenzhen’s office does not involve in the
emissions of fossil fuel combustion from stationary and mobile
sources. Therefore, there is no relevant Scope 1 emissions.

Scope 2 includes emissions caused by purchasing electricity from
power company.

Scope 3 includes upstream and downstream emissions from waste
paper disposal, water treatment and sewage treatment regarding
the business operation in Hong Kong.

During the Year, the Group's total greenhouse gas emissions
decreased due to the decrease in shipments.

During the Year, the Group’s power consumption decreased due to
the relocation of Hong Kong office with relatively smaller space and
fewer electronic equipment, and also the decrease in the number of
retail shop.

Currently, water at all sites of operation is obtained through
municipal water supply. As Shenzhen’s office does not install
independent water meter, therefore, water consumption cannot be
obtained.

ﬁE1@%ﬁ§l%ﬁ&%@ﬁkEmﬂm
BRBEIR o RV RAET S REER KB
ﬁkEMﬂ%émmm HUS B AR RS E
THVHERR

HE2BERBRENRARBEBEE AT
HOHERR
HEIDEEAREEBREELEE R
7K B2 3 8255 7K B2 3B BT 5| B B R TR HE
e

NEE  AEBEHEE)
EEHEARS IR B o
RNEE  ARBBPAERE  BAEEE
HYUE/NREBETRERD  UARTE/RHE
A FTAFEE E I8 RNBE ©

B FTABER

B A& %E%m%ﬁﬁmﬁLﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁk
RN REIR BB KE - A
ﬁﬁbﬁwﬁKEO
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Bk — = BRXE Bk 6 BH o BUBR B R

Social KPI 2022 2021
HERRERER 20225 F 2015 E
Number of employees
ETAH
Hong Kong People 144 140
&8 A
Location Macau People 4 4
= il ABL
Mainland China — Shenzhen People 7 4
A A D — R AEK
Male People 102 103
Gender B AEK
PR Female People 53 45
zi ABL
Below 30 People 17 13
30B%A T A
Age group 30-50 People 69 72
FicAER 30-507% A
Above 50 People 69 63
503 A = AEK
Management People 5 7
EBEAE AL
Grade Department head/manager People 25 18
BAR EBPIEE a8 AL
General staff People 125 123
—RET AL
Full-time People 155 147
Employment type g2 AR
ERHER Part-time People 0 1
FREL AL
Total number of employees People 155 148
BMET A AL
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Bk st — « BRI Bk 67 BR B BRI R

Employee turnover rate'® 2022 2021
BIRKALE®RS 20225 2021FE
Hong Kong % 36.1 62.9
BE Bkt
Location Macau % 0.0 0.0
&= JBFT Bkt
Mainland China — Shenzhen % 0.0 0.0
A AT D — R Bkt
Male % 31.4 534
Gender B Bkt
(=2l Female % 37.7 73.3
Z Bk
Below 30 % 35.3 76.9
30pRA T Bk
Age group 30-50 % 47.8 52.8
FiAER 30-505% Bt
Above 50 % 18.8 63.5
503 A Anth
Total employee turnover rate % 33.5 48.6
BMET A= ANt
6 Turnover rate for employees in the relevant categories = L(x)/E(x) x v ZFERIFRALLE = L(x) / E(X) x 100 * L(x) =
100, L(x) = Number of employees leave employment in the specified ZERE THBERA S - E(x) = ZHARIET
category, E(x) = Number of total employees in the specified category. g o
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Appendix I: Environmental and Social KPIs Summary
Pt — : BRIE MR 6 B BOR RN R

Employee training"’ 2022 2021
S 2022FFF 2015 E
Percentage of trained male employees % 69.4 91.8
BHZIESE Bkt
Percentage of trained female employees % 30.6 8.2
5l Average training hours for male employees Hour 33 1.5
ST IR 1 NBE
Average training hours for female employees  Hour 2.6 1.1
peg R mahg i 24 1NB
Percentage of trained management % 1.9 6.1
EBAEXIEDE Bk
Percentage of trained department head/
manager % 11.2 8.2
HPEE CEZIE L Bkt
Percentage of trained general staff % 86.9 85.7
Grade —REIXIEDE Bkt
Bl Average training hours for management Hour 0.7 12.5
EIE A B FHIEIR 2 1NB
Average training hours for department head/
manager Hour 6.6 3.5
BFIEE IR TR 2R 1 NB
Average training hours for general staff Hour 24 0.4
—AR B T FHIEHIR 1NB
7 We follow in HKEX’s Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance on Social 7 BMRBEMRACNARERE tgRkE
KPIs in How to prepare an ESG Report to calculate percentage of VRIS ) M8 = (it e R B BUE R E R
employees trained. SDEIEXIEIADL
Percentage of employees trained in the relevant categories = T(x)/T FHEAMZNEIADL =TX) /T x 100 -
x 100, T(x) = Number of employees who took part in training in the TX) = ZHERBIZIAE  T=NEIHR
specified category, T = Number of total employees who took part in AEL

training.
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Bk st — « BRI Bk 67 BR B BRI R

Work-related injuries 2022 2021
HIZE 2022FE  20215E
Male number 4 5
Number of S AR
work-related injury
BT S8 A Female number 0 0
I AE
Male number 693 67
Lost days due to B TERE
work-related injury
ETERATER Female number 0 0
pega TEHER
Work-related fatalities Unit 2022 2021 2020
EIZ%T BN 2022FE  2021FEE 20206 E
Number and rate of number (%) 0 (0.0) 0 (0.0) 0 (0.0)
work-related fatalities AZ(BDL)
AT T AZ LR
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PR — : BEAZ A (RN ~ dh@ RERHG S REl

Content of Indicator

EERR

Relevant Sections

HERREE

Page Index

RRR5|

A. Environmental Aspect

A REBEHE
A1: Emissions
A1 B
General Disclosure  Information on: Co-Creating Green Operation 64-71
—REE (a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer relating to air and GHG emissions,
discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.
BERBERRAEREIMN - KR THAHE HelgeEE
G AEREERYMNEESN
@ BX: &
(o) BFHETABEAZENRAERE R
HEH
A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions Energy Conservation and Emission 65-69, 76-81
data. Reduction
Appendix I: Environmental and Social
KPIs Summary
HERUIE AR AR HE B - EnRER B
Begr— : IRIB RS BREBUEER
2
A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) Appendix I: Environmental and Social ~ 76-81
greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where  KPIs Summary
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
B (EE) RetREE (EE2) AERBHME  MH—  RERASBRENIEIERH
(CAREETE) & (@) % E (AT ES B - 2
FRRIGHE) -
A13 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, ~ Appendix I: Environmental and Social ~ 76-81
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of KPIs Summary
production volume, per facility).
FEAESEEDES CAEE) R(MER)E  Mik—  RERUSHERERIEEE
B(WABES S - §EFHEE) Z
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)  Appendix I: Environmental and Social ~ 76-81

and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit
of production volume, per facility).
FIEAREREEYEE CAWEE) kK (WER) &
E (WA BESEM - BIERMETE) ©

KPIs Summary

Mk — - RENMLSBREVIERR

5]
=
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B g BB

Appendix II: ESG Reporting Guide Content Index of HKEX
Fihgs— : WP CBRHE - AL RBWHRHGLIRT]) K

Relevant Sections

HERREE

Page Index

RRR5|

A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps Waste Management and Use of 70
taken to achieve them. Other Resources
WA MR E R R RERELERMR BEEVERREMERER
EUH) R o

A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non- Waste Management and Use of 70

hazardous wastes are handled, and a description
of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.

A EE A EREEEEYN A - Rt
FIMHREE B IR R AER B L B SRR &

Other Resources

BEERNEELEMERER

A2: Use of Resources

A2 : BiRER
General Disclosure  Policies on efficient use of resources including Energy Conservation and Emission 65-70
—iRE energy, water, and other raw materials. Reduction Management
Water Resource Management
Waste Management and Use of
Other Resources
AREAER(BELR  KREMERMED AR HaeRsE R
®e KERER
BEEYEEREMERER
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by Energy Conservation and Emission 65-69, 76-81
type Reduction Management
(e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kwWh in '000s) ~ Appendix I: Environmental and Social
and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, ~ KPIs Summary
per facility).
RERESMEER KEEER(WE - A HREREBEER
h)eRE ATETREAE) REE (WMAEE ME—  RERMSBRENIRER
BEN - BERMEAE) - -3
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. Water Resource Management 69, 76-81
per unit of production volume, per facility). Appendix I: Environmental and Social
KPIs Summary
BRKEREE WMAGES S - RERMEH KERER
L) e Btk — : RIR R S RIRERUEIRS
Z
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set ~ Energy Conservation and Emission 65-69

and steps taken to achieve them.
fat prET VBV Re IR A B R R AERE LR
SRTERENE) P 5R o

Reduction Management
ERREREE 12
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PR — : BEAZ A (RN ~ dh@ RERHG S REl

Content of Indicator Relevant Sections Page Index

EERR HEES RRR5|

A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in Water Resource Management 69
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.
HSKEGERNR LR A EMERE - AR KERER
B Rk B AR R AR R E L B IRATEREREY
B
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished Waste Management and Use of 70, 76-81
products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with Other Resources
reference to per unit produced. Appendix I: Environmental and Social
KPIs Summary
KM AR EE Ut R (E  EERDERREMERER
R BEEBMINE - fisk— : BB R G RREBUEIRE
2
A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
A3 BRERRAER
General Disclosure  Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant Co-Creating Green Operation 64-71
—REE impacts on the environment and natural
resources.
BEZETAERERAAERERXEATENR HAGELE
% o
A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities ~ Co-Creating Green Operation 64-71
on the environment and natural resources and
actions taken to manage them.
HWAEBEDHRELAABRNEATERE HERELE
RRMEREBTENTY -
A4: Climate Change
A4 RIRE{L
General Disclosure  Policies on identification and mitigation of Tackling Climate Change 71
—RiRE significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer.
BRINEEER AR HETAEARENE BYREEL
ARGEHEEEEHOBE o
A4 Description of the significant climate-related Tackling Climate Change 71

issues which have impacted, and those which
may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to
manage them.

B AR EHETAREY ENERRIR
BEEE - REHTH -

EHREE(L

84 CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED F EZE X &£ BAER A A



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRBE A LR

Appendix II: ESG Reporting Guide Content Index of HKEX
Firee— : BE22PT CERBE ~ dh@ R RO IRS) 5

Content of Indicator Relevant Sections Page Index
ERRE HEEH HiRS
B. Social Aspect
B #EHE
B1: Employment
B1: {Ef®
General Disclosure  Information on: Employment Structure Management ~ 57-60
— R E (a) the policies; and Employee Rights and Benefits
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other benefits and welfare.
ERHMEERE  BERER  IEEE B EEFIEERE
. rE#e  Zal REEUREMEER 8T#EREN
=Vl 0
(@ BE: Kk
(b) BFHETABERZENEBEE IR
&R o
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type Employment Structure Management 57-58, 76-81
(for example, full-or part-time), age group and Appendix I: Environmental and Social
geographical region. KPIs Summary
RIER - EBREEE (M2BEERR) - FRARk ERERER
MEEDHESEE - figk— : BIR R B RREBUEIEE
2
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group Appendix I: Environmental and Social ~ 76-81
and geographical region. KPIs Summary
IR - FiclR Rt R 8D HEBIRKL FisE— : B3R Rt @ BIRARUE IR
B2: Health and Safety
B2 REHEZE
General Disclosure  Information on: Occupational Safety and Health 60-62

—RIEE (a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to providing a safe
working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

BRRHZ2THERERRERERLBELR

=H)

@ & &k

(b) BTHBEITABEAFENEEEZREH
HER

BEziER

N
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Appendix II: ESG Reporting Guide Content Index of HKEX
PR — : WP CBRIE - L RBHRHEGERT) K5

Content of Indicator

EERR

Relevant Sections

HERREE

Page Index

RRR5|

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities Occupational Safety and Health 60-62, 76-81
occurred in each of the past three years including ~ Appendix I: Environmental and Social
the reporting year. KPIs Summary
BEZF (BRERFER)BFRAITHNARR BEZRZEER
thE o Btk — : RIR R S RIRERUEIRS
2
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Occupational Safety and Health 60-62, 76-81
Appendix I: Environmental and Social
KPIs Summary
AIGEAIERS - BRZrRRER
BisE— : B3R Rt R BIRAARUE IR
2
B2.3 Description of occupational health and Occupational Safety and Health 60-62
safety measures adopted, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
HFTERANB R RRET 2 - AREES BERIEER
TRERTE -
B3: Development and Training
B3 : &R NRIE
General Disclosure  Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and ~ Nurturing of Key Talents 62-63
—REE skills for discharging duties at work. Description
of training activities.
BFRRAREBTILIERENIBIRENE  ERALES
R o HILETINES o
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender ~ Nurturing of Key Talents 62-63, 76-81
and employee category (e.g. senior management, — Appendix I: Environmental and Social
middle management). KPIs Summary
RURIREERR(WSRERRE  +REBE BRATES
F)EHNXIEEB D - Btk — : RIR R S RIRERUEIRS
2
B3.2 The average training hours completed per Nurturing of Key Talents 62-63, 76-81

employee by gender and employee category.

RIERIRERERED - BREEEKRTIINF
BREL

Appendix I: Environmental and Social
KPIs Summary

BERASIEE

figk— : TR R A B BREBIEIEE
Z
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Firee— : BE22PT CERBE ~ dh@ R RO IRS) 5

Content of Indicator

EERR

B4: Labour Standards
B4 : BTER|

Relevant Sections

HERREE

Page Index

RRR5|

General Disclosure  Information on: Employment Structure Management 57-58
—REE (a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer relating to preventing child and
forced labour.
BAFEZET 64T EREEER
(@ B : &k
(b) BFHEITABERZENEEEERAD
H)E RS o
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment Employment Structure Management 57-58
practices to avoid child and forced labour.
R E BRI B (] Ry Fa e AR R ZE T R 58 45 EREEERE
To
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate non- Employment Structure Management ~ 57-58
compliance when discovered.
HRERERENSEREABRAMERZENS EREEEE
B
B5: Supply Chain Management
B5 : EHEEE
General Disclosure  Policies on managing environmental and social Supply Chain Management 54-56
—MRKE risks of the supply chain.
B RHIRIE KAt G RREUE o fHremEn
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supply Chain Management 54-56
iR E D EHLEREEE HremEnE
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging Supply Chain Management 54-56
suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.
e e EER RS - MERITEREAR  HEEERE
HIEREE - LRABEFINMITRESR % o
B5.3 Description of practices used to identify Supply Chain Management 54-56
environmental and social risks along the supply
chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored.
R EERRHERGERTNRERTERR HEEERE
HER - ARMBEIMITRERTE
B5.4 Description of practices used to promote Supply Chain Management 54-56

environmentally preferable products and services
when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

HLERE SRR (2 (2% BRRE m LIRS
180 ARAMBRITRERETE -

fregE R
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W% — -

Content of Indicator

EERR

Bz (BB ~ e RBGIHTIEG) K

Relevant Sections

HERREE

Page Index

RRR5|

B6: Product Responsibility

B6 : EmEE

General Disclosure  Information on: Compliant Business Environment 50-56
—REE (@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress.
BEMRHERNRENREELZ2  BES 18 SHERERER
ERILBER ARG AR
(@ B&E: &k
(o) BPHETABERTENEBERZ RN
HEH o
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped Product Quality Control 50-51
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.
PERCERERBEP AL BEREHMNE EnmEEE
Bl EoEpad
B6.2 Number of products and service related Customer Service Quality 56
complaints received and how they are dealt with.
BN ERRRBOIRFEE AREY BEFERBEZ
&
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and  Information Security Management 52
protecting intellectual property rights.
T B RS AR E B BRI ERREER
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and Product Quality Control 50-51
recall procedures
Mg ERTERIEREREYIET Emm B
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and Information Security Management 52

privacy policies, and how they are implemented

and monitored.

HOH B & IR RIE RALBER
RERFE o

© AR ARRERAAT

oiF
ci
g
P
R
pr:
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Firee— : BE22PT CERBE ~ dh@ R RO IRS) 5

Content of Indicator Relevant Sections Page Index

EERR HERREE RRR5|

B7: Anti-corruption
B7 : RE&

General Disclosure  Information on: Building a Culture of Integrity 52-53
—RWE (a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud, and money laundering.
BE LR - BR - BGRFROAREN BREZXL
(@ BE: &k
(b) BFHETABERZENRBEE IR
&R o

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding Building a Culture of Integrity 52-53
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its
employees during the Reporting Period and the
outcomes of the cases.
REGHRNHETASHEESREYEEEANE BRREAUL
AHF DR E RAFALR o

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and Building a Culture of Integrity 52-53
whistle-blowing procedures, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

W EEE L BRER  WREERTRER BRFERXE

Tk e
B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided Building a Culture of Integrity 52-53
to directors and staff.
it mEERE TRENRETE - BREZXL
B8: Community Investment
B8 : HERE
General Disclosure  Policies on community engagement to Social Corporate Responsibility 72-75
—MRKE understand the needs of the communities where

the issuer operates and to ensure its activities

takes into consideration communities’ interests.
E@MHW/AXTW“iﬁﬁﬁEmEﬁ%% HErERMF
HEBRZBEEZ R ENREABER

B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, Social Corporate Responsibility 72-75
environmental concerns, labour needs, health,
culture, sport).

EIEREEWHE REEE HIFR HELEER

8z - b - BE) °

B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to Social Corporate Responsibility 72-75
the focus area.
EEIRRAEHAER (N EERE) - HEEREE
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Report of the Directors
EH O

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have pleasure
in presenting their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 36 to the
financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by operating
segments is set out in Note 5 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 118.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) does not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2022.

DIVIDEND POLICY

In accordance with the relevant provision of the Bye-laws of
the Company: 1. The Company in general meeting may declare
dividends in any currency but no dividends shall exceed the
amount recommended by the Board. 2. The Board may subject to
Bye-laws from time to time pay to the shareholders such interim
dividends as appear to the Board to be justified by the position
of the Company. 3. The Board may also pay half-yearly or at
other suitable intervals to be settled by it any dividend which may
be payable at a fixed rate if the Board is of the opinion that the
profits justify the payment. 4. No dividend shall be declared or
paid and no distribution of contributed surplus made otherwise
than in accordance with the Statutes. No dividend shall be paid
otherwise than out of profits available for distribution. 5. The
Company may distribute dividends by way of cash or scrip.

The Company’s ability to distribute dividends will depend on,
among others, the operating results, cash flow, financial condition
and capital requirements of the Group and the interests of
the shareholders of the Company. The Company’s distribution
of dividends shall also comply with any restrictions under the
Bermuda Companies Act and the Bye-laws of the Company.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development, possible
risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are set out in
the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this Annual Report.

The details of financial risk management of the Group are set out
in Note 3 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators is set out in the section
headed “Five-Year Financial Summary” of this Annual Report.

The compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have
a significant impact on the Group is set out in this “Report of
Directors” and the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” of this Annual Report.

Social Responsibilities and Services and Environmental
policies

The Group is committed in promoting the sustainable
development of both the environment and the society.

We believe it is more blessed to give than to receive. As such, we
support and encourage our employees to participate in community
service activities. With the support from the management team,
our core business company, Bun Kee (International) Limited
("Bun Kee") is committed to participate and support social
services activities. In this regard, Bun Kee has awarded the
Caring Company logo in recognition of our corporate social
responsibility’s participation and commitment. We also believe
in the ripple effect which those people, whom we helped, will in
turn help others who are in need.

With regards to environmental policy, we pay a great deal
of attention to promoting environmental protection. We will
integrate environmental awareness in our daily operations
including:

e  Reduce electricity consumption, improve energy efficiency,
use of energy-efficient products to replace the appliances
and equipment;
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Turn off lightings, air-conditioners and electrical appliances in
offices after working hours, or when rooms not being used,
for instance, the conference rooms;

Use electronic means for communications internally and with
external parties;

Reduce the need to copy and print. Use of recycled
paper, copy and print on both sides of the paper, where
appropriate; and

Re-use of office supplies (such as single-sided paper, paper
clips, envelopes, file folders, paper bags, plastic bags).

Relationships with key stakeholders

The Group understands and supports that employees, customers,
suppliers and business partners, investors and shareholders are
vital to our sustainable and stable development.

(@)

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED

Employees

The Group is an equal opportunity employer. Our employee
handbook outlines terms and conditions of employment,
code of conduct and employee benefits. We promote
harmony and respect in our workplace. Employees are one
of our most important assets. To that end, we provide self-
improvement and advancement opportunities as well as a
safe workplace in order to retain high calibre employees. The
Group values the well-being and health of our employees
and therefore provides medical insurance coverage and
benefits to our employees. In addition, we will organize staff
gathering quarterly and annual dinner, all management will
also participate to maintain good relations with employees
and promote two-way communication. The Company
will conduct staff appraisal annually, and also provide
exit interviews for the outgoing employees. We adopt an
open policy to allow employees at any time, by email or in
person to the department managers or Human Resources
department to express their views.
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Customers

We provide high quality products to our customers constantly
as it is the best way to retain customers and business growth.
Our sales team will visit customers regularly to keep abreast
of new opportunities and challenges. All opinions received
will be prompt handled by the relevant team. We grow up
together with most of our customers in past years and we
have established solid and long-term relationships with them.
We also have built up a trust and good reputation among
our customers over the years.

Suppliers and business partners

For our suppliers and business partners, we strive to maintain
a stable and long-term relationship with them. The Group's
procurement is based on our stringent suppliers’ selection
criteria. To ensure the highest quality of products, the Group
has requested the suppliers to provide product certification.
In addition, we engaged highly reputable independent
laboratories for quality testing to ensure that the products
comply with local and international standards. Our sales
team and procurement team will have regular visit to our
suppliers’ factories for inspection. In order to allow our
customers to have direct feedback channel to the suppliers,
we will also organize some factory tours to the customers.
This can let them better understanding of the production
flow and products quality affirmation in order to win the
utmost confidence of customers.

Investors and shareholders

For the investors and shareholders, we maintain a high
level of transparency and communicate with them through
meetings, announcements and circulars. The Company
maintains a website, the information will be updated from
time to time. In addition, a dedicated email address is set out
in the “IR Contact” section of the Company’s website for
investor and general public inquiry.

(i)

(iii)

(iv)
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2022
amounted to approximately HK$128.7 million.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in properties, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in Note 13 to the financial statements.
SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set
out in Note 23 to the financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2022
are set out in Note 25 to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or
sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the Bermuda Companies Act, being the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2022 are set out in Note 36 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lai Fulin (Chairman)
Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson

Mr. Chen Wei Wen

Mr. Guan Zhigiang

Mr. Wang Chaolong (Appointed on 3 January 2023)

In accordance with bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws of the Company,
Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson and Mr. Guan Zhigiang will retire
from office by rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting. In accordance
with bye-law 102(B) of the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Wang
Chaolong will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
The retiring director being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers that
all of them are independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior management are
set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has
entered in to any service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, which is not terminable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors and their respective associates has an
interest in any business which competes or may compete with the
business in which the Group engaged.

CHANGE IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to the disclosure requirement under Rule 13.51B(1)
of the Listing Rules, the changes in details of the Directors’
information subsequent to the date of the interim report of the
Company for the six months ended 30 June 2022 are set out
below:

With effect from 1 January 2023, the annual directors’ fee of
Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson and Mr. Guan Zhigiang revised
from HK$200,000 to HK$150,000 respectively and the annual
director fee of Mr. Chen Wei Wen revised from HK$150,000 to
HK$100,000.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 21 May
2015, the shareholders of the Company approved the adoption of
a new share option scheme (the “2015 Scheme"”) under which the
directors of the Company may grant options to eligible persons
to subscribe for the Company’s shares subject to the terms and
conditions as stipulated therein. Unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, the 2015 Scheme will remain valid for a period of 10
years from the date of its adoption.

The 2015 Scheme

The details of 2015 Scheme are as follows:

(a) Purpose

The purpose of the 2015 Scheme is to recognize and
acknowledge the contributions or potential contributions
made or to be made by the participants to the Group, to
motivate the participants to optimize their performance and
efficiency for the benefit of the Group, and to maintain or
attract business relationship with the participants whose
contributions are or may be beneficial to the growth of the
Group.
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(b)

(9]

(d)

Participants

The Board may offer to grant options to the participants
which means (i) any director (including any executive director,
non-executive director or independent non- executive
director) of any member of the Group; (ii) any employee
(whether in full time or part-time employment) of any
member of the Group; (iii) any consultant, adviser, supplier,
customer or subcontractor of the Group, and (iv) any other
person whatsoever from time to time determined by the
Board as having contributed to the development, growth or
benefit of the Group.

Total number of shares available for issue under the
Scheme

The total number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of the general meeting
of the Company approving the Scheme. The number of
shares may be refreshed by the approval of the shareholders
and the refreshed limit of the number of shares must not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as
the date of the approval of the refreshed limit. The maximum
number of shares of the Company which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares available for issue under the
Scheme is 133,226,600 Shares, representing 10% of the
total number of shares of the Company in issue as at the
date of this report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Total number of shares of the Company issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each
participant (including exercised or outstanding options) in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
shares in issue as at the date of grant.

(b)

(9]

(d)
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(e)

/)

(9)

(h

Minimum period for options to be held

No minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised unless otherwise specified in the relevant
offer letter.

Period and payment on acceptance of options

Pursuant to the Scheme, HK$10 is payable by the grantee to
the Company on acceptance of the option within 28 days
from the date of grant of the option.

Basis determining the subscription price

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Scheme shall be a price determined
by the Board and notified to the participants and shall be
at least the highest of (a) the closing price of the shares as
stated in The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) daily quotation sheet on the
date on which the options are deemed to be granted and
accepted in accordance with the terms of the Scheme (the
“Commencement Date”), which must be a business day; (b)
the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the Commencement
Date; and (c) the nominal value of the shares.

Life of the Scheme

Subject to earlier termination by the Company at general
meeting or by the Board, the life of the Scheme commenced
from 21 May 2015, the date of adoption, and ended on 20
May 2025.

As at 31 December 2022, no share option was granted by the
Company under the 2015 Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were set out
below:

Long positions in the shares and underlying share of
the Company

Personal
Name of Director Capacity Interests
EEEB 5t B AR
Yu Ben Ansheng Beneficial owner/Interest of 3,000,000
controlled corporation
MRk ERBEBAN/RELZEER
Note:

These shares are held by King Jade Holdings Limited, which is wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng, an executive Director and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Yu is deemed to
be interested in such shares under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors or chief executive or their respective associates had
any interests or short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2022, the interests or short positions of the n=

following persons or corporations, other than the Directors or
chief executive of the Company, in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as

follows:

Long position in share and underlying share of the

Company

Name of shareholders

BREREM

Singapore Zhongxin Investment
Company Limited (ot %0

Li Juan (ote2)
25 48 Wiz2)

Qu Zhi
HE

King Jade Holdings Limited (ot 3 #i3)

Notes:

Capacity
=37}

Beneficial owner

BB A

Interest of spouse

[

Beneficial owner

BEEA A

Beneficial owner

ESEEA

FERR
T F+ZA=+—H
EE(EXFHBEZARAREERRSITERA
BERIN AR BN RAERER DA AEER
RARBIREBEESFRBPEKRHIEIZ6IERTE
ZERMzERSOAR T

AT ALE

RAERXRDRGREBERD 2HFR

Number
of shares/  Approximate
underlying percentage of
shares held shares in issue
FrisRe,  (REBRTRE
HERDEE BMYOBL
438,720,620 32.93%
438,720,620 32.93%
333,317,500 25.02%
146,000,000 10.95%

GEE

1. Singapore Zhongxin Investment Company Limited is wholly and 1.
beneficially owned by Mr. Lai Guanglin. Accordingly, Mr. Lai is
deemed to be interested in such shares under the SFO.

2. Ms. LiJuan, the spouse of Mr. Lai Guanglin, is also deemed to be 2.
interested in Mr. Lai's interest in the Company under the SFO.

3. King Jade Holdings Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. 3.
Yu Ben Ansheng, an executive Director and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Yu is deemed to be
interested in such shares under the SFO.

100
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Company
had not been notified by any persons or corporations, other
than the Directors or chief executive of the Company, who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or existed during the year.

DONATIONS

Donations for charitable made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$8,200.

SHARES ISSUED

The Company has not issued any share during the year ended 31
December 2022.

DEBENTURE ISSUED

The Company has not issued any debenture during the year ended
31 December 2022.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or
existed during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in
or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise
in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Group throughout the year.
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MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the disclosure of related party transactions set out in Note
30 to the financial statements, no Director or an entity connected
with Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in
relation to the business of the Group to which the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'S INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

There was no contract of significance between any members of
the Group and the Company’s controlling shareholders subsisting
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME" above, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

1. From 1 January 2022 to 31 March 2022, the Group paid
consultancy fee to a company, Brothers Capital Limited
(“BCL"), owned by Mr. Lai Guanglin (“Mr. Lai") for a fixed
sum of HK$373,000 per month as agreed by both parties
according to the consultancy services agreement dated 1
April 2021 for the period from 1 April 2021 to 31 March
2022. This is a continuing connected transaction which is
exempted under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules. The total
amount of consultancy services fees paid by the Company
was HK$1,119,000 for the period from 1 January 2022 to 31
March 2022.
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On 1 April 2022, the new Consultancy Services Agreement
(the “Agreement”) was entered into between the Company
and BCL, pursuant to which the Company agreed to appoint
BCL for the provision of certain consultancy services. The
term of the Agreement shall be a period of one year from 1
April 2022 to 31 March 2023. The consultancy service fee
was fully paid on signing of the agreement. Mr. Lai is the
controlling shareholder of the Company. As BCL is directly
wholly-owned by Mr. Lai and he is the sole director, BCL is
an associate of Mr. Lai and therefore, is an associate of the
connected person of the Company under Rule 14A.13(3)
of the Listing Rules. Pursuant to the Agreement, BCL shall
provide the Company with consultancy services in connection
with its investment and corporate strategy. The total
amount of consultancy services fees paid by the Company
was HK$3,357,000 for the period from 1 April 2022 to
31 December 2022. This amount does not exceed the cap
amount of HK$3,357,000 for the period from 1 April 2022
to 31 December 2022 as shown in the announcement of the
Company dated 1 April 2022.

As mentioned in the announcement dated 11 May 2016
and the circular dated 15 July 2016 of the Company, on 11
May 2016, Mao Xing Limited (now known as Softpower
(China) Limited), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
(the “Lender”), entered into a loan agreement (the “Loan
Agreement”) with China Victory International Holdings
Limited, (“CVIL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Agria
Corporation, pursuant to which the Lender has conditionally
agreed to grant to CVIL a loan facility in the amount
of up to US$10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$77,746,000) upon and subject to the terms and
conditions set out therein.

As at the date of the Loan Agreement, Mr. Lai Guanglin,
the former director and the controlling shareholder of
the Company (Mr. Lai resigned as director on 30 March
2018) and was also the controlling shareholder of Agria
Corporation. As such, CVIL is therefore a connected person
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The transactions contemplated under the Loan Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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The loan carried interest at 10.5% per annum and is
repayable by 31 July 2019. The loan was secured by the
entire issued shares of CVIL executed by Agria Group Limited
("AGL"), the immediate holding company of CVIL, and also
guaranteed by a deed of corporate guarantee executed by
Agria Corporation in favour of the Group.

Pursuant to a resolution passed in a special general meeting
on 23 February 2018, the Group agreed to novate and AGL,
a wholly -owned subsidiary of Agria Corporation and the
immediate holding company of CVIL, agreed to assume
the Group’s loan to CVIL of US$10,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$78,357,000) with all other terms and conditions
remained unchanged.

On 9 May 2019, the Group entered into a loan agreement
(“2019 Loan Agreement”) with AGL to renew the loan and
the proposed annual caps from 1 August 2020 to 31 July
2022.

Under the 2019 Loan Agreement, the clause of the share
mortgage executed by AGL, being the sole shareholder of
CVIL, over the entire issued shares of CVIL in favour of the
Group has been removed. Save as the above amendments, all
other terms of the 2019 Loan Agreement remain unchanged
and continue in full force and effect.

On 21 July 2020, the Group and AGL agreed to enter into
a supplemental loan agreement (“2020 Supplemental Loan
Agreement”) to adjust downward the interest rate for each
of the interest period from ten point five per cent (10.5%) of
the Loan per annum to five point five per cent (5.5%) of the
Loan per annum.

The Loan is also secured by a share charge to be executed
by the Borrower in favour of the Lender as a continuing
security and continuing obligation for performance by the
Borrower of its obligations in the 2019 Loan Agreement (as
amended or supplemented by the 2020 Supplemental Loan
Agreement). Pursuant to the share charge, the Borrower will
charge 20% of its share interests in Agria Asia Investments
Limited (“AAIL") to the Lender. AAIL is a company with
limited liability incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and
is wholly-owned by the Borrower. AAIL is indirectly holding a
share equity investment in an agricultural enterprise in New
Zealand through Agria (Singapore) Pte. Ltd, the only and
wholly-owned direct subsidiary of AAIL.
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Save and except for the revision on the original interest rate
and the share charge by AGL, all other terms as set out in
the 2019 Loan Agreement remain unchanged.

Pursuant to a resolution passed in a special general meeting
on 12 August 2020, 2020 Supplemental Loan Agreement
was approved.

The annual caps of the maximum principal loan outstanding
for the years ended 31 December 2019, 31 December 2020,
31 December 2021 and period ended 31 July 2022 were
US$10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$78,500,000) for each
year/period.

The annual caps of the interest amounts for the period from
1 January 2020 to 11 August 2020, period from 12 August
2020 (assumed the effective date of 2020 Supplemental
Loan Agreement) to 31 December 2020, year ended 31
December 2021 and period ended 31 July 2022 were
Us$645,000, US$214,000, US$550,000 and US$320,000
respectively (“Annual Caps”). The 2020 Supplemental Loan
Agreement, Annual Caps of the principal loan outstanding
and interest amounts were approved by the shareholders of
the Company at the Company’s special general meeting on
12 August 2020.

As the loan and the annual caps of the aforesaid continuing
connected transaction will expire on 31 July 2022, the Group
entered into a new loan agreement dated 22 April 2022
(“2022 Loan Agreement”) with the AGL to renew the loan
and the proposed annual caps from 1 August 2022 to 31
July 2025. All terms as set out in the 2022 Loan Agreement
remain the same as 2020 Supplemental Loan Agreement.

The new annual caps of the interest amounts for the
financial period from 1 August 2022 (assumed the
effective date of 2022 Loan Agreement) to 31 December
2022, year ending 31 December 2023, year ending 31
December 2024 and period from 1 January 2025 to 31
July 2025 were US$231,000, US$550,000, US$552,000
and US$320,000 respectively (“New Annual Caps”). The
2022 Loan Agreement, New Annual Caps of the principal
loan outstanding and interest amounts were approved by
the shareholders of the Company at the Company’s special
general meeting on 8 July 2022.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022, the interest income
from AGL amounted to approximately US$550,000,
(equivalent to HK$4,324,000) (2021: US$550,000 (equivalent
to HK$4,293,000)).

As at 31 December 2022, the loan to AGL amounted
to US$10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$78,278,000)
(31 December 2021: US$10,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$78,276,000)).

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company
have reviewed the continuing connected transaction and
confirmed that (i) the entering into of the Loan Agreement,
although it is not conducted in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group, it is in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders as a whole; and (ii) the terms
of the loan agreement and the Annual Caps are on normal
commercial terms and are fair and reasonable.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transaction in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the above mentioned
continuing connected transaction in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

The Group entered into the following connected transaction
during the year:

On 8 December 2022, Bun Kee (International) Limited (“Bun
Kee"), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
as lender entered into the loan agreement with Mr. Lai Fulin
(executive director and the chairman of the Company), as
borrower, pursuant to which Bun Kee agreed to, among other
things, provide to a secured loan of HK$5,000,000 to Mr. Lai Fulin
for a fixed term 3 years from the date of drawdown and interest
payable was calculated at 6% per annum. The interest shall be
paid quarterly in arrears with the first interest repayment date on
31 December 2022.

The loan was secured by personal guarantee from the controlling
shareholder of the Company, Mr. Lai Guanglin, the elder brother
of Mr. Lai Fulin.

Further details are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 8 December 2022.

Save as disclosed above and in Note 30 to the financial
statements, during the year, there were no connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which are required to comply
with any of the reporting, announcement or independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable
to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:
Purchases

—  the largest supplier 24.5%

- five largest suppliers combined 61.8%

Sales

—  the largest customer 4.4%

—  five largest customers combined 18.3%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Details of the compliance with corporate governance code of
the Company are set out in the “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT” of this Annual Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee consists of four independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson, Mr. Chen Wei
Wen, Mr. Guan Zhigiang and Mr. Wang Chaolong.

By reference to "A Guide for the Formation of An Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, written terms of reference which describe the
authority and duties of the audit committee were prepared and
adopted by the Board of the Company.

The annual results have been reviewed by the audit committee of
the Company.
SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float required under the Listing
Rules as at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

By Order of the Board

Lai Fulin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2023
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To the Shareholders of China Pipe Group Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of China Pipe Group Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set
out on pages 118 to 215, comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022;

e the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 7 A B

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

. Net realisable value of inventories
e Impairment of trade receivables

e Impairment of loan to a related company
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Key Audit Matter
BERENSBE

Net realisable value of inventories
Refer to notes 4 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2022, inventories of
the Group amounted to approximately
HK$243.7 million. As described in the Basis
of preparation and accounting policies
in note 2(j) to the consolidated financial
statements, inventories are carried at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

Management applied judgment in
determining the approprlate provisions
for slow moving, obsolete inventories and
inventories with net realisable value below
cost. Net realisable value is determined based
upon a detailed analysis of the aging of
inventories on a product-by-product basis,
and with reference to their latest invoice
prices and current market conditions. An
impairment provision of approximately
HK$19.8 million has been recorded to reduce
the carrying value of certain inventories to
their estimated net realisable value.

We focused on this area due to the size
of the balances and the higher degree of
estimation uncertainty and subjectivity in
management’s judgment in determining the
net realisable value of the inventories.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BHNETMAEEERET SR

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment on net
realisable value of inventories included:

Understood and evaluated the appropriateness and consistency
of the basis management used in estimating the level of
provision for inventories, and assessed the inherent risk of
material misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors such
as complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud.

Compared the historical accuracy of inventory provisioning,
on a sample basis, to the realised amount and evaluated the
outcome of prior period assessment of inventory provision to
assess the effectiveness of management’s estimation process;
and reviewing the level of inventory write-offs during the year.

Checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy of inventory aging
used by management to estimate the appropriate provision for
slow moving and obsolete inventories.

Performed audit analytics on inventory holding and movement
data to identify products with indication of slow moving or
obsolescence.

Compared the carrying amounts of a sample of inventories
to their net realisable value by checking to their selling price
subsequent to the year end. Where there are no subsequent
sales of the respective products after the year end, we
challenged management as to the realisable value of the
products, corroborating explanations with the aging, sales
orders, historical margins and marketability of the respective
inventories, as appropriate.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the assumptions of
management in relation to assessment on net realisable value of
inventories to be supportable by available evidence.
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Key Audit Matter
ERESBE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
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Impairment of trade receivables
Refer to notes 4 and 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group
held trade receivables of approximately
HK$151.5 million net of the provision of
approximately HK$1.3 million. Recoverability
is assessed and provision is made for lifetime
expected credit losses on trade receivables.

Management applied judgement in
determining the appropnate loss allowance
on trade receivables. Trade receivables
relating to customers with known financial
difficulties or significant doubt on collection
are assessed individually for provision for
loss allowance. Expected credit losses are
estimated by grouping the remaining trade
receivables based on shared credit risk
characteristics and collectively assessed
for likelihood of recovery, taking into
account the nature of the customers, their
geographical locations and their ageing
categories, and applying expected credit
loss rates to the respective gross carrying
amounts of the trade receivables. The
expected credit loss rates are determined
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience with an adjustment to reflect
current and forward-looking information
such as macroeconomic factors affecting
the ability of the customers to settle the
receivables.

We focused on this area due to the size
of the balances and the higher degree of
estimation uncertainty and subjectivity in
management’s judgment in determining the
expected credit loss allowance of the trade
receivables.
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CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment on
provision for loss allowance on trade receivables included:

Understood, evaluated and tested, on a sample basis,
management’s key control over the assessment on
recoverability of trade receivable balances and the related
loss allowance, including periodic review on trade receivables
aging, historical loss rates and approval of provision made,
and assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and level
of other inherent risk factors such as complexity, subjectivity,
changes and susceptibility to management bias or fraud.

Checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy of trade receivables
aging used by management to estimate the appropriate
provision for loss allowance.

Obtained management’s assessment on the expected credit loss
allowance of trade receivables and assessed the reasonableness
of the expected loss rates. We corroborated and validated
management’s assessment based on the historical settlement
pattern, correspondence with the customers, and evidence
from external sources including the relevant public search
results relating to the financial circumstances of the relevant
customers.

Assessed management’s assessment of current market
condition and forward-looking information such as
macroeconomic factors by comparing the data used by
management against publicly available information.

Checked the mathematical accuracy of management’s
calculation for loss allowance of trade receivables.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the judgement
and estimates made by management in relation to assessment on
provision for loss allowance on trade receivables to be supportable
by available evidence.
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Key Audit Matter
BERENSBE

Impairment of loan to a related company
Refer to notes 4, 19 and 30(e) to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group held a
loan to a related company of approximately
HK$78.2 million net of the provision of
approximately HK$0.1 million.

Management applied judgement in
determining the appropnate loss allowance
for impairment of loan to the related
company. The loan is secured by corporate
guarantee by the holding company of
the borrower (the “Guarantor”) and a
20% share charge over a subsidiary of
the borrower. The loan is interest bearing
and repayable by July 2025 as detailed in
note 30(e) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Management reviewed the financial
conditions of the related company and
the Guarantor, taking into account the
settlement history of the related interest
elements, and a provision of HK$0.1 million
is made for this loan as at 31 December
2022.

We focused on this area due to the size
of the balance and the higher degree of
estimation uncertainty and subjectivity in
management’s judgment in determining the
recoverable amount of the loan.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BHNETMAEEERET SR

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment
on the loan receivable included:

Understood and evaluated management assessment on
impairment of loan to a related company, and assessed the
inherent risk of material misstatement by considering the
degree of estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors such as complexity, subjectivity, changes and
susceptibility to management bias or fraud.

Reviewed the loan agreement and obtained direct confirmation
from the related company on the balance and terms of the
loan as at 31 December 2022 with no exception.

Checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy of interest payment
received and whether they are in accordance with the terms of
the loan.

Challenged management as to the recoverability of the loan,
corroborating explanations with the latest financial information
of the related company and the Guarantor and value of
secured assets.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the assumptions of
management in relation to the impairment assessment on loan to
the related company to be supportable by available evidence.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for overseeing the Group'’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ng Hiu Tung.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2023
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Consolidated Income Statement

S e E
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-A=+—HLFE
Restated
=)
2022 2021
—E-CF T
Note HK$000 HK$'000
Kt FAET FEIT
Continuing operation: FIEEERT -
Revenue A 5 636,535 682,187
Cost of sales SHE KA 7 (461,678) (486,428)
Gross profit EF 174,857 195,759
Other gains, net H b5 558 6 4,064 2,090
Selling and distribution costs HE KD HK AR 7 (19,710) (21,558)
General and administrative expenses ~ —f& R ITIE 7 (101,367) (108,551)
Provision for impairment of financial & &EE ERBE B G
assets 7 (61) (1,238)
Operating profit K A 57,783 66,502
Finance income B A 9 6,384 4,632
Finance costs MIEER 9 (5,925) (5,843)
Finance income/(costs), net WA (B ) B8 9 459 (1,211)
Profit before income tax AR A 58,242 65,291
Tax expense MBS 10 (9,024) (9,324)
Profit for the year from continuing SE LB FE R
operation 49,218 55,967
Discontinued operation: A EERTE
Profit for the year from discontinued 4% 1B %55 2 FEH A
operation 33 - 348
Profit for the year KEZ 5 F 49,218 56,315
Profit/(loss) attributable to: mAL (B18) BB
Equity holders of the Company RAREEFEA 49,218 56,424
Non-controlling interests PR i S - (109)
49,218 56,315
Restated
(&&E7)
HK cents HK cents
B JBN
Earnings per share BRET 11
Basic and diluted EARREE
From continuing operation REFHEEEEY 3.69 4.20
From discontinued operation RE R IEEEBHET - 0.03
3.69 423
The above consolidated income statement should be read in R o 7 JIE ERLE BT P 5 — G BRE

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED # EIE X &£ B ER 2 7



Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:
Item that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:

Actuarial gain on post-employment

benefit obligations, net of tax
Item that may be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss:
Currency translation differences
Release of exchange reserve upon
disposal of subsidiaries

Realisation of exchange reserve upon

deregistration of a subsidiary

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
fo B 2 v AL i

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—#+-A=+—HI=FE

Other comprehensive (loss)/income for AF[EE 2 (F518) WS -

the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Total comprehensive income/(loss)
attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income
attributable to Equity holders
of the Company:

Continuing operation
Discontinued operation

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Restated
(&%)
2022 2021
—ZE-— —E-—F
Note HK$000 HK$000
Kt FAET FEIT
KEF 7T 49,218 56,315
Hth 2w
BEHET S EREFEE e
EEZIER -
BB R BAES R RBE S -
MBRFHIRE 24 173 319
H 1% A LB FT AR E ik F et 1R
ZIEH :
IR E R (824) 296
B B N TR R B 3 R
= 835
ST — MM E A BIRSE L e
W3R - 153
R IRE (651) 1,603
AFEEEHEKSERE
48,567 57,918
2HEWES, (B18) 4258
SRR
KAFRERFA A 48,567 58,006
Bl O = (88)
48,567 57,918
EHEWSBEER BN
KARRERFEA A
BHEEEE 48,567 56,672
4R\ E TS - 1,334
48,567 58,006

2 T Was 2 R SIS P B E — 61 5O
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B A IR DL

As at 31 December 2022
R-ZB-_—_F+=-HA=+—H

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Loan to a related company
Loan to a director

Rental deposits and other assets

Current assets

Loan to a related company

Inventories

Trade receivables

Deposits, prepayments and
other receivables

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Tax recoverable

Pledged certificate of deposit

Pledged bank deposits

Cash and bank balances

Total assets

EQUITY
Equity holders

Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be

EE

FRBEE

W - B k&
EREEE
BEE
ERT—HEERR
ERXTUEF
MERENEMEE

REBEE

ERT—HERR

(E3

B HRWR

we  BNRREAMD
FEMRIE

BRABEFARS
ZEBEE

AU EIBR
BEERERE
BEMRTER

Re RRITHER

G
BEFAA
AR
e

mEs

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Note
Hizz

19
18
19

19
20
21

21
22

23
24

Restated Restated

(f=E7)) (f=E7))

31/12/2022 31/12/2021 01/01/2021
—E-CF B —E-—fF
+=A=+—H +=-A=1+—H —H—H
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET
5,093 1,751 3,634
91,998 96,480 114,977
324 375 426
78,154 - 77,706
5,000 - -
7,369 6,598 6,524
187,938 105,204 203,267

- 78,152 -

243,703 273,874 192,993
151,481 159,554 127,476
64,500 65,057 55,987
1,513 1,706 1,742

750 2 4

- 10,000 10,000

46,000 36,000 36,000
206,487 172,084 189,088
714,434 796,429 613,290
902,372 901,633 816,557
26,645 26,645 26,645
645,026 596,459 535,266
671,671 623,104 561,911

tiiRE

i
H=J)

S 75 AR 0 2K B £ B Y B S — BF B



LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities
Other non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade payables, other payables
and contract liabilities

Taxation payable

Lease liabilities

Borrowings

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current
liabilities

The financial statements on pages 118 to 215 were approved by
the board of Directors on 28 March 2023 and were signed on its

behalf:

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
LA BRI R

As at 31 December 2022
R-ZB-_—_F+-A=+—H

Note
Mz
=L
FRBEE
HEERE 14
FLERIBEE 26
HinIEmBaE
REBEE

BIENFIE - HftpE
NgERkEREE 27

FEfIHIE

HEBE 14

BE 25

wnas

BEERAR

REERABRE

Lai Fulin 38188
Director %

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Restated Restated

(f=E7)) (/= E7))

31/12/2022 31/12/2021 01/01/2021
—E-CF B T
+=A=+—H +=-A=+—H —H—H
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET
78,124 85,099 98,979
2,117 1,663 1,508

542 974 1,527

80,783 87,736 102,014
73,634 108,550 71,011

26 7,497 3,000

22,905 18,727 21,637
53,353 56,019 56,984
149,918 190,793 152,632
230,701 278,529 254,646
902,372 901,633 816,557
564,516 605,636 460,658
752,454 710,840 663,925

£2 g

i

s °

Yu Ben Ansheng 81 %4
Director %

F118E215 BN BHRAEHETSR_Z
“=HE=A-t+N\B#t TRREFEE

bt AR A B IR 3R 8 2 B Y Y A — 6 BO
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
A HE f B B R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE

Restated
HET|
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
RATEERANERIR

Non-
Share Share Gpital  Merger  Statutory Other  Exchange  Refained  confroling
aptal  premum  reeve  reseve  resene fene  fesene  eamings inferests Tota

Br  RbEE HARR  oWER  ATBR  REER  EXRE  REEN MR 0 4B
SO SO HSOOD HKSON SO0 HKSOWD KO A0 HKSOID RSO
AT TET  TEr  fET  Tér AT TAr TRt TET TR

At 31 December 2020 R-Z-RETA=T-A
As previously stated LA 26,645 126552 N5 3,700 pli} 1915 (145 371,603 (3187 5612
Eifectof change n accounting poliy ~ ERBRET 2T
Mote 26) W) - - - - - - - 69 - 6%9
Asrestated L] 6665 1652 M5 370 u 1915 (145) 322 B8 51N
At 1 January 2021 N-E--%-A-H 26,645 126,552 34,115 3,700 pli 1915 (145 3729 (3,187) 561911
Proft for the ear KERE - - - - - - - S (109 56305
Other comprehensive income: ERENG:
Reease of xchange resenewpon - ENBLIRERES
disposal ofsubsicaies e - - - - - - 85 - - 835
Realisaton of exchange resenvewpon B D TRER
deregistration of a subsicary iR - - - - - - 153 - = 153
Actuara gain on post-employment BB EFIERMRE
beneft obligations, netof tax W - AR - - - - - 319 - - - 319
Curency transaton diferences SHAEES - - - - - - DL - i 2%
Total comprehensive income TERAENRER
forthe year - - - - - 319 1,63 56,424 89) 571918
Transactions with owners HRENIRS:
Disposal ofsubsiciris HENEAT - - - - - - - - 3275 3075
At 31 December 2021 BE-FF2A=t-B 26645 126,55 3415 3,700 I 2034 1118 428716 - 68104

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be L allAR A e 2 B B 3R FE B BE BB 5 — OF B8
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. B o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-__H+-_A=+—RHIFE

Restated
HED]
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
KAEREREAREDS
Share Share Capital Merger ~ Statutory Other  Exchange  Retained
capitl ~ premium Teserve reserve reserve Teserve reserve  eamings Total
BE  RGRE B4R  ABBR  iTEE  BMEE  EXRE  REEA g
HKS000  HKSUOD  HKSORD  HKSOOD  HKSUOO  HKSUOD  HKSODD  HKSURD  HKSUOOD
72 72 Tér -2 7 Té1 iz 72 72
At 31 December 2021 e e a
s previously sated pdi 58 665 126552 34115 3,700 U 234 118 433909 68297
Hfectof change inaccownting poliy ~~ E31HREE 2 T8
Moie 26) i) - - - - § - - 6 69
As restated &5 26,645 126,552 115 3,700 U 234 1118 48716 623,104
At1 January 2022 2l 26,645 126,552 3115 3700 U 234 1118 428116 623,104
Proft for the ear RERRH - - - - - - - 49218 19218
Other comprehensie income Ef2EYE:
Actuaral gan on post-employment - SRR IR ATEENG -
benefit oigations, netoftax sHEE - - - e = 13 e = 13
Curency transaton diferences EFRHEEE - - - - - - (824) - (824)
Total comprehensive income for the year - A 2ENEEE - - - - - 13 (B4) 4928 48,567
At 31 Decerber 2022 2 s o 26,645 126,552 3115 3700 U 2407 29 477,934 671,671

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be
read in'conjunction with the accompanying notes.

AR A He 25 B B 3K B B P B S — 61 B9

i
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BaBleiEg

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE-_ZT-_—_F+-A=-+—HL=FE

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations
Interest paid

Interest received

Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Net cash outflow for disposal of subsidiaries

Dividend income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Drawdown of borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Addition of pledged bank deposits

Purchase of pledged certificate of deposit
Redemption of pledged certificate of deposit
Loan to a director

Principal elements of lease payments

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Exchange differences

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
the year

REZH2HERE

REXBEL RS
ENHME
BEWHE
ERFAEHR
REEHELRTFR
REZDRERE

BADE - BELERE
HEMBARR SR HFE

BARBESARGECEREE
ZBBWA

REEHAARTFR

REEBHRERE

RARE
BEEE
R EERRITIEN
BADERENRE
EEAESENED
EXTUESF

g B R E R

BMERDMARSFE
Re kB EEMEM/ (RD)
R

(5 EH
FZRERREEEY

FRZASRBATEEN

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Note
(k23

29

13
34

22

22

2022 2021
—EC-CF T
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET
87,523 12,287
(5,844) (5,922)
5,548 4,740
(16,825) (4,737)
70,402 6,368
(5,099) (850)
= (48)

65 61
(5,034) (837)
387,260 439,969
(389,926) (440,934)
(10,000) -
- (10,015)

10,000 10,000
(5,000) -
(22,075) (22,189)
(29,741) (23,169)
35,627 (17,638)
(1,224) 634
172,084 189,088
206,487 172,084
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

General information

China Pipe Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged
in trading of construction materials, mainly pipes and fittings.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Victoria Place,
5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda.
The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”).

The Group discontinued the business in biomass pellet fuel
products segment in 2020 and completed the disposal of
the entire equity interest in Guizhou Zhongguan Industry
Development Limited* (EMFPEEEZERBRAF]) in
2021, which engaged biomass pellet fuel products business
through its 66.7% equity interests owned subsidiary namely
of Guizhou Zhongguan New Energy Limited* (& /1FRE 6L
JRABRZAF]). The consideration was RMB1. The disposal was
completed in March 2021. A gain on disposal of subsidiaries
of approximately HK$692,000 was recognised in the
consolidated income statement. Further details are set out in
Note 34.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2023.

Basis of preparation and accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs"”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, which are carried at
fair value.

B o A B R W

—REHR
FEEEEEARAR (ARA)RE

MEBAR (R ARE]) ETENEZE
MRH(EBREENEFZES -

RAARB—HEBREEAMKI A
FRAF - R B S=E AR Victoria Place,
5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton
HM 10, Bermuda ° 22 RIR {7 18 & BBt
ERGFERRAT (BB ER
Efre

RZZZZEF AEEERIEEWERE
KRBIE D B2 %55 - W =T = —
FEREEEMNFETEEERBR AR
2EIRARERS - EMNFPEBEEEREAR
NABEBEIEE66.7%R AN 2 BB
Nal (BN EHERERAR)KEE
YEBENAEERES - HEREBAA
R¥1 - HESHER=Z-_—F=A
ERK - B Z WE 4 £692,0008 T8
REEE R RAER - #E—PF155E
RHTEE34S ©

BRIESHATIE - NREFBHREAET
(BT 27 - Nz M BEHRERELH
Exea_T-_—F=-A—-+/\HiLE
FzE -

RAEER EETBUR

DX ED i B TR A R TR R R 2R
ZEBGER - BRIFR AP - IR
MEBREBEFEMERAEBE
ﬁﬁ o]

REMBRERTIRBER Y BHRE LR
(IBBMHHREEL]) BB RG]
(622%) ] ERKILIRE L XAEMR
2 RUAAEBEFEBREZSHTAR
S EREEMELERT -
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Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed in Note 4.

The Group has applied the following amendments to
standards for the first time for the annual reporting period
commencing 1 January 2022:

Amendments to HKAS 16  Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before intended use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract
Merger Accounting for Common
Control Combinations
Reference to the Conceptual
Framework
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June
2021

AG 5 (Revised)

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to Annual
improvements project

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020

The Group has applied for the first time the above
amendments to standards issued by the HKICPA. The
adoption of amendments to standards do not have a material
impact on the Group’s results of operations or financial
position.

Issued but not yet effective new standards,
amendments to standards and interpretation

The following new standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations have been issued but are not effective for
the financial year beginning 1 January 2022 and have not
been early adopted by the Group. The Group is assessing the
impact of these new standards, amendments to standards
and interpretations.

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED # EIE X &£ B ER 2 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B U B R M
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B S B R M

Basis of preparation and accounting policies

(Continued)

Issued but not yet effective new standards,
amendments to standards and interpretation

(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS
1 and HKFRS Practice

Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 8

HKFRS 17 and
Amendments to
HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKFRS 16

HK Int 5 (Revised)

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction'

Definition of Accounting
Estimates’

Insurance Contracts'

Initial Application of HKFRS 17
and HKFRS 9 — Comparative
Information’

Classification of Liabilities as
Current and Non-current?

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants?

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets

and HKAS 28

between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

1 effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2023

2 effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2024

3 effective date to be determined

mAUEEN ETEER @)

EEAEERERZHTER - 5
Rl 2 AR 28 (@)

BB ERTERISEN
UACHEIINE
B TSR AR
BB REHE2R

FH gt £RIE12
EACHES)

BB GRTAERIES
EACHIEN)

FEWHRELER
FNTHRREEH
BREERIE17
EACHES)

BB IR EER
EAVEACCEIRS)

BB GRS
EACHES)

BB GRS
5 (BRI A)

FEWHHRELER
F165% (IER]A)

BERERSN
(f&&T)

BRI BREER
F10RRELES
FHAERIZE 2857
(CHIES;

REE—RHH
BERAREN
MERREER IR

SEHERTER

RERE 4

BXEABEY
R EZERIE
175 R BB
TR AERIZE9
SR EEE R

HaESEAR
B I IE B

M A2 I FE R
A &2

EkOANAE
afE?

PEHRENE
P —fERAE
SERERE
B AE BA
=G/ 0paR L

B & B
HEEDEZ
HMEERS
SFE3

1 R-ZE_=F—A— B2 BFRBNF

e

2 RITECHEFE—A—HRZERRNE

[EE AR

3 EBREHERETE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B U B R M

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

(a) Change in accounting policy

Prior to 1 January 2022, the cost of inventory was
determined on the first-in first-out basis. In preparing
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2022, the Group has re-considered the
appropriateness of its accounting policy on inventory
costing in view of the change in market circumstance
and industry practice. The directors of the Group
consider that changing from first-in first-out method
to weighted average method, which is an acceptable
inventory costing formula according to HKAS 2
Inventories, would provide more relevant and no less
reliable information on the financial performance. In
particular, such change could enhance comparability
with other industry players and timely reflect the change
in overall economic environment, value of inventories
and hence inventory cost in the financial performance
of the Group.

The change in accounting policy has been accounted
for retrospectively and the comparative figures for
the corresponding comparative prior periods has
been restated. Unaffected items are not included. The
relevant effect of this change is shown as below:

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED # EIE X &£ B ER 2 7

2. WMBEEERSHABER@®
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B S B R M

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies 2. REEERSTBER @

(Continued)
(a) BBREE @

(a) Change in accounting policy (Continued)

Summary of the effect of restatement on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the

ENH A EFEE —F - —F 1=
A=+—-HIFEGEHBEERY

year ended 31 December 2021 FEE
Consolidated income statement (Extracted) FelEE ()
Change in
As previously accounting
stated policy As restated
ZEIFTH ®EHCRE =gl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T TET
Continuing operation SEEEE
Cost of sales SHEM A (479,383) (7,045) (486,428)
Income tax expense FTiS i i (10,487) 1,163 (9,324)
Profit for the year REEHF 61,849 (5,882) 55,967
Profit attribute to i i)
— Equity holders of the Company - AR RIEZEHA A 62,306 (5,882) 56,424
HK cents HK cent HK cents
BN BN BN
Earnings per share FRAEF
— From continuing operation - RERELEEL 4.64 (0.44) 4.20
Consolidated statement of financial position e R (FER)
(Extracted)
Change in
As previously accounting
stated policy As restated
ZEIFT  SRHCRE KED|
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T FET
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 280,094 (6,220) 273,874
Current liabilities REAE
Taxation payable e IR 8,524 (1,027) 7,497
Equity R
Retained earnings REHH 433,909 (5,193) 428,716
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2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

(a) Change in accounting policy (Continued)

Summary of the effect of restatement on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the

year ended 1 January 2021

Consolidated statement of financial position

(Extracted)

Current assets
Inventories

Current liabilities
Taxation payable

Equity

Retained earnings

RBEE
78

REEE
AR

5o
RELE A

Summary of the effect of restatement on the
Group’s consolidated statement of equity

As at 31 December
As previously stated
Effects of change in

accounting policy

As restated

Kt=A=+—8
Z R
SHUFRE I VB

K&
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B U B R M

2. WMBEEERSHABER@®

(a) EFHBREE @)

EnH A EFEE—F = —F—F

—HIt FEGEHBH RN ZEE
E3
REMBMR T ()
Change in
As previously accounting
stated policy As restated
ZAIFT RS K=t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
192,168 825 192,993
2,864 136 3,000
371,603 689 372,292

B HF RS s R H) AR

Z
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
433,909 371,603
(5,193) 689
428,716 372,292




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Change in accounting policy (Continued)

The effect of the change in accounting policy on
consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2022 was to increase inventories by
HK$3,528,000 and increase taxation payable by
HK$582,000. The effect of the change in accounting
policy on consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 December 2022 was to increase income tax
expense by HK$582,000 and decrease cost of sales by
HK$3,528,000.

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group. The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

B B S B R M

2. WMBEEERSHABER@®

(a)

(b)

B BREE @

BRTEREFHN T F+=
A=1+—AMGRETHRAERNF
2 A1 IN17 & 3,528,000 7T M 15
DNFERI R IES82,000/8 7T - 5T
REFHNEBE—_ZT-_—F+=A
—+—HBIEFENGFERGERNE
B AIEINFTSHIZ 582,000 7T
ok 88 & A 43,528,000 7T ©

RERE

MEBAREAREEEAFES
BRI (BRERIEEE) -
EAREERAS2EZEEMAIER]
R ERKFH A & O RAOE
m o WEENEBHEAZTENE

R B DA - AL E BNES
ZER - MEBAREEHIREEE
AEBZHEAHIAR - HIBAF
EEHEERIEZBEEIEAHFA
BE o

AEBNBBEEGEBA A
R-BE-WBARMEENY
B RAEREE HRWESZ
RIFTBEAELMERE  RAEEE
TR R A2 EE - ISR
M EERE HE R EERN
EMEEMNRBENAAEE - £X
BattTrBERARNEEN R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B U B R M

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

(b) Consolidation (Continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquire on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-
controlling interests in the acquire that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are measured at either fair value or
the present ownership interest’s proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at their acquisition date fair
value, unless another measurement basis is required by
HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquire is re-
measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration
is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent
financier under comparable terms and conditions.
Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability
are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B S B R M

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies 2. REEERSTBER @

(Continued)

(b) Consolidation (Continued) (b) #ERE #@)

Inter-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying amount of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling interest are also
recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B U B R M

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

(c) Segment reporting

(d)

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors
of the Company that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

()

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK$, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or revaluation where items are remeasured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the income
statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B S B R M

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies 2. REEERSTBER @

(Continued)
(d) SMERE @)
(iii) FEL 7

(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

—  assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

— income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions);

— all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign operations, and of borrowings and other
currency instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to other comprehensive
income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B U B R M

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Group companies (Continued)
Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint
venture that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over
an associate that includes a foreign operation), all
of the currency translation differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable
to the owners of the company are reclassified to
profit or loss.

(e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, comprising, leasehold
improvements, plant and machinery, equipment,
furniture and fixtures and motor vehicles are stated
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance
expenses are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

()

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their costs to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

Plant, machinery and
equipment
Leasehold improvements

3-10 years

5 years or the lease
period, if shorter

Office furniture, fixtures 3-5 years
and fittings

Office equipment 3-5 years

Computer equipment 3-5 years

Motor vehicles 3-10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised within ‘Other gains, net’ in the consolidated
income statement.

Intangible assets
Trademark

Separately acquired trademark is shown at historical
cost. Trademark has a finite useful life and is carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the
cost of trademark over their estimated useful life of 10
years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B U B R M

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

(g) Impairment of investments in subsidiaries

and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example
goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are
at least tested annually for impairment. Assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(i.e. CGUs). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

(h) Financial assets

()

(i)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

—  those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through OCI or through profit or
loss), and

—  those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI.
For investments in equity instruments that are
not held for trading, this will depend on whether
the Group has made an irrevocable election at
the time of initial recognition to account for the
equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI).

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B U B R M

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies

(Continued)
(h) Financial assets (Continued)

(iiij) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL
are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

— Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses) together
with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate
line item in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies

(Continued)

(h) Financial assets (Continued)

(iiij) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest, are measured at FVOCI.
Movements in the carrying amount are taken
through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses which
are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in other gains/(losses). Interest
income from these financial assets is included
in finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in other gains/(losses)
and impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B U B R M

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

(h) Financial assets (Continued)

(iiij) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

—  FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net
within other gains/(losses) in the period in
which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OCI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value
gains and losses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from
such investments continue to be recognised in
profit or loss as other income when the Group’s
right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in other gains/(losses) in
the statement of profit or loss as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI
are not reported separately from other changes in
fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

(h) Financial assets (Continued)

()

(iv) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI.
The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables.

Impairment on other receivables is measured as
either 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime
expected credit losses, depending on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. If a significant increase
in credit risk of a receivables has occurred since
initial recognition, then impairment is measured as
lifetime expected credit losses.

Leases

The Group leases various office, warehouses, retail
shops and staff quarters. Property leases are typically
made for fixed periods of one to ten years. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
various different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants, but leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and the
corresponding liabilities at the date of which the
respective leased asset is available for use by the Group.
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit
or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B U B R M

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

()

Leases (Continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

e  variable lease payment that are based on an index
or a rate;

e amounts expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee
is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that
option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be
determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value in a similar economic environment with
similar terms and conditions.

Payments associated with short-term leases of office
and warehouse are recognised on a straight-line basis as
an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

()

(k)

)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold in the ordinary course of business. Trade
receivables are generally due for settlement within the
credit period and therefore are all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks and bank overdrafts. In the consolidated
statement of financial position, bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities.

(m) Share capital

(n)

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B U B R M

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the end of
reporting period.

Borrowings costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

(q) Employee benefits

()

(i)

(iii)

Employee leaves

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments are
recognised as a liability when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of services rendered by employees and a reliable
estimate of the obligation can be made.

Liabilities for bonus plans are expected to be
settled within twelve months and are measured at
the amounts expected to be paid when they are
settled.

Pension obligations

Following the adoption of the Mandatory
Provident Fund (“MPF") Scheme in December
2000, all employees of the Group employed in
Hong Kong joined the MPF Scheme. Under this
scheme, employees and the Group are required
to make contributions to the scheme calculated
at 5% of the individual employee’s monthly
basic salaries, subject to a cap of HK$1,500. The
Group's contributions to this scheme are expensed
when they are due. The assets of the scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B U B R M

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

(q) Employee benefits (Continued)

(iiij) Pension obligations (Continued)

The Group’s employees in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") are covered by various
government sponsored pension plans. These
government agencies are responsible for the
pension liabilities to these employees. The relevant
group companies pay monthly contributions to
these pension plans based on certain percentages
of the salaries, subject to a certain ceiling.

The employees employed by the operations in
Macau are members of the government-managed
retirement benefits schemes operated by the
Macau government. The Macau operations are
required to pay a monthly fixed contribution to the
retirement benefits schemes to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefits schemes operated by
the Macau government is to make the required
contributions under the schemes.

Under these plans, the Group has no legal or
constructive obligation to make further payments
once the required contributions have been paid.
Contributions to these plans are expensed as
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B S B R M

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies 2. REEERSTBER @

(Continued)
(q) EEERN @
(iv) URGRERZ 5

(q) Employee benefits (Continued)
(iv) Share-based payment

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan, under which the entity
receives services from employees as considerations
for equity instruments (options) of the Group.
The fair value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of the options is recognised
as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted:

e including any market performance conditions
(for example, an entity’s share price);

e excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over
a specified time period); and

e including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save or holding shares for a
specified period of time).

The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
At the end of each reporting period, the entity
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-market
performance and service conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision of original estimates, if
any, in the income statement with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B U B R M

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

(r) Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and
to unused tax losses.

()

(i)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at statement of financial position date
in the countries where the Company and its
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and considers whether it is probable
that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain
tax treatment. The Group measures its tax
balances either based on the most likely amount or
the expected value, depending on which method
provides a better prediction of the resolution of
the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss and does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B S B R M

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies 2. REEERSTBER @

(Continued)
(r) BEAREZERNIE ()
(i) EAZFFEH ()

(r) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between the
carrying amount and tax bases of investments in
foreign operations where the company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and where the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset
where the entity has a legally enforceable right
to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B U B R M

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

(s)

(t)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has
been reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Revenue recognition
(i) Sale of goods — wholesale

The Group sells a range of pipes and fittings. Sales
are recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered
to the customers, the customer has full discretion
over the products, and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the products.

Delivery occurs when the products have been
shipped to the specified location, the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the
customer, and either the customer has accepted
the products in accordance with the sales contract,
the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the
Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

Revenue from the sale of goods is based on the
price specified in the sales contracts. Accumulated
experience is used to estimate provision for
returns.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

(t)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
(i) Sale of goods — wholesale (Continued)

A receivable is recognised when the products
are delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is
due.

Deposits collected from the customers before
product delivery are recognised as contract
liabilities.

(i) Sale of goods - retail

The Group operates a chain of retail stores selling
pipes and fittings products. Revenue from the
sale of goods is recognised when a group entity
sells a product to the customer. Payment of the
transaction price is due immediately when the
customer purchases the product and takes delivery
in store.

(u) Interest income

(v)

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised in other
gain, net in the consolidated income statements at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Company will comply
with all attached conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B U B R M

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
(Continued)

(w) Dividend distribution

(x)

Dividend distribution to the company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company'’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the entity
that has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale
and that represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, is part of a single co-
ordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale. The results of discontinued
operation are presented separately in the income
statement.

3. Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit and counterparty risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s financial risk management
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group's financial performance by actively managing
debt level and cash flow in order to maintain a strong
financial position and minimising refinancing and
liquidity risks by attaining healthy debt repayment
capacity, appropriate maturity profile and availability of
banking facilities.
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk

(@)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates principally in Hong Kong
and in Macau with minor operations in the
Mainland China and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to the
United States dollars (“USD"), Macau Pataca
("MOP”) and Renminbi (“RMB"). Foreign
exchange risk mainly arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities, which are denominated in a
currency that is not the functional currency
of the group entities. In order to mitigate
the foreign currency risk, the Group has
been closely monitoring its foreign currency
exposure and requirements and will arrange
for any hedging facilities if necessary.

As HK$ is pegged against USD and MOP is
pegged against HK$, the Group is exposed
to limited exchange rate fluctuation. As a
result, the exchange rate risk exposure in
respect of USD and MOP are not significant.
While for RMB, the exchange rate fluctuation
is relatively volatile. At 31 December 2022,
if RMB had strengthened /weakened by
5% (2021: 5%) against HK$ with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit would
have been HK$62,000 (2021: HK$119,000)
higher /lower respectively mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation
of RMB-denominated financial assets and
liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B U B R M

3.

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(ir)

Interest rate risk

The Group's income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates. The Group's interest-
bearing assets mainly include loan to a
related company, loan to a director and bank
balances and deposits, details of which have
been disclosed in Notes 19, 21, 22 and 30.
The Group’s exposure to changes in interest
rates is also attributable to its borrowings,
details of which have been disclosed in Note
25. Borrowings carry at floating rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk
whereas those carry at fixed rates expose the
Group to fair value interest-rate risk. As at 31
December 2022, approximately 46% (2021:
18%) of the Group's borrowings were carried
at floating rates and expose the Group to
cash flow interest-rate risk. The Group has
not used any interest rate swaps to hedge its
exposure against cash flow interest-rate risks.

As at 31 December 2022, if interest rate
has increased/decreased by 100 (2021:
25) basis points with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 December 2022 would have been
HK$203,000 (2021: HK$21,000) lower/
higher, mainly as a result of increase/decrease
in interest expense on borrowings.
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit and counterparty risk

(@)

Risk management

Credit risk mainly arises from bank deposits,
trade and other receivables, other deposits,
loan to a related company and loan to a
director. The carrying amounts of these
balances substantially represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit and
counterparty risk in relation to financial assets.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021 all the
bank deposits are deposited in high quality
financial institutions without significant credit
risk. The credit risk on bank deposits is limited
because 55% (2021: 65%) of the Group's
bank balances are placed with subsidiaries of
state-owned banks and the rest are placed
with other reputable financial institutions.
Management does not expect any loss from
non-performance of these banks.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue trade and other
receivables.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B U B R M

3.

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit and counterparty risk (Continued)

(@

Risk management (Continued)

Rental deposits made to landlords are also
considered to be of low risk. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced. Other than the loan to a related
company as mentioned below, the Group
has no significant concentration of credit
risk, with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and customers.

In respect of the loan to a related company,
as detailed in Note 30(e), the Group obtained
share charge executed by the borrower and
guarantees executed by the guarantor in
favour of the Group as a continuing security
and continuing obligation for performance
by the borrower of its obligations to minimise
the credit risk.
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit and counterparty risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets
Trade receivables

The Group applied the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables have been grouped with
similar risk characteristics and, collectively or
individually, assessing them for likelihood of
recovery.

The Group categorises its trade receivables,
except those individually assessed, based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the
days past due. The expected loss rates are
based on the payment profiles of sales over
a period of 12 months before 31 December
2022 and the corresponding historical credit
losses experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables.

For trade receivables relating to accounts in
which there are objective evidence that the
debtor faces significant financial difficulties
or enter liquidation, they are assessed
individually for impairment allowance. There
was specific loss allowance of HK$61,000
was made as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
Nil).

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B U B R M

3. Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit and counterparty risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The expected credit loss rate for the
remaining trade receivables is determined as

follow:
As at 31 December Rn-—2=-Z
2022 +=HR=+—H
Collective assessment SR
Within credit period FEHA
1 to 30 days 1TRZE30KR
31 to 90 days 31REI0K
Over 90 days 890K

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED # EIE X &£ B ER 2 7

3. BIERER @
3.1 BIREKREZEE)
(b) EERXELER(E)

(i) TEHEEREGE)
B S EWGRIA (E)
TR B 5B RGRIERTE
HEEBBEXETW
™
Lifetime Gross Lifetime Net
expected carrying  expected carrying
loss rate amount  credit loss amount
2 HFEH 2 HTEH
FEBEE IREAE FEE#E IREFE
% HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
=P FET FET FET
0.15 106,502 (162) 106,340
0.15 23,516 (36) 23,480
0.27 - 0.61 15,244 (53) 15,191
1.54 - 20.18 7,482 (1,012) 6,470
152,744 (1,263) 151,481




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B S B R M

Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit and counterparty risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December NZTE-_—F
2021 +=A=1+—8H

Collective assessment SRR

Within credit period EEHA

1 to 30 days 1RE30X

31 to 90 days 31REI0R

Over 90 days HB3RI0KR

3. MIEEREE@E
3.1 MKREREE @)

(b) EERXE5EEE
(i) EBEENRE )

B 5 RYGIR (E)

Lifetime Gross Lifetime Net
expected carrying expected carrying
loss rate amount credit loss amount

2 HATE A 2 HATEH
EEBEX  RELE SEEE  EREFE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B FHET TET FET
0.19 104,189 (196) 103,993
0.19 33,300 (62) 33,238
0.24-0.55 19,697 (59) 19,638
1.37-41.01 3,570 (885) 2,685
160,756 (1,202) 159,554
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B U B R M

3.

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit and counterparty risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets at amortised cost

The directors of the Group consider the
probability of default upon initial recognition
of asset and whether there has been
significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis. To assess whether there is a
significant increase in credit risk, the Group
compares risk of a default occurring on the
assets as at the reporting date with the risk
of default as at the date of initial recognition.
Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

e actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant change to the
company's ability to meet its obligations;

e  actual or expected significant changes in
the operating results of the company;

e significant changes in the expected
performance and behavior of the
company, including changes in the
payment status of the counterparty.

Regardless of the analysis above, a significant
increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor
is more than 90 days past due in making a
contractual payment/repayable demanded.

EXEEERLT

3.

MEEREE @
3.1 MIBEBRER @
(b) EERXEZEE (HE)
(i) A AL E (4

H A 5 B8 A K
ZAN

AEEESHEEENT
RHERKZ BENNA
M hIFENEEE

Rl BREEN - 7
AAEERREERE
B ARESHRER
REEZLRLNA R
MRV IR FER I A&
IR AT REMEETTHL R o

LTEERTEEHE

=

o TEHIBEHARIETT
BEAEAHAEIRERKN
BEER - MK

oL 48 TR S 40 25 B
8 A 2 A

& s

. AAMEEENE
T E A
& ;

e RAITAHRIE KT
ROEREE 8
ER 577 NG
EE

FEim AT - g0
REBANERITAE R
(BB EREHEEI

X AEEEERRE
%igbu °



3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit and counterparty risk (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets at amortised cost
(Continued)

The loss allowance for other financial
assets at amortised cost as at 31 December
2022 amounted to HK$154,000 (2021:
HK$1,275,000) as detailed in Note 19.

Impairment losses on trade receivables and
other financial assets at amortised cost are
presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

Other financial assets of HK$1,121,000
that was fully provided for in previous
year is written off during the year (2021:
HK$290,000) but are still subject to
enforcement activity.

(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes
maintaining sufficient cash and availability of
funding from an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities. Management maintains rolling
forecast of the Group’s liquidity reserves which
comprises undrawn banking facilities and cash and
cash equivalents, on the basis of expected cash
flows.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the date of financial
reporting to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

3.

B B S B R M

MEEREE @
3.1 MIBEBRER @
(b) EERXEZEE (HE)

(9

(i) EREEREE)

H A 5 B8 A K
A8 (&)

N-_E-_—_F+_-A8
=+ — BIRE A
ENHMWERMEER
EEEEEA154,000
BILT(ZEZ—F
1,275,000 7T) * &5
BFE19 o

B 7 FE WA N 4 4 5
DN R = DR
BEMREEBREL
B M A2 5 R FRE
B o HERWEBEM
& B AR —1T8
=)

FAMBENEMESRHE
E4% /1,121,000 7T
—ZE = —4 :290,000

BT ENZATFE R

BB BIDAZBBR

TREEVHIR ©
B E LR

EENRBDECRREERER
BRFBARBR S RIEAER
EaHENBREANARE
T EEEERHAKER
BRRBESFHEFERA
BREREARNKREREREE R
RekReFEEBYHER

A7
S/

TRERMBHREAEED
B H A &R T B S AR B H
TRMABES /TR HE
B REMBEENBERS
HARITRBE IR

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 # #f

163



164

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B U B R M

3. Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED

At 31 December 2022

Trade and other payables

Borrowings

Interest payment on
borrowings

Lease liabilities

Interest payment on
lease liabilities

At 31 December 2021

Trade and other payables

Borrowings

Interest payment on
borrowings

Lease liabilities

Interest payment on
lease liabilities

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

‘tﬂt
=
et
:T_

‘lﬂi
=
=
:T_

HEREZMEXM

EXEEERLT

3. MIEEREE@E
3.1 MKREREE @)
() mEHEZLELE (B

Less than Between Over
1year 1tob5 years 5 years Total
—FR —ZHEF2H BEENLE o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
46,257 - - 46,257
53,353 - - 53,353
733 - - 733
22,905 78,124 - 101,029
3,468 5,731 - 9,199
68,909 - - 68,909
56,019 - - 56,019
288 288
18,727 69,604 15,495 103,826
3,784 8,351 291 12,426




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as total bank borrowings divided by
total equity.

The Group's strategy was to maintain a solid capital
base to support the operations and development of its
business in the long term. Given its existing principal
business, management considers a gearing ratio as
measured by total bank borrowings to total equity of
not more than 50% as solid and reasonable. The table
below analyses the Group’s capital structure at 31
December 2022 and 2021 as follows:

Total borrowings wmiEE
Total equity s
Gearing ratio BEAELE

B B S B R M

iR EREE @)
3.2 EXERmER

AEEEREARN BN RRELRE
BaeiFER L ARBRRIRHE R
W AR EAEATREN R -
PAR: e 45 R OB A RIB LURUE E
NN

REFLRABREARE - REHA]
AR EBRIRT IS - [RIRRE
EIEAR - BITH IR D EEE AR
DIERS ©

MEMRRE % AEENEER
AL REREEERNELE - BE
BELRIRIRITEE AR AGHE

SELE o
Al 71+

Bk

AEEZ RESHEFBRNESE
B AR FAEENEREE
RER-ERNBRB2EEER B
BERARRITEERERLERE
it E 2 BEABEEERS0%
NTYHBEEBERAE - TRARE
BR—E - —FR T —F+=
B=+—R&REREZ DT :

Restated

(&=5)

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
53,353 56,019
671,671 623,104
8% 9%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B U B R M

3. Financial risk management (Continued) 3. MKRRERE@®
3.3 AABEME

3.3 Fair value estimation

166

The carrying value of trade receivables, other loans
and receivables, bank balances and deposits, trade and
other payables, lease liabilities and borrowings are a
reasonable approximation of their fair values. The fair
value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rate that is available
to the Group for similar financial instruments.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 December
2022 and 2021 by level of the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs are
categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy
as follows:

— quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1)

— inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices) (level 2)

—  inputs for the asset and liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3)
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

Fair value
Hierarchy

Financial assets TREAE Level 2
- Investment funds -REES £/

There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during
the year.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates.
It includes quoted market price or dealer quotes for
similar instruments. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

B B S B R M

iR EREE @)
3.3 DAEEME @

Fair value Fair value

as at as at

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
R=ZB=Z% R-B=-—F
+=ZA=+-H +-A=+-H
NARER HAnEE
HKS$'000 HK$000

FET FHET

1,513 1,706

FAF1RE2E 2 A mER

TENEERMSEEZEMTA
(WZIMTETR) - HRAETIE
REETEEE - %FHETEE
ENARATERIT SIS 8E -
TEERDEBEEREAGT £
ERLSRT AT SRERLH
BHRE - W—ERITANAAEM
BB ERBAZBGRIEA -
AZERTARAE_E -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B U B R M

4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities of
the Group are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

Provision for impairment of loan to a related
company, loan to a director and trade and
other receivables

The policy for provision for impairment of loan to a
related company, loan to a director and trade and other
receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation of
risk of default and expected credit losses which involved
management’s judgement. A considerable amount
of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the Group’s past collection history
of receivables, existing market condition as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. If the financial conditions of any individual
counterparty were determined to be deteriorated,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowances may be required.

Provision for impairment of inventories

The management of the Group reviews the
marketability of inventory items at the end of each
reporting period, and makes allowance for obsolete
and slow-moving inventory items identified that are no
longer suitable for sale. The management estimates the
net realisable value for inventories based primarily on
the latest invoice prices and current market conditions.
The Group carries out an inventory review on a product-
by-product basis at the end of each reporting period
and makes provision for obsolete items.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Segment information

The Executive Directors of the Company have been
identified as the chief operating decision-maker (“CODM").
Management determines the operating segments based on
the Group's internal reports, which are then submitted to the
CODM for performance assessment and resources allocation.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the
operating segment based on a measure of profit before
income tax and regard there to be only one operating
segment — trading of construction materials, mainly pipes
and fittings. Accordingly, segment disclosures are not
presented.

The revenue from contracts with customers recognised
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are
trading of construction materials, mainly pipes and fittings,
all of which were recognised at a point in time.

Geographical information

The Group is domiciled in Hong Kong. The Group’s revenues
from external customers by geographical location are
detailed below:

Hong Kong N
Macau P
Mainland China FR B

B B S B R M

7 RRE R
HITESHRERRRRZEARLER
RE(BERLERRE]) - EHEGR
%ﬁ%ﬁ%W%ﬁiﬁmW“%$ S
BRIERGBRERERRELETENHE
MERDE

BITESRBER AR T &SR AT
KEDEHMRR - WRARATRE—
M%%ﬁﬁ EEMKES  TER
BREM - Bt - WEZY|5IPHE

fh

,/_é_‘

HEZT-_—_Fr=_F=_—F+=A
=+ ALFEHEFARMNKASE
EMHES  FTEREEMEMH  HRN
H—2hR7 -

&5 HE R
REBBRNES - NEBIZHE D A
REINEFEF WAL

Revenue

L'ON

For the year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=1t—HLEE

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
565,702 638,690
63,816 41,143
7,017 2,354
636,535 682,187
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B U B R M

5. Segment information (Continued) 5. DEER @
Geographical information (Continued) &5 ERE R ()
The Group’s non-current assets by geographical location are REEZMESHNIERBDEELT ¢

detailed below:

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Hong Kong BB 186,734 103,996
Mainland China REIAH 1,204 1,208
187,938 105,204
Liabilities related to contracts with customers HEEARERENARS
The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to REFBCOHINTEREAREEN A
contracts with customers: % o
2022 2021
—E-CF T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
Contract liabilities &R aE— AU (H5E27)

— receipts in advance (Note 27) 20,728 27,026
Contract liabilities for sales of goods contracts have MEEMARMARABERLD T
decreased by HK$6,298,000 due to a decrease in overall 6,298,000 7T ' E2HAREBELEE
contract activities. BRLT -

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED #EIE XK@ ER 2 A



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Segment information (Continued)

Liabilities related to contracts with customers
(Continued)

The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current reporting period relates to carried-
forward contract liabilities:

Revenue recognised that was FUHE R & EREE
included in the contract liabilities ERERBBA
balance at the beginning of the year

Other gains, net

Net exchange gain b 5 e SRR

Gain on early termination of lease IRRIAL I ERRAY 2 Wias

Net loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 1R

Loss on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

BEZER

Dividend income from financial assets X AR BETAEBRZZ SR

BEZBEWA

at fair value through profit or loss

Hong Kong Government grants (note) & /ST B) (HI3E)

HEWE - BEREREZ

BARBEFARRZEH

Note:

During the year, the Group has received HK$3,266,000 from
Employment Support Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund of Hong
Kong Special Administration Region Government to set off against

wages, salaries and welfare (2021: Nil).

For P B 5 R P
7 RPEF ()
RESSAEHNEHE @

TRER T EARHRE HERERZNRAS
B LEEEARAGEHER

2022 2021
—E-CF T
HK$’000 HK$000
FETT FET
21,350 6,032
Hibh W s2 558

2022 2021
—E-CF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET

978 2,136

38 -
(90) (54)
(193) (53)

65 61

3,266 -
4,064 2,090

Hi

FR - AEECREBBTREBFR
¥ EI TR R IR E S WE3,266,0007%
TC AT E  HeREMNCE—F

&) -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 # #f

171



172

Expenses by nature

Operating profit is arrived at after charging:

Cost of inventories sold (Note 18)
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 15)
Auditor’s remuneration:
— Audit services
— Non-audit services
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (Note 13)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 14)
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8)
Short-term and low-value lease expenses
(Note 14)
Provision for impairment of financial assets
Provision for and write-off of inventories, net
Other expenses

Representing:

Cost of sales

Selling and distribution costs

General and administrative expenses
Provision for impairment of financial assets

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED # EIE X &£ B ER 2 7
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B U B R M

7. BAXME

EHE 2 FEKA (H5E18)
BV EEMNEE (fFE15)
ZEETE -

- BRT
- JEEARS

M - BB RRETE
(Mt5E13)

FREEENE FMi14)

B ITEHAxZ (FEs)

EHRKEEEREEA
(F¥zE14)

SREEMNRERE

TF BB sy #58

HAtFi

&

SHERAR

HHE KD HKAR
—RETHER
TREEMNRERE

KRNI TSR E BES -
Restated
=l
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
449,904 468,523
51 51
1,313 1,173
192 177
1,667 2,679
23,798 23,896
65,671 73,050
1,477 2,287
61 1,238
3,173 6,685
35,509 38,016
582,816 617,775
461,678 486,428
19,710 21,558
101,367 108,551
61 1,238
582,816 617,775




8.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B S B R M

Employee benefit expenses

Wages, salaries and other benefits
Pension costs — defined contribution
plans

(a) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year include two (2021:
two) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis shown in Note 32. The emoluments paid to
the remaining three (2021: three) individuals were as

follows:

Salaries and other short-term
employee benefits

Discretionary bonus

Pension costs — defined
contribution plans

8. EBEEMFHX

2022 2021

—E-CF T —F

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET

TE - FrekEMmER 63,448 70,904
BRIRE KA — EREHEFRETE

2,223 2,146

65,671 73,050

(a) ENBEHFAL
RER - AEBRUZSFHALTE

BN ——F —f)EF
HEFL O E320 DM » &2

NHFEB=M(CT—F : =)
ALZB&IT :
2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Fe REMERREEER
4,982 4,220
[l=pFan 1,629 1,375
RIRE KA — ERBHRETE
54 48
6,665 5,643
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S5 B e P R
8. Employee benefit expenses (Continued) 8. EERFMEX®
(a) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (a) EfuESHAL @
The emoluments of the three (2021: three) individuals =RCTE—F: =ZR)EaFA

fell within the following bands:

TZEHMNFTINEE :

2022 2021

—EC-CF B

HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001787T — 1,500,000/ 7T - 2

HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,001,% 7T — 2,000,000/ 7T 2 -

HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T —2,500,000/8 7T = =

HK$2,500,001-HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7 — 3,000,000/ 7T - 1

HK$3,000,001-HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T — 3,500,000/ 7T 1 -

(b) Senior management remuneration by band (b) SREEAETMN 2EE

The remuneration of senior management fell within the SHEEBABZHMNF 5 &
following bands: g

2022 2021

—EC-CF T

HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001,%7C — 1,500,000/ 7T 1 4

HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,001,% 7T — 2,000,000/ 7T 3 —

HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T — 2,500,000/ 7T = =

HK$2,500,001-HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7 — 3,000,000/ 70 - 1

HK$3,000,001-HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 75— 3,500,000/ 7T 1 -

5 5

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED #EIE XK@ ER 2 A




10.

Finance (income)/costs, net

Bank interest income

Other interest income

Interest expense on bank borrowings

Interest expense on lease liabilities
(Note 14)

Tax expense

Current taxation:
Hong Kong profits tax
Overseas tax
Over provision in prior years

Total current tax
Deferred taxation (Note 26):
Origination and reversal of
temporary differences

Tax expense

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B S B R M

9. BMH (KA BRFHE

2022 2021
—E-CF T —F
HK$000 HK$000
FET FEIT
ERITHBUA (2,041) (339)
EAhF) B UA (4,343) (4,293)
RITEEZF B H 1,882 1,345
HEaE e (FiE14)
4,043 4,498
(459) 1,211
10. HIEXZ H
Restated
KL
2022 2021
—ZE-— —E-—F
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
BNEARA IR :
BT 8,578 9,047
YEINELIR 75 536
ARFFEZIR (49) (351)
BNHEATR IH 4B %8 8,604 9,232
EIEFIA (f15E26):
TR ERE C EAE RO #E
420 92
HIEX 9,024 9,324

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2021: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for
the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated
on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates
of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group

operates.

BB RS AFE A h T RS AR
R16.5% (ZZT=—4F : 16.5%):TIE °
YEINRIE TR IR F 2 fh T FE R R v A
BASECEEBRBARZIBITHRES

H o
A
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B U B R M

10. Tax expense (Continued)

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong

Kong profits tax rate as follows:

Profit before income tax

Tax calculated at a rate of 16.5%
(2021: 16.5%)

Effect of different tax rates in other
jurisdictions

Unrecognised tax losses

Utilisation of previously unrecognised
tax losses

Tax effect of income not subject to
taxation

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for taxation purposes

Effect of two-tiered profit tax rate
regime (note)

Over provision in prior years

Tax expense

Note:

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime in Hong Kong, the first
HK$2 million of profits of qualifying corporations (only one entity is
allowed within the Group) will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above
HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of corporations not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to

be taxed at 16.5%.

10. HEZH @

AEBBBBANG N 2 HIAS h B ERE
REBBNEHEMAEZERTEL

ZRT
Restated
KCE
2022 2021
—ZE-— —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
WA A 58,242 65,291
BRE165%(ZTE=—F ¢
16.5%) 5t E 2 Fi18 9,610 10,772
Hih FAM 5 RN R R
-7 71 99
RNEERTIEE R 170 11
ERATHIAER Z HEE R
= (88)
BRI Z WA TIE R 2
(786) (1,110)
Az T2 BIERE
173 156
FIET MRSz 52 B
(165) (165)
INEFEZR (49) (351)
I 9,024 9,324
BisE -

BB -

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED # EIE X &£ B ER 2 7

REBBFESHMAL  GERCEEERA
RAF—EEE) 852,000,000/ T F#%
1£8.25% MR R - MR 2,000,000 7T
2 FE1216.5% M REAF o TEFAFIE
Tt AR ] B AR A 3R A i 812 16.5% 1Y



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B o A B R W

1. 8REF

TRINRAESRER R EERF TR
BFEABRFEARGRNRE BT
BB e T R (FF 25 T LASH

11. Earnings per share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is
based on the profit for the year attributable to equity holders
and weighted average number of ordinary shares with

adjustments where applicable as follows: %)
Restated
RE
2022 2021
—E-fF —EF-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Profit attributable to equity holders BEEEXE 2 AA

of the Company from continuing A AER R

operation 49,218 55,967
Profit attributable to equity holders RILEEEB 2 AR A]

of the Company from discontinued Eamrr B AR

operation - 457

AEEREARRNZARATE
e ARG

Profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company for the purpose

of basic earnings per share 49,218 56,424
Thousands Thousands
FiE Fhag
Number of shares R EE
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ 5TESRERRBF 2 Fi@ikH
shares for the purpose of basic Z NN AR EL

earnings per share 1,332,266 1,332,266

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the HESREERAE  DYHDRTLE

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of dilutive potential ordinary shares
arising from the Company’s share options. Diluted earnings
per share is of the same amount as the basic earnings per
share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares
outstanding for the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.

Bz ok F o IR BE SR B - AR AR
BREEE N 2 RTRBREESHE
%o FEER N EEREAN R R E
Al WHREBE_T_—_FR_F
T+ A=t BIEFEWERT
R EEEE T AR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B U B R M

12. Dividend

At the Board meeting held on 28 March 2023, the Board did
not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year

ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

13. Property, plant and equipment

Cost A
A1 January 2022 i S =
Bxchange dffeences EizE
Additions RE
Disposals it
At 31 December 2022 R-B=ZE12A=1-B
Accumulated depreciation giffiE
A1 January 2022 i S
Bxchange dfferences EiZE
Charge for the year KEENE
Disposals it
At 31 December 2022 R-%-ZE12A=1-B
Net book value FERE
At 31 December 2022 R-BZZE12A=1-B

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED # EIE X &£ B ER 2 7

12. IRE

R-oE-=FE=A=-+\BETHNES
gL BEEFCTEBREHE_Z
T+ A=t+—HIEFEZRERK
B(ZE=—F:\) o

5

13. ¥ - BMERRE

Plant, Office
machinery furniture,
and  Leasehold fixtures and Office ~ Computer Motor
equipment  improvements fittings  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
(18 BE  BAZEA-
BERRE  MREE  RERRE 0 ERE  EERR i ag
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
T&r Tin f&r T&r i T&r fr
10,649 16,565 2817 12 5430 17,895 53,484
- - () - () (6) (16)
35 3144 686 - m PE] 5099
(6,636) (10,670) (1,720) (19) (3.244) - (2349)
4328 9,039 1718 [ 2904 18120 36,218
10,260 16,434 2738 126 498 17241 51,733
- - () - () (6) (16)
186 38 n 1 4 695 1,667
(6,636) (10,624) (1718) (19) (3.202) - (22259)
3810 6,248 1137 4 1,945 17936 31,125
518 279 641 - 959 184 5093




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B S B R M

13. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

13. Y15 - BMERRE @

Plant, Office
machinery furnture,
and leasehold ~~fixtures and Office  Computer Motor
equipment  improvements fitngs ~ equipment  equipment vehicles Total
HR fE  HOEER
Bekie  MERE RERRE XBR hitE i ]
HS000 #5000 HS000 HS000 S0 Hs 0 S0
FAT Fér FAr Fér FAr FAr FAT
Cost A
At 1 January 2021 R-E--F-F-A 10,229 17,081 2817 128 5013 17,89 53283
Exchange differences EiEE - - - - f - f
Additions HE 3 4 - - B - 850
Disposals il 1) (561) = = (1) . (590)
At31 December 2021 RZF--F+2fzt- 10,649 16,565 2817 8 5430 17,89 53,484
Accumulated depreciation Zifig
At 1 January 2021 R-E--#-F-A 10,105 16,344 2667 119 4784 15,070 49589
Bxchange differences EiER - - - - f - f
Charge forthe year TEENE 167 9 71 1 160 27 2679
Disposals it (12 (507) = - (1) = (536)
At 31 December 2021 H-8--E+-R=1-R 10,260 16434 2738 126 4928 17,47 51733
Net book value KEsE
At31 December 2021 RoB--F+2f=1-B 38 131 7 2 50 648 1751
Depreciation was recorded in the following categories: WERATHES Y
2022 2021
—EC-CF —E
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FEIT
General and administrative expenses — RITEE R 1,667 2,679
Depreciation recognised in FHEL BRI RER
continuing operation (Note 7) e (BsE7) 1,667 2,679
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LR A e R B v
14. Lease 14. HE
(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (a) ZKEMBMRRARPEZRNEEE

statement of financial position

r—‘_—-

The consolidated statement of financial position shows o
the following amounts relating to leases:

ﬁkﬂjﬁﬂ%iﬁlMT*ﬁF%ﬂiﬁ

AR
TR

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021

R-EB-_F RZE—_—F
+=A=+—H8 +=-—HA=+—8H

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT

Right-of-use assets ERAEEE
Buildings BT 90,213 95,753
Equipment B 1,785 727
Total right-of-use assets FREEELR 91,998 96,480

Lease liabilities HEEE

Current mE 22,905 18,727
Non-current FERED 78,124 85,099
Total lease liabilities HEaEERE 101,029 103,826
2022 2021
—E-CF —E - —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
At 1 January W—A—H 96,480 114,977
Addition NE 20,160 5,399
Depreciation e (23,798) (23,896)
Early termination of lease FeRIR EM A (844) =
At 31 December ®n+=-—A=+—H 91,998 96,480
Additions to the right-of-use assets amounted to FRAEEENEEE S -_—F+—
HK$20,160,000 during the year ended 31 December B=+—HIEFEN20,160,000
2022 (2021: HK$5,399,000). B (ZZEZ—4% : 5,399,000%

o) °
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14. Lease (Continued)

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated

(o)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

income statement

The consolidated income statement shows the following
amounts relating to lease:

Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE (H:E7)
(Note 7)

Buildings BT

Equipment B

Interest expense on lease liabilities HEadEzf B (i)
(Note 9)

The total cash payment for lease amounted to
HK$27,595,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022
(2021: HK$28,974,000).

Short-term and low-value RERREEHREER
lease expense (Note 7) (FF5E7)
The Group’s leasing activities and how these (c)

are accounted for

The Group leases various offices, warehouses, retail
shops and staff quarters. Rental contracts are typically
made for fixed periods of 1 to 10 years but may have
extension options as described below. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain various
terms and conditions.

B B S B R M

14. HE @)
(b) RERBRTEANESE

FANERZINTEEEE S

g
]

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—RHLEE

2022 2021
—E-CF T
HK$’000 HK$°000
FETT FET
23,292 23,454

506 442

23,798 23,896
4,043 4,498

BHE-_Z-_—_F#+=-H=+—H
IHFEEEBHAEZR SN REAHE
£27,595,0008 L (ZE = —4F :
28,974,000 7T) °

1,477 2,287

AEENHAEEBREARS
%

AEEHEZEARAE RE T
EEREBTIES -HO—KREER
HI1 2104 - HERTBEARIR T XX Pt
BHBEMRE - EESRTIRERELE
IEEER 2 HNCIE S/ IS8 Saa
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B U B R M

14. Lease (Continued)
(d) Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a
number of property leases across the Group. These
terms are used to maximise operational flexibility in
terms of managing contracts. The majority of extension
and termination options held are exercisable only by the
Group and not by the respective lessor.

15. Intangible assets

Trademark [GEE

Opening net book amount HYIMBREDFE
Amortisation for the year NG

Closing net book amount HRAREFE

For the year ended 31 December 2022, amortisation expense
of HK$51,000 (2021: HK$51,000) is included in “cost of
sales” (Note 7).

16. Subsidiaries

Details of principal subsidiaries which, in the Directors’
opinion, materially affect the results and/or net assets of the
Group as at 31 December 2022, are set out in Note 36.

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED # EIE X &£ B ER 2 7

14.

15.

16.

HE
(d) EHERKILRERE

AEEWFNEEERSEEM
RIDRIERE - BLRTNERBE S
ERE A RERMIREREEIEED
BRAE o REBDBEMKR L& ERE
ERAKETRE - MIFHERAH
BATTEE -

BT EE

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000

FAET FEIT

375 426

(51) (51)

324 375

BHE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—BItF
B #iEMAS51,0008 0 (&2 ——
1 51,0008 7T) EFF A TSR] (B
iE7) °

B B 2 F]
EERRYAREZEER /TN _F
T+ A=t HIZFEERKE
REEZ TEMBRR ZFIGEHNME
36 °



17. Financial instruments by category

Financial assets included in
consolidated statement of
financial position:

Financial assets at amortised cost

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B o A B R W

Trade receivables, deposits and other B S EWGIR - e RHA

receivables

Pledged bank deposits (Note 21)
Cash and bank balances (Note 22)

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (Note 20)

Total

Financial liabilities included in
consolidated statement of
financial position:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Trade and other payables
Borrowings (Note 25)

Lease liabilities (Note 14(a))

17. ZEEE SNSRI A

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FEIT
BEEFETHEMRRERN
ERMEE
SR AT EN S REE
FEW IR 249,074 251,363
Pledged certificate of deposit (Note 21) B HEIRFERE (FH5E21) = 10,000
BRI IRI TRk (FsE21) 46,000 36,000
& RIBITEEH (H5E22) 206,487 172,084
BARBEFAERZZ
& & E (Fi5E20) 1,513 1,706
4ExE 503,074 471,153
2022 2021
—E-CF T
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
BEEFEMBAR RN
ot N
SRR AT ENSRAE
B 5 N E MR 46,257 68,909
EE (5E25) 53,353 56,019
HEEE (fi5E14G) 101,029 103,826
1EEE 200,639 228,754

Total

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 # #f
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B U B R M

18. Inventories

Merchandises P&

At 31 December 2022, the provision for impairment of
inventories amounted to approximately HK$19,797,000
(2021: HK$18,039,000).

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included

in cost of sales amounted to HK$449,904,000 (2021:
restated HK$468,523,000) (Note 7).

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED # EIE X &£ B ER 2 7

18. #&

2022
—E__F
HK$000
FET

243,703

Restated
EET
2021

T —F
HK$°000
FETT

273,874

R-ZZBE-—F+-A=+—H TER
B 493E19,797,0008 T (ZE = —

£ : 18,039,000/ 7T) °

BRATLIWIAEEXNRB N 2FE
XA 3EA49,904,00008 T (ZE=—4F -
4 E511468,523,00058 7T) (BIEE7) o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B S B R M

19. Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables
Less: loss allowance (Note 3.1(b)(ii))

Prepayments

Loan to a related party (Note 30(d))

Loan to a director (Note 30(f))

Rental deposits

Other receivables, deposits and other
assets

Less: loss allowance (Note 3.1(b)(ii))

Loan to a related company (Note 30(e))
Less: loss allowance (Note 3.1(b)(ii))

Total of trade and other receivables,
deposits and prepayments
Less: included in non-current assets
Rental deposits and other assets
Loan to a director (Note 30(f))
Loan to a related company
(Note 30(e))

Included in current assets

19. EZ R EABURIER

B F IR
B B (EE3.1(b)ii)

BEANEN

ERT—(zfE AL (fEE30(d)
ERT— &= (FIEE30(1)
HEZS

HAEWHOR - me REMERE

R B R R (M EE3.1 (b))

BT —REEE A (iE30(e)
R E R (FRE3.1(0)Gi)

B 5 REAMBSFIR - ZE R
BB
B BIEREIEREEET
HEZEREMEE
ERT— &= (FEE30(f)
ERT—RHEEAR
(H$5E£30(e))

BRERBEET

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
152,744 160,756
(1,263) (1,202)
151,481 159,554
57,430 57,998
- 2,000

5,000 -
6,170 6,617
8,299 6,191
(30) (1,151)
76,869 71,655
78,278 78,276
(124) (124)
78,154 78,152
306,504 309,361
(7,369) (6,598)
(5,000) =
(78,154) -
215,981 302,763

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, other receivables,
deposits and prepayments approximate their fair values.

BHRWHA - HtENRFIR - Ze Rk

BANRRESEREERAEEM
= -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ B R B

19. Trade and other receivables (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other
receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

HK$ BIT
RMB AR
usD =T
MOP SR

The Group generally grants credit period of 60-90 days to its
customers for its trading of pipes and fittings operation. The
ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on the invoice
date is as follows:

Within 30 days 30K

31 to 60 days 31RE60K
61 to 90 days 61XE90K
91 to 120 days 91XE120K
Over 120 days BiB120K

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED # EIE X &£ B ER 2 7

19. EZ REMEBYRKIE @

AEEE S REMERFIRZRE SR

AT S E#EEHE -

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
165,505 168,347
2,505 1,620
133,505 133,712
4,989 5,682
306,504 309,361

AEE-—RETEBREMHBSEBE
FZIEEMR0REIOKR - B F UG
TRIRBERR A RO

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$000
FETT FET
45,076 55,436
41,297 52,278
32,333 27,119
13,574 15,198
20,464 10,725
152,744 160,756




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B S B R M

19. Trade and other receivables (Continued) 19. ES R HAEWRIE @)
The closing loss allowance for all trade receivables reconcile FTE & 5 R GRIB R AR & 18 R i H1 ER
to the opening loss allowance are as follows: E R AR EIRNT -
HK$'000
FEIT
Loss allowance as at 31 December 2021 R-ZE-—F+-A=1+—HHEEEE (1,202)
Loss allowance for trade receivables Z 5 WG IB R E 1B R 61)
Loss allowance as at 31 December 2022 R-E - —F+-_A=+—HBHEEEE (1,263)
The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring AEERBEBMBREERFEIRG
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss LA ETRMEEEBE - BRMEES
allowance for all trade receivables. JE U SR IE A BB 17 4B HA N A TB B 48 B
1% o
There was loss allowance of HK$1,263,000 for trade R-E-_—_F+-_A=+—H BHE
receivables as at 31 December 2022 (2021: HK$1,202,000). WK TE R BB 51,263,000 7T ©

20.

(ZZ=——%F :1,202,00057T) °

Information about the impairment of trade receivables and EHREFRERURERERAEEHRER
the Group's exposure to foreign exchange risk and credit risk HNE [ B K 15 B L B 0 & R R B 5
can be found in Note 3.1. 3.1

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is K& Rz ZEAEERR R Dl EE
the fair value of each class of receivables mentioned above. FEWGRIE 2 A 1B o bR EXXFRIRERSN -
Save as disclosed above, the Group does not hold any A& BN AR R (T IR G VR o

collateral as security.

Financial assets at fair value through profit 20. RAAREBEFABRZEREE
or loss

2022 2021

—EC-CF —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$000

FET FEIT

Investment funds at fair value — unlisted Z AR BEMNEEES—IE LT 1,513 1,706
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B U B R M

21.

22,

Pledged bank deposits and certificate of
deposit

As at 31 December 2022, bank deposits of HK$46,000,000
(2021: HK$36,000,000) denominated in HK$ were pledged as
collateral for the Group’s banking facilities (Note 25).

The effective interest rate on pledged bank deposits was
2.63% (2021: 0.19%) per annum and these deposits are
maturing within 13 to 352 days (2021: 3 to 109 days).

As at 31 December 2022, there was no certificate of deposit
(2021: HK$10,000,000) which was denominated in HK$
pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities (Note
25). The effective interest rate on the pledged certificate
of deposit was 0.34% per annum and this deposit was
maturing within 74 days in 2021.

Cash and bank balances

Cash and bank balances HE RIRTTHEH

Maximum exposure to credit risk

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED # EIE X &£ B ER 2 7

RSN ESEERR

21.

22,

ERFRITERRFRE

R—ZTE-_—_F+-_A=+—80 "
46,000,000 L (=& = —F :
36,000,000/ 7T) LA TTEHE Z SR1T1F
RETFUER - EEAEBRITEER
&2 AR (B15E25) °

ERFRTERZEENERAEF L
263% (ZF=—F :0.19%) © WEF
RZBHANFI3REIDNK (T~
F : 3RE109K) °

R-ZTE-_—_F+-_A=+—H ' %&HF
FRE(ZZE=—%F : 10,000,000 7T)
BT E T AEIE - (EAAREER
TEEBREZERME25) - RZF
T FEERERBEZERIRAEFS

0.34% * HiZlF3 8 E74 R NEIE] -
ReRIBITEER

2022 2021
—E-C—F T —F
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
206,487 172,084
206,137 171,761
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B B S B R M

22. Cash and bank balances (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and bank balances

22. REeERBITES®
AEEY RS RIFTEBY FESER

are denominated in the following currencies: T EBEHE
2022 2021
—E-CF T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETT
HK$ BT 164,572 129,841
RMB AREE 12,700 14,157
usD ETT 25,289 25,093
Others Eb 3,926 2,993
206,487 172,084

Funds of the Group amounting to approximately
HK$22,899,000 (2021: HK$24,148,000) are kept in the
bank accounts opened with banks in the PRC where the
remittance of funds is subject to foreign exchange control.

SNEE ] o

KEBEES4/522,899,0008 L (=F
Z——%F : 24,148,000/ 7T) F A E
RSRITHR ZIBITRE  r BHESAT

23. Share capital 23. B
Number of
shares issued
CRITROHA
Thousands HK$000
TR FHET
At 1 January and 31 December 2021 RZZZ—45—H—-HK
+=A=+—H 1,332,266 26,645
At 1 January and 31 December 2022 R-E-Zf-A—-HK
+=A=+—H 1,332,266 26,645

(a) Issued shares

The authorised share capital of the Company was
HK$500,000,000, comprising 25,000 million shares
with a par value of HK$0.02 per share. All issued shares

are fully paid.

(a) BETRH
RRBEERZAA500,000,000
BIr AEFRMEEC. 028 L
25,000,000,000f% 487X  Frf & 3%
TR E BB -
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B U B R M

23. Share capital (Continued)

(b) Share option scheme

At the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 21 May 2015, the shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of a new share option scheme
(the 2015 Scheme”) under which the directors of
the Company may grant options to eligible persons to
subscribe for the Company’s shares subject to the terms
and conditions as stipulated therein. Unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, the 2015 Scheme will remain
valid for a period of 10 years from the date of its
adoption.

The Company was authorised to grant share options
under the 2015 Scheme for subscription of up to a total
of 133,226,600 shares, representing 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of adoption.
The directors of the Company are authorised at their
absolute discretion, to invite any eligible participants as
defined in the Scheme, to take up options to subscribe
for shares in the Company. The subscription price will
be determined by the Board, but shall be at least the
highest of (a) the closing price of shares as stated in the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on
the date on which the relevant options are deemed to
be granted and accepted in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme (“the Commencement Date”), which
must be a day on which the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
is open for the business of dealing in securities (“Trading
Day”); (b) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheet for the five Trading Days immediately
preceding the Commencement Date; and (c) the
nominal value of the shares. A consideration of HK$10
is payable on acceptance of the grant of option. The
maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2015 Scheme may not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of adoption of the 2015 Scheme. The
number of shares may be refreshed by the approval of
the shareholders and the refreshed limit of the number
of shares must not exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of the approval
of the refreshed limit.

As at 31 December 2022, no share option under the
2015 Scheme was granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed (2021: Nil).

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED # EIE X &£ B ER 2 7

23. RA @)
(b) FEMRAETE

RZE—RFRA-_T—HBH87IT2
ARARIREBAFRE L KNAF
R R E RN FT BT B ([ =
—REFED Bl RARES
AIAE B A LR DERE - LR
BARERG HAXZE—AF
FTEIRE 2 R RIGHEETIRIR © BR
SITBUETUEETIN - —FE—RFF
i B B R H HR AT T F AR 4
R

AARERERE-_ZT AT
AREBEREAREZESZAH
133,226,6008% /%17 1 FAER 49 H
HARBBBEITRAZI10% ° &
EARREZZRNEEETNE
ERsmE (TE RERETE)Z
WA REBANEIIRD 2 BAHE - R
BEBRESSET - ETEER
(@A E B IEN R BIRREE
REE T B R R E B ([F
WHE) (BAEBHMRIFTEEFE
HFEEEHB2AHPIRSB))&®
BRI HRERATIR 2T
& (bR D N EEEFIA B B pEE
AER S BERBHI TS ARE
KAk 2 FHWHE  ROBRGBE
BE=HFTZHReE BEHARLZE
MBS - AR AEZ10%8 T
ZRIEB - BEBE_E—REHEELY
2RISR 2B EESHE - T
BRAEM—E—AEHEAEHAR
NAIEBEITRAZ210% ° XD EH
Al AR AL ESE T - M 2B
8B ERTNMSHBIBIER T ER
ZBEARBEBEITRAZ10% °

\ - —F+-_HA=+—H =
—RFFEIIE TR BRI
CATE - FERARR (R
DEE) o

i 1
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24. Reserves

LR S Ee R B RE
24. f#%
Restated
&)
Capital Merger

Share reserve
premium (notef])

reserve  Statutory
(noteff) reserve

Other  Exchange  Retained
reserve reseve  eamings Total

ERgE  ANEE
RiaE ) | EERE  EBRE  EZRE  REE ]
000 HKS000 000 Hs 000 S 000 500
FET 7E7 FET TET Fér 7E7
At 31 December 2020 RIB-ZEroA=1-B
As previously stated Al 126,552 34115 3,700 U 1915 (145) 31,603 537,764
Fffectof change n accounting polcy (Note 2a) S3HREE 252 (1fit2la) - - - - - - 689 639
As restated L] 126552 34115 3700 ] 1915 (145 MW 384
At January 2021 R-E--%-f-A 126552 34115 3700 ] 1915 (145 MW 3843
Proft or the year REERT - - - - - - 56,424 56,404
Curency transaton diferences KpgEg - - - - - bii - JI
Disposal of subsdiaries HERELT - - - - - 85 - 835
Deregstation of asubsicary HE-FNELT - - - - - 153 - 153
Actuaral gain on postemployment benefit BB AEHERDREENE
obligations, netof tax s - - - - 319 - - 319
At 31 December 2021 KRB -Ftzf=t-A 126552 34115 3700 ] 234 118 4876 596459
At 31 December 2021 O P
As previously stated LA 126,552 3115 3700 U 234 1118 433,909 601,652
Fifectof change n accounting polcy (Note 2a) S3HRER 2572 (Ifit2la) - - - - - - (5.193) (5,193)
A restated 55| 126,552 34115 3,700 U 234 1118 428116 596,459
At 1 January 2022 RZE-ZE-f-H 126,552 W15 3700 U 234 1118 48716 596,459
Proftfor the year ME%W - - - - - - 1918
Curency transaton diferences ERAEEE - - - - - (824) - (824)
Actuarel gan on postemployment benefit BB KRR EREENE
obligatons, net of tax e - - - - 13 - - 13
At 31 December 2022 RSZZET2R=1-H 126,552 3115 3,700 U 2407 2% 477,934 645,026
Notes: Bif3E
(i)  The capital reserve of the Group mainly represents contribution (i) AEBZzEXREREXEEXN-—NNANEF

from the shareholders in connection with the acquisition of the
remaining interests in a subsidiary in 1999.

(i)  The merger reserve of the Group arising from the Group
reorganisation is determined by the difference between the
nominal value of shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to the Group reorganisation and the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares deemed to have been issued.

(ii)

WHE - B AR 2 A T s ERRE
BRI ERA

FEBRSEEEMELSZ A HHEERE -
THREBSEABA 2B R R RMNEE
SRR BT AR BB EEREMN
ZEEE
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25. Borrowings . fBE
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT

Current B

Trust receipt loans, secured (note (i) BIEFSEUIEE R (B EEO)) 41,492 46,712
Trust receipt loans, unsecured EIRSTURIEER 11,861 9,307
53,353 56,019

Notes: BiE -
(i) The carrying amounts of the trust receipt loans approximate (i) EFRYEERCZEReEEREARE

e RZTE_—_F+=-RA=+—H "
ERAIRTTRNE B 7849/5262,300,000
BIL(ZZT - —4 262,300,000/

their fair values. As at 31 December 2022, the banking facilities
were granted with an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$262,300,000 (2021: HK$262,300,000) of which
approximately HK$207,845,000 (2021: HK$200,500,000) had ) - HF#)207,845,0005 5 (-8
not been utilised. These banking facilities were secured by ——4% : 200,500,000 JT) 4 K &
corporate guarantees and bank deposits of HK$46,000,000 o ZERITHERDRERRIERT
(2021: bank deposits of HK$36,000,000 and certificate of 173 #746,000,000/8 L (ZE=—4F :
deposit of HK$10,000,000). 81715 236,000,000 7T & 17 2 &
10,000,000/ TTEHEA)

(i) The borrowings are denominated in the following currency: (i)  BEUTYIEEE
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
HK$ BT 53,353 56,019
(i)  The effective interest rates (per annum) of bank borrowings at (i) MEBRER @ BITEEZERFF =X
the financial reporting date are as follows: m
2022 2021
—E-—F - —F
Trust receipt loans EFEUURE R 6.23% 2.27%
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5 B R R N T
26. Deferred taxation 26. EIEHIE
2022 2021
—E-—fF —EB-—%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled R+ —ERARERZ
after 12 months ELERIARE (2,117) (1,663)
Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences under the ELEHIBHRA B E LN BN B ARE
liability method using tax rates of the relevant subsidiaries MEESRFABEE CHRAMER 2
applicable to the period when the asset is expected to be ME NP HEREDEEMAXEEEM)
realised or the liability to be settled, based on tax rates that f’E’i%ﬂ?ﬁﬁ g
have been substantively enacted by the financial reporting
date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a ié?ﬁ?iiﬁéﬂﬂH%Eﬂ,ﬁﬁ)“élﬁ;éfﬁiﬁiﬂﬂﬂﬁ
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against HIAE B - ﬁﬁLLﬁIﬁﬁf*&‘
current tax liabilities and when the deferred tax assets and MIBE &Y KR — R
liabilities relate to income tax levied by the same taxation FERT A RIS RAERTHE A TEMHTJ
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable MRELUFHAEE - QIR BELEHRIBEE
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on BLRIET IR B B G AR o
a net basis.
The net movement on the deferred tax account is as follows: BIERIBAR B 2 B B)FRAT ¢
2022 2021
—E-CF ===t
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January n—H—H (1,663) (1,508)
Charged to income statement TEW R 7R IR
— Continuing operation (Note 10) —FHEEEE (FIEE10) (420) (92)
Charged to equity TERE T P HIRR (34) (63)
At 31 December RT=ZHA=+—8H (2,117) (1,663)
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SR BB A B R

26. Deferred taxation (Continued) 26. IEELEBLIR (&)
The movement in deferred tax liabilities during the year, BEEBIBEEERFANZE8) CRET RN
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances HRESBEAEE &) T

within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities EEHEAE

Remeasurement

gain of post-

employment

Accelerated tax benefit
depreciation obligations Lease Total

BRRENER
MERERE  WEHEKE g ax
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FAT AT FAT FEr
At 1 January 2021 R=—E=—F—F—H (200) (378) (930) (1,508)
Credited/(charged) to income statement ZEZERF A/ (k) 190 = (282) (92)
Charged to equity i Ealabiliy = (63) = (63)

At 31 December 2021 and RIB-—54+-A=1+-BEk

1 January 2022 “T-—"F-A-H (10) (441) (1,212) (1,663)
Charged to income statement e bl (142) = (278) (420)
Charged to equity ERRTR = (34) = (34)
At 31 December 2022 N —F+-A=1—H (152) (475) (1,490) (2,117)
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27.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Deferred taxation (Continued) 26.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the
related tax benefit through the future taxable profits is
probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income tax
assets of HK$1,478,000 (2021: HK$2,248,000) in respect
of accumulated tax losses amounting to HK$11,195,000
(2021: HK$10,005,000) as at 31 December 2022, that can
be carried forward against future taxable income. As at 31
December 2022, the accumulated tax losses amounting to
HK$8,131,000 (2021: HK$7,023,000) will be expired in five
years. There is no expiry period for the other tax losses.

Trade payables, other payables and contract 27.
liabilities

Trade payables B SN FIE

Contract liabilities aRARE

Accrued expenses and other payables  FEIR & I B fth B 7B

B B S B R M

IESERLE (4)

BEEMSHEBEEET A EMABHRG
F| 2% 7] 4 18 K 2K P& SR AR B £ 3R i
PATAE  MIBEHEELRER - &5
B At —FT—_—_F+=_H=+—H
Al A S R R E R B U A 2 B 5T
THIEE 811,195,000 L (ZFE = —
£ 10,005,000/ 7T) HERIELEFTE
TRIBEE1,478,0008 L (=T = —
F :2,248,00087L) - RZT =
+ZA=Z+—8B ZEERAHES
1H3#8,131,0008 L (=& = —F :
7,023,000/7T) * BRARAFEARIE - K
1t 5 T8 5 1B 30 4 [ BRR o

B EARE - HEARER
ERAE

2022 2021
—E-C—F —E-—F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
32,056 56,604
20,728 27,026
20,850 24,920
73,634 108,550
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B U B R M

27. Trade payables, other payables and contract 27. ESENARIE - HENSRIER

liabilities (Continued) SAC=RAC ),
The ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables, based on AEEB P RN FRENRKRZEZEAHN
the invoice date, is as follows: DT -
2022 2021
—E-CF T
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Within 30 days 30K 22,775 51,350
31 to 60 days 31 RE60K 5,266 3,085
61 to 90 days 61 AE90K 3,569 1,679
Over 90 days EBAEI0K 446 490
32,056 56,604
The carrying amounts of the Group'’s trade payables, other AEEZESENFIE - EMERFIR
payables and contract liabilities are denominated in the ReERaEcREeBERATEER
following currencies: & :
2022 2021
—E-_F —E-—F
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
HK$ BT 40,063 52,159
usb ET 24,151 48,575
RMB AR 3,131 653
Others HAh, 6,289 7,163
73,634 108,550
28. Commitments 28. &
Capital commitments BEREIE
As at 31 December 2022, the Group had capital R-ZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H K&EE
commitments of HK$533,000 (2021: HK$558,000) in respect E R EERHAE ZHEET533,00008
of Enterprise Resources Planning system contracted for but L (ZZ = —4 : 558,000/ 70) & [R1E
not provided for in the consolidated financial statements. MR ERE IS TRER BB E AR -
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29. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash 29. REBEERERME
flows

REXBEEZRTRE

Cash flows from operations

Restated
KB
2022 2021
—E__F T
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FEr
Profit before income tax from FHEL B 2 A= T
continuing operation 58,242 65,291
Loss before income tax from LB 2 HAISE
discontinued operation = (344)
58,242 64,947
Adjustments for: FTIEL A -
Amortisation of intangible assets A EEH 51 51
Depreciation of property, plant and mE - BEMRENTTE
equipment 1,667 2,679
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 23,798 23,896
Loss on disposal of property, plantand &M - MEKLEREZ
equipment, net (note) B FeE (fsr) 90 54
Interest income FEWA (6,384) (4,632)
Interest expense AEX 5,925 5,843
Provision for impairment of financial SRIEERRERE
assets 61 1,238
Provision for and write-off of TFERE RME
inventories, net 3,173 6,685
Gain on early termination of lease IRATAR I ERAY 2 Wias (38) -
Loss on financial assets at fair value BAREBEFABRZC/RE
through profit or loss EREE 193 53
Dividend income from financial assets 2 AR BETAEDZZ SHE
at fair value through profit or loss ERRIHA (65) (61)
Exchange difference ER?%E 438 (583)
Changes in working capital: B
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FEERL, () 26,998 (87,632)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and g5 Kk EM WA
other receivables (g hn) 8,460 (42,946)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables, BSENFOE - HMEMNFOR
other payables and contract liabilites ~ &A R & & C&d) 0 (35,086) 42,695
Net cash generated from operations REHEGEE 2 RS F5 87,523 12,287
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B U B R M

29. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash

flows (Continued)

Cash flows from operations (Continued)

Note: Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

comprises:

Net book amount
Loss on disposal

Proceeds from disposal

Represented by:
Cash

AREDHE
HEZEE

H &S FIA

R
Be

The reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

is as follows:

As at 1 January 2021
Cash flows
Addition

As at 31 December 2021 and
1 January 2022

Cash flows

Early termination of lease

Addition

As at 31 December 2022

RZE-—%—F—H
Behe

NE

RIB-—5+-A=1t—-HK
—T-—F#—-f—H
BEmeE

RRAILR EFA

RE

RZE-—#F+-A=+—H

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED #EIE XK@ ER 2 A

29. RERERERMWTE @

REXBEECRINRE @)

Hrat - HEME - BERRBZAEREAER

EC

2022 2021

—E-—F —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$000

FET T87T

920 54

(90) (54)

TRURDELENRENEIRIT

Borrowings  Lease liabilities Total
EL HESE AR
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET T FET
(56,984) (120,616) (177,600)
965 22,189 23,154

= (5,399) (5,399)

(56,019) (103,826) (159,845)
2,666 22,075 24,741

- 882 882

- (20,160) (20,160)
(53,353) (101,029) (154,382)




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30. Related party transactions
Transactions for the year

(a) Key management compensation

Salaries and other short term
employee benefits

Pension costs — defined
contribution plans

(b) Rental payment to related parties

Rental paid to a related company
(note 1)
Rental paid to a related party (note 2)

Notes:

1. The Group paid rental of a car licence to a company
controlled by Mr. Lai Guanglin, the former executive
director and Chairman of the Company who resigned
on 30 March 2018 and currently a major shareholder
of the Group, for a fixed sum of RMB12,000 (equal to
HK$14,500) per month as agreed by both parties. This
is also a connected transaction which is exempted under

the Listing Rules 14A.76.

2. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
paid rental expenses in relation to a rental contract
entered into with a director of a subsidiary company for
HK$31,000 per month as agreed by both parties. The
director resigned on 31 August 2021. As at 31 December
2021, the Group recognised right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities of approximately HK$455,000 and HK$458,000
respectively over the relevant property lease.

These connected transactions which are exempted under

Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules.

SEH?E%ZA—

B B S B R M

30. BEALRS
FARS
(a) FTEEENSHH

e kHiERREREN

2022 2021
—E-CF T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
15,213 14,946
R RET S
108 120
15,321 15,066

(b) FEIFEALZHHEE

XN EHE—IBEAL

2022 2021
—EC-CF T
HK$°000 HK$°000
FAETT FEIT
RAE A A
174 174
- 279

Wit -

1. AEBEREREEER—BHAN
NRIRMERITESRER (ERZ
T—-N\F=A=+HET LS
B3 £ ZEARR Lai Guanglinft 4
EHO AR NHRESTHBENS
AETEZEMA12,000ARE (51
14,500/87T) ° R ST AIRE L
TEBI14A. 766K M EA R TH RS
BRS

2. RZZE=Z—F+=ZA=+—HF
B AEEE-—REHBARN—
ZEEIIVHEAY  HETH
EXEA31,0008 TEE
BY o ZEEER T — &\
A=+—B8E -R-_T—_—%
+=—A=+—8  AEEHAEEH
MERERAEAREERME
‘;Efi’\EJ%’U%%S 00078 7T &
458,000/ 7T °

BEER S EIRE EMRAI14A.76
IEMESREHEIER S -
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B U B R M

30. Related party transactions (Continued)
Transactions for the year (Continued)

(c) Consultancy fees to related parties

Consultancy fee paid to a related
company (note)

R E ()

Note:

On 1 April 2021, the Group entered into a consultancy
agreement with a company directly wholly-owned by Mr.
Lai Guanglin (“Mr. Lai"), the controlling shareholder of the
Company, for a fixed sum of HK$373,000 per month for
one year from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 (”Previous
Consultancy Services Agreement”). On 1 April 2022, the
Group entered into a new consultancy services agreement with
a company directly wholly-owned by Mr. Lai on substantially
the same terms as the Previous Consultancy Services
Agreement for one year from 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023.
The consulting service fee was fully paid on signing of the
agreement.

It constitutes continuing connected transaction of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and is subject to the
reporting, announcement and annual review requirements
but is exempted from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED # EIE X &£ B ER 2 7

30. BEAXRZ @

AN F— R E R FIH

FARS @)

(0 FBZEALXTHIERE
2022 2021
—F-=F —F-—F
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
4,476 4,476

Bife -

R-_ZE-—FMA—H  NEEHLa
Guanglinfe 4 ([Laide & 1) (R AR Z 1%
BER)EEZEREEZ —BMRARE
VH-ZZEZ—FWOMA—HE-_ZT -
F=ZA=+—80AH—F BAETE
373,000 L EE ) B M ER S AR 7% 1p
(TERTERIRSEED - RZT==4F
MA—R  AEEHELITEEESRE
HEZ—MARF VAT -__FMNA
—BHE_ZT-_=F=-A=t+—HAH—
F 2 BB RIS ek o RERERSE R
IR s 224N LAER) - BRI AR & A
RERFT e — IR IE S A o

RIELETHRAEVIARZIRE - A=
BRARRZFHERERS  AETLE
MRAVEVLAZ T 2R RERFE
FHRE - HEER T BI BRI
ZIRE e
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30. Related party transactions (Continued)

Transactions for the year (Continued)

(d) Loan to a related party

(e)

Loan to a related party (note)

Note:

On 9 November 2021, the Group advanced a loan of
HK$2,000,000 to a related party. The loan is unsecured,
carrying interest at 8% per annum and repayable by 8 May
2022. The loan was fully repaid on 23 February 2022. This is a
connected transaction which is exempted under Rule 14A.76
of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, interest income from
loan to a related party amounted to approximately HK$ 16,000
(2021: HK$23,000).

Loan to a related company

On 1 August 2016, the Group advanced a loan of
US$10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$77,746,000) to
China Victory International Holdings Limited (“CVIL"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Agria Corporation, for a
term of 3 years.

The loan carried interest at 10.5% per annum and was
repayable by 31 July 2019. The loan was secured by the
entire issued shares of CVIL executed by Agria Group
Limited (“AGL"), the immediate holding company
of CVIL, and also guaranteed by a deed of corporate
guarantee executed by Agria Corporation in favour
of the Group. Mr. Lai Guanglin, a then director and
ultimate controlling party of the Company, is also a
controlling shareholder of Agria Corporation.

B B S B R M
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o ZERWEER - LFE8%E
WEN_ZE-_—_FHA/\BHIEE &
HER—ZZE-_—_F-_A=-+=H2&E
B RS ABRE EMARR14A. 761K
MESHENEERS -

HE-_ZT-_—_F+-A=+—HIF
B RERFT(IREATFEHF
B A A16,000/8 T (— T - —4F :
23,000/ 7T) °

BT —EEERA

RZFE—X"ENA—H &&
BEmtERNBREEBRAA
(TCVIL])(Agria Corporation&]—
MEEWBAG) RNHRIF
M E3X10,000,000% 7t (FHER
77,746,000/ 7T) °
ZEFAER10.5%51 8 0 WAED
—E-AFE+A=+—HZHE
B RBERACVILMEREZRA
A]Agria Group Limited[AGL] 17
CVILK 2 B0 B 1T IR D 1R (R I
Agria Corporation¥i1T¥ A E B {E
NRAERTZL - ARAIERZES
F&EH ALai Guanglindt 4
IR AAgria CorporationtZAE AT °

T

Pl

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 # #f

201



202

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B U B R M

30. Related party transactions (Continued)
Transactions for the year (Continued)

(e) Loan to a related company (Continued)

Pursuant to a resolution passed in a special general
meeting on 23 February 2018, the Group and CVIL
agreed to novate and AGL, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Agria Corporation and the immediate holding
company of CVIL, agreed to assume the Group’s loan to
CVIL of US$10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$78,357,000)
with all other terms and conditions remained
unchanged.

On 9 May 2019, the Group entered into a loan
agreement (“2019 Loan Agreement”) with AGL to
renew the loan of US$10,000,000 and the annual caps
from 1 August 2019 to 31 July 2022.

Under the 2019 Loan Agreement, the clause of the
share mortgage executed by AGL, being the sole
shareholder of CVIL, over the entire issued shares of
CVIL in favour of the Group has been removed. Save
as the above amendments, all other terms of the 2019
Loan Agreement remain unchanged and continue in full
force and effect.

On 21 July 2020, the Group and Agria Group Limited
("AGL") agreed to enter into a supplemental loan
agreement (“2020 Supplemental Loan Agreement”)
to adjust downward the interest rate for each of the
interest period from ten point five per cent (10.5%) of
the Loan per annum to five point five per cent (5.5%)
of the Loan per annum.

The loan was also secured by a share charge which
executed by the AGL in favour of the Group as a
continuing security and continuing obligation for
performance by the AGL of its obligations in the 2019
Loan Agreement (as amended or supplemented by the
2020 Supplemental Loan Agreement). Pursuant to the
share charge, the AGL will charge 20% of its share
interests in Agria Asia Investments Limited (“AAIL")
to the Group. AAIL is a company with limited liability
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is wholly-
owned by the Borrower.

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED # EIE X &£ B ER 2 7

30. BEALRS @
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(e)
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ZmA 0 BAGLACVILAIME—%
R)BCVILM 2 PEEITRMH R
R RGN IR A R R A IGSRE MIBR -
B EatERTIN - 2019E R
FrB B MR T8 AR B+
RN RIER °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30. Related party transactions (Continued)
Transactions for the year (Continued)

(e) Loan to a related company (Continued)

AAIL is indirectly holding a share equity investment in
an agricultural enterprise in New Zealand through Agria
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd. (“Agria Singapore”), the only and
wholly-owned direct subsidiary of AAIL.

Save and except for the revision on the original interest
rate and the share charge by AGL, all other terms as set
out in the 2019 Loan Agreement remain unchanged.

Pursuant to a resolution passed in a special general
meeting on 12 August 2020, 2020 Supplemental Loan
Agreement was approved.

The annual caps of the maximum principal loan
outstanding for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
period ended 31 July 2022 were US$10,000,000 for
each year/period.

The annual caps of the interest amounts for the period
from 1 January 2020 to 11 August 2020, period from
12 August 2020 (assumed the effective date of 2020
Supplemental Loan Agreement) to 31 December 2020,
year ended 31 December 2021 and period ended 31
July 2022 were US$645,000, US$214,000, US$550,000
and US$320,000 respectively (“Annual Caps”). The
2020 Supplemental Loan Agreement, Annual Caps of
the principal loan outstanding and interest amounts
were approved by the shareholders of the Company at
the Company’s special general meeting on 12 August
2020.

B B S B R M

30. BEALRS @
FARS (&)

(e)
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AAILZE #8Agria (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B U B R M

30. Related party transactions (Continued)
Transactions for the year (Continued)

(e) Loan to a related company (Continued)

As the loan and the annual caps of the aforesaid
continuing connected transaction expired on 31 July
2022, the Group entered into a new loan agreement
dated 22 April 2022 (“2022 Loan Agreement”) with
the AGL to renew the loan and the proposed annual
caps from 1 August 2022 to 31 July 2025. All terms as
set out in the 2022 Loan Agreement remain the same as
2020 Supplemental Loan Agreement.

The new annual caps of the interest amounts for
the financial period from 1 August 2022 (assumed
the effective date of 2022 Loan Agreement) to 31
December 2022, year ending 31 December 2023, year
ending 31 December 2024 and period from 1 January
2025 to 31 July 2025 were US$231,000, US$550,000,
US$552,000 and US$320,000 respectively (“New
Annual Caps”). The 2022 Loan Agreement, New
Annual Caps of the principal loan outstanding and
interest amounts were approved by the shareholders of
the Company at the Company's special general meeting
on 8 July 2022.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the interest
income from AGL amounted to approximately
US$550,000 (equivalent to HK$4,324,000) (2021:
US$550,000 (equivalent to HK$4,293,000)).

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED # EIE X &£ B ER 2 7

30. BEALRS @
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30. Related party transactions (Continued)

Transactions for the year (Continued)

(e) Loan to a related company (Continued)

()

As at 31 December 2022, the loan to AGL amounted
to US$10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$78,278,000)
(31 December 2021: US$10,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$78,276,000)).

Note: For the purpose of calculation of the historical figures
and the Annual Caps, the Effective Date of the 2020
Supplemental Loan Agreement is assumed to be 12
August 2020, being the expected date of fulfillment of
the conditions precedent under the 2020 Supplemental
Loan Agreement.

Loan to a director

On 8 December 2022, Bun Kee (International) Limited
(“Bun Kee"), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, as lender entered into the loan agreement
with Mr. Lai Fulin (executive director and chairman of
the Company), as borrower, pursuant to which Bun
Kee agreed to, among other things, provide a secured
loan of HK$5,000,000 to Mr. Lai Fulin for a fixed term
of 3 years from the date of drawdown and interest
payable was calculated at 6% per annum. The interest
shall be paid quarterly in arrears with the first interest
repayment date on 31 March 2023.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, interest income
from loan to a director amounted to approximately
HK$3,000 (2021: Nil).

The loan was secured by personal guarantee from
the controlling shareholder of the Company, Mr. Lai
Guanglin, the elder brother of Mr. Lai Fulin.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B U B R M

31. Statement of financial position and reserve

movement of the Company

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets

Prepayments and other receivables
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Cash and bank balances

Total assets

EQUITY
Equity holders
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Other payables

Taxation payable
Amounts due to subsidiaries

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Net current assets

&E
FRBEE
iSEIIEPNCIE &=

REBEE

TE {7 B A YRR
& W /BB 2 R R IR
Ra MIRTTHES

af&

REAE

HAb eI 50R
FENTIA

AN PNCIE/

HEE
HEENEE

Total assets less current liabilities & ERRB & &

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the board of Directors on 28 March 2023 and

was signed on its behalf:

Lai Fulin 38128

Director %

206

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED # EIE X &£ B ER 2 7

31. AR AMBURA KRR HELEB

As at 31 December

BR+=-HA=+—H
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Kzt FET FET
- 2
90,440 90,440
90,440 90,442
1,372 1,586
64,959 52,740
1,531 3,507
67,862 57,833
158,302 148,275
26,645 26,645
() 128,700 116,552
155,345 143,197
2,576 3,315
331 1,700
50 63
2,957 5,078
158,302 148,275
64,905 52,755
155,345 143,197

ARRNMBEARNREAEZTEN -F
“=F=A-+N\ Btk URKREF

eRE

Yu Ben Ansheng 81 %4

Director 2%



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B S B R M

31. Statement of financial position and reserve 31. AR AMBERRRRAEES
movement of the Company (Continued) (&)
Note : Hat -
(i)  Reserve movement of the Company () ARFEHE
Contributed
Share surplus Accumulated
premium (note) deficits Total
BABE
R EE (li9) 2ithiE @
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TAT FET FET FET
At 1 January 2021 W-2-—%-F-A 126,552 86,759 (111,767) 101,544
Profit for the year RERET = = 15,008 15,008
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 R-E-—&#+-A=1-H
k-F-—%-f—-H 126,552 86,759 (96,759) 116,552
Profit for the year REEET - - 12,148 12,148
At 31 December 2022 R-B-ZF+ZA=t-R 126,552 86,759 (84,611) 128,700
Note: Mt -
The contributed surplus of the Company represents the KRB ZBABERTIHE AR AR IRER
difference between the nominal value of the shares issued by World Trade Bun Kee (BVI) Ltd. 22
the Company in exchange for all the issued ordinary shares of BATEBRMBIT 2 RO EEEARE
World Trade Bun Kee (BVI) Ltd. and the value of net assets of FEERNE AR ST F 2
the underlying subsidiaries acquired by the Company in 2000. BEEFEMERCZH - REARE
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the —NN\—FREVEEIER]) - BARER
contributed surplus is distributable to the shareholders, subject ENEREBRENEEEB AR BER
to a solvency test. At the Group level, the contributed surplus T AR TIRR - EAREEZARE
is reclassified into its component of reserves of the underlying o BABBREFHSEAEBANEAR
subsidiaries. ZHEHEKES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B U B R M

32. Benefits and interests of directors (disclosures
required by section 383 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK

Listing Rules)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The remuneration of each director and the chief
executive for the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021 is set out below:

Name of Directors

Lai Fulin (note (i)

Yu Ben Ansheng (note (ii)
Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson
Chen Wei Wen

Guan Zhigiang

4]

ERA ()
ARE (N
ik
Kex

32.

ESEHNANEMNMERS (REBEB(D
BB (36622%F) 383K K&
(RRIRBESREER) RH)
(56622GE) R ER(LWARA)
HYIR TE M F H i B8)

(a) EERTHRARNE
BEENTHARNBE_T_—
FR-E-_—F+-A=+—HLt
FEAMSHIIT -

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HEZR-IErTRCT-RLER

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services asa director, whether of the Company or ts subsidary undertaking

[rAES(RaRAL S ANELTLR RERBTR N9RAHHE

Emoluments

paid or

receivable

in respect

of director's

other service

in connection

Remunerations with the

Estimated ~ Employer's paidor  management
monetary  contributions  receivablein  ofthe affairs
value toa  respectof of the
ofother retiement  acepting  Companyor

Discretionary Housing henefits benefit officeas  its subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses ~~ allowance (ote i) stheme director  undertaking Total

HERENT

FEHENT

5 i

e B BEEE  RlmMEs

[EmEE  EABRE  -BAERY REARG
Bt B BRRL  REER (w)) AR dRMMHe  amuURE |
SO0 SO0 SO0 S0 S0 Hsow S0 HS0m HS00
1,566 01 1% 18 - 140 3865
2640 150 10 18 - - 1948
0 - - - - - ]
150 150
0 ]
550 4,206 851 Ll 3 - 140 1363
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B S B R M

32. Benefits and interests of directors (disclosures 32. EENANEMER (BREFB(D

required by section 383 of the Hong Kong THRHI) (55622F) 383K Kk

Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies (RRI(EEESHRER) RE)D

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits (6622GE) REB(LMHAAD

of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK WREMELNEE) @

Listing Rules) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments () EBRITHEARHE &)
(Continued)

For the yearended 31 December 2021
BECRC-FTAoT-RLER
Emoluments pid or receveble n resect o  perso'ssenicesasa director, whether of the Company or s subsidary undertaing
[eBES(FARIAREENBLRLS RERAR B

Emoluments

pai or

Teceiiable

nrespect

of drectors

other sence

n comnection

Remureraions Vith the

Esmated ~ Employer’s paidor  management

moeay  contrbutions recenablein  of theaffais

Ve 03 respectof ofthe

ofother refiement acceptng  Company or

Discrtionary Housing benefits benefi offeas it subsidary
Fees Slay bonuses dlowance (ote i) sheme drecior  undertaing Totdl

HEEADT

FEHENT

HER ORHER

BftAll BIH  BfER  RiRMEs

WAEERE  RMEH RE AR
N o iectors EE L B WML RERY  MEm) AR dRMOME  amhme E
Hsom o o o o wsom wsom wsom Hso
TEr &1 TEr & &1 73 i3 i i3

Lai Fulin (note (i) i HlRi() - 1401 676 - 10 18 - 140 367
Yu Ben Ansheng (note (i) AR - 2640 - - 140 i - - 27%
Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson e i} - - - - - - - ]
Chen Wei Wen REX 150 - - - - - - - 150
Guan Zhigjang gt 0w - - - - - - - 0

5 40 676 - il % - 140 703
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B U B R M

32. Benefits and interests of directors (disclosures
required by section 383 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK
Listing Rules) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

Notes:
(i) Mr. Lai Fulin is the Chairman of the Company.

(i)~ Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company.

(i)  Other benefits include share option and other allowance.

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits during the year (2021: Nil).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the year (2021: Nil).

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Company did not pay consideration to any third parties
for making available directors’ services (2021: Nil).

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED #EIE XK@ ER 2 A

32. EENNENER (REFE(D
BIRBI) (58622F) 5E3831% K
(RRIRBESREER) RH)
(56622GE) R ER(LWARA)
YR E M AF H VIR ER) (@)

(a) EERITHRARME @

Wit -

(i) FERBEERAARNERE -

=
=
o

]

ZHEEERARBNERRIT

m}

(i) EtEMeEEREREMLE
Bh

(b) EERRKER
FR - BEE B REE EBGR KR
MEZTZ—F: 8| -
() EENARILEER
FR HESRES MR
EERBEN CEZ—F 8 -
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Ty EE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

32. Benefits and interests of directors (disclosures
required by section 383 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK
Listing Rules) (Continued)

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected
entities with such directors

The information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings entered into by the Company or subsidiary
undertaking of the Company, where applicable, in
favour of directors is as follows:

Aggregate
outstanding Aggregate

B B S B R M

32. EENNENER (REFE(D

amountatthe  outstanding Maximum
Totalamount  beginning ofthe ~ amountsatthe outstanding
payable year  endoftheyear  during the year
Eg: ERgit Fhks
Name of director i34 EifE  ARESE  AREEE  AEECE
SO0 500 SO0 SO0
1773 i1 171 {741
At31 December 2022 iuk Sk pud: 4
loan 6
M. LaiFuln REakE 5000 - 5000 5000

Save as above, there are no loans, quasi-loans and other
dealing arrangements in favour of the directors, or
controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such directors (2021: Nil).

BB (36622%F) 383K K&
(RRIRBESREER) RH)
(56622GE) R ER(LWARA)
YR E MAF H VIR ER) (@)

() MESE IZRFEBEFAE
ABERZESHNBEIRRE
HNEX EERMEMRZSZ
HER

BEARRQRHARBMB AR (0
BRINEZERZ R AMILNE
P EERMEMZ S HE RN
T

Aggregate Aggregate
amounts fallen  provisons for
duebutnot  impairment
been paid made Tem  Interest rate Security
2itid
Brxed  BiCHERR £ fiE ]
HS0m 500

TéT AT

Afied term of
3years fiom the
date of drawdown
oftheloan, 28
Decemoer 2022
B&HRRA
kS Persol
TZAZtIA Quarntee
- EeEE 6.0% ARR

BrEXSN BIBAES ¥RFE
EEHVEABRRZESNEE
TRARBAZER  EEFRME
MRH(ZT=—F : &) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B U B R M

32.

33.

Benefits and interests of directors (disclosures
required by section 383 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK
Listing Rules) (Continued)

(f) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 30, there are no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Company’s business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year
(2021: Nil).

Discontinued operation

Biomass pellet fuel products are contributed by a subsidiary
of the Group, &N @ #8EJRH R 2 &l(Guizhou Zhongguan
New Energy Limited*), which manufactures and sells biomass
pellet fuel products in the PRC. The Group discontinued
biomass pellet fuel products segment in 2020 and the
disposal was completed in March 2021. The results of this
segment were presented as discontinued operation for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

In March 2021, the Group completed the disposal of the
entire equity interest in Guizhou Zhongguan Industry
Development Limited* (M EEZXZER AR AF]), which
engaged biomass pellet fuel products business through its
66.7% equity interests owned subsidiary namely of Guizhou
Zhongguan New Energy Limited* (BN EHEERER A
A]). For the year ended 31 December 2021, the financial
results of the discontinued operation for the period up to the
completion of the disposal has been consolidated.

*  For identification purpose only

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED #EIE XK@ ER 2 A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B S B R M

33. Discontinued operation (Continued) 33. RILEBER @)
The results and cash flows of the discontinued operation BIEEEBEEBNEERBSRERLER
included in the consolidated income statement and the FeEWERErEHeRER BT ¢

consolidated statement of cash flows are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLFE

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
Revenue WA - -
Cost of sales SHEKAR = -
Gross loss EEE - =
Other gains, net HEh e 558 - =
Selling and distribution costs SHE R SHAAR — (18)
General and administrative expenses —RITBE R - (326)
Provision for impairment of TREENRERE
financial assets - -
Provision for impairment of property, Y - R MR EREREE
plant and equipment = =
Operating loss KR - (344)
Finance income, net B EUR AN F KR - =
Loss before income tax TAIEE - (344)
Tax credit BIgHE % - =
Loss after income tax from discontinued #% |- & iB 275 2 M2 518
operation - (344)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries LERB AR WS - 692
Profit for the period from RIS EER 2 AN
discontinued operation = 348
Attributable to: EER
Equity holders of the Company RARIERFFEA - 457
Non-controlling interests Pl - (109)
- 348
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B U B R M

33. Discontinued operation (Continued) 33. RILEBER @)
Analysis of the cash flows of discontinued operation is as RIS BB 2BERATAT
follow:
2022 2021
—E-—F —ET-—%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Operating activities cash flows KEEB ZIREN = (16)
Investing activities cash flows KEEB RSN = =
Financing activities cash flows BMERBH RSN - =
- (16)
34. Disposal of subsidiaries 34. HEMEB QT
Details of disposal of subsidiaries relating to discontinued BRRIEEEXEK 2 HENBARFE
operation are as follow: P
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BHE-Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILHFE
2021
—E-—F
HK$'000
FHETT
Net assets disposed EHEFEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E AR FRIE 411
Inventories TE 66
Cash and cash equivalents ReFREEEY 48
Trade and other payables B 5 R E A ERTRIE (5,327)
Net liabilities FRE (4,802)
Non-controlling interest TR 2 3,275
(1,527)
Exchange reserve released ERERE K 835
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary LERB ARz WS 692
Settled by: xHHER :
Cash received BHEEE =
Analysis of net cash outflow in respect  BEHENB AR IR ESREIFEIN
of disposal of subsidiaries:
Cash received BRE =
Cash and cash equivalents disposed EHEZReRREEEY (48)
Net cash outflow in respect of disposal ~ BEEHEK B AR ZRE R F5E
of subsidiaries (48)
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35.

36.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Comparative Figures

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted as a result of
the change in accounting policy for the cost of inventory of

which are set out in note 2(a).

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries

Name Principal Activities
£ B3
Incorporated and operating in

Hong Kong
HEBAIREE

Bun Kee (International) Limited Trading of construction materials,
mainly pipes and fittings in Hong
Kong

REBEERENH
(FEREEREN 2B5

Wad (BIR) BR AR

Hamerwind Logistic Company Limited Provision of warehousing and logistic

services in Hong Kong
BEMTERAR REERMRE RIRRE
Established and operating in Macao

ERFIAVREE

Bun Kee Building Material and Equipment
(Macao) Co., Ltd.
WaaE ki (2F) BRAR

Trading of construction materials,
mainly pipes and fittings in Macao

RRFfEEREMH
(FEREEREN2ES

B B S B R M

35. LkBREF

ARTFERA GBI IRES) - &
TFHERHFE FUAE  FBEHNME
2(a) °

36. XEMBARAER

Percentage
ARl

Particulars of issued and fully paid Attributable Held by
share capital/registered capital to the Group subsidiaries
BREARARRE/ERER AREES WEARRE
100 ordinary shares of HK$ 1 each and 100 100

3,000,000 non-voting deferred shares

of HK$1 each
100 SREE BT EBRR

3,000 000RBRAE BT ERT

RN
800 ordinary shares of HK$100 each 100 100
800MREREE 00T 2 SRk
MOP50,000 100 100

50,000;RF5%
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A s R
Restated Restated Restated
BT gl eS|
(note 1) (note 2) (note 2)
(Htat1) (Hi5t2) (Htat2)
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
—E-N\F ZENF ZETTF T —HF T
Results S HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 ~ HK$'000
FHET FAET FHET FET FETT

Revenue A 538,155 527,552 497,295 682,187 636,535

Profit before income tax AR A 29,472 13,083 34,310 65,291 58,242

Tax expense I (4,621) (1,530) (2,909) (9,324) (9,024)

Profit for the year KEF 7T 24,851 = = = =

Profit for the year from REEEXER

continuing operation FEmF = 11,553 31,401 55,967 49,218

(Loss)/profit for the period/ #8487~

year from discontinued BN,
operation (E518) /& F - (7,123) (15,808) 348 =

Profit for the year NG A 24,851 4,430 15,593 56,315 49,218

Attributable to: BN

Equity holders of the RNABIEEFEEA

Company 26,015 6,790 20,841 56,424 49,218

Non-controlling interests ~ FF¥Ef& #EzE (1,164) (2,360) (5,248) (109) =

24,851 4,430 15,593 56,315 49,218

Assets and liabilities EERERE

Total assets BEE 672,880 795,370 816,557 901,633 902,372

Total liabilities wam (131,447)  (249,334)  (254,646)  (278,529)  (230,701)

Total equity fatEm 541,433 546,036 561,911 623,104 671,671

Notes: Hiat -

1. The results of operation of biomass pellet fuel products (which 1. S£YEBRNRHERECEER(RN-_Z-F
was discontinued in 2020) prior to 2019 have not been restated or BEIEEE) N — NE U EEREE
reclassified. P E DA o

2. The change in accounting policy for cost of inventory has been 2. HFERASHBXREEEBAAR WESE

accounted for retrospectively and the comparative figures for the

corresponding comparative prior periods has been restated.
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